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NOTICE OF THE FIFTEENTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

SHORTER NOTICE is hereby given that the Fifteenth Annual General Meeting of the members of
Glass Wall Systems (India) Limited (Formerly Glass Wall Systems (India) Private Limited) will be held
on Friday, August 08, 2025 at 12:00 p.m. at the Registered Office of the Company situated at
503/504, 5™ Floor, A Wing, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mills Compound, N.M. Joshi Marg, Lower
Parel (East), Mumbai — 400013, to transact following businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company comprising of the
Audited Balance Sheet as on March 31, 20235, the Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended on that date and the Report of the Board of Directors and Auditors’ thereon along with
its annexures thereon.

2. To appoint a director in place of Mr, Jawahar Hemrajani (DIN: 00740482) who retires by rotation and,
being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

3. Ratification of remuneration of the Cost Auditor for the Financial Year 2025-26:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 148 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 including any amendment, modification, or
variation thereof, the Company hereby ratifies the remuneration of Rs. 80,000/- (Rupees Eighty Thousand
Only) plus applicable taxes & re-imbursement of out—of—pocket expenses payable to M/s. Dilip M. Malkar
& Co., Cost Accountant (Firm Registration No. 101222) who have been appointed by the Board of
Directors as the Cost Auditors of the Company, to conduct the audit of the cost records of the Company as
prescribed under the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, for the Financial Year ending
March 31, 2026.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors or the Company Secretary of the Company be
and are hereby severally authorized to do all such acts, deeds and things as may be considered necessary.

desirable and expedient for giving effect to the aforementioned resolution.”

4. Appointment of Ms. Sunaina Gera (DIN: 07763740) as an Independent Director of the Company:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a Special
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 149, 150, 152, 160 & 161 read with Schedule
IV and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, each as amended from time to time
(“Companies Act”) and Regulation 17 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 and other applicable provisions, circulars, notifications™ (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force) (“SEBI Listing Regulations™) and
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other applicable provisions thercof. if any, and pursuant to the provisions of the articles of association of
Glass Wall Systems (India) Limited (Formerly Glass Wall Systems (India) Private Limited) (the
“Company”), Ms. Sunaina Gera (DIN: 07763740), who has been appointed as an Additional Director in
the capacity of Independent Director of the Company by the Board of Directors effective May 21, 2025 in
terms of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013, and in respect of whom the Company has received a
notice in writing from a Member proposing her candidature for the office of Director pursuant to Section
160 of the Companies Act, 2013, and in accordance with the recommendation of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors, be and is hereby appointed as an Independent
Director of the Company to hold office for a term of 5 (five) consecutive years w.e.f May 21, 2025 to May
20, 2030 who shall not liable to retire by rotation.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the ‘code of conduct’ for the Board pursuant to the Companies Act be
and is hereby placed before the Company for information and for further compliance thereof by
Ms. Sunaina Gera as Independent Director.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors or the Company Secretary of the Company, be
and are hereby severally authorized to do all the acts, deeds, matters and things which are necessary for the
appointment of Ms. Sunaina Gera as an Independent Director of the Company, including filing of the
necessary forms with the Registrar of Companies, Maharashtra at Mumbai and things as may be required to
be done to give effect to the abovementioned resolutions and to settle any question or difficulty that may
arise with regard to the aforesaid purpose and which it may deem fit in the interest of the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER a copy of the above resolution, certified to be true by any Director or Company
Secretary, be forwarded to concerned authorities for necessary actions.”

5. Appointment of Mr. Siddharth Bafna (DIN: 00689925) as an Independent Director of the Company:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a Special
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 149, 150, 152, 160 & 161 read with Schedule
IV and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, each as amended from time to time
(“Companies Act”) and Regulation 17 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 and other applicable provisions, circulars, notifications (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force) (“SEBI Listing Regulations™) and
other applicable provisions thereof, if any, and pursuant to the provisions of the articles of association of
Glass Wall Systems (India) Limited (Formerly Glass Wall Systems (India) Private Limited) (the
“Company”), Mr. Siddharth Bafna (DIN: 00689925), who has been appointed as an Additional Director in
the capacity of Independent Director of the Company by the Board of Directors effective May 21, 2025 in
terms of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013, and in respect of whom the Company has received a
notice in writing from a Member proposing her candidature for the office of Director pursuant to Section
160 of the Companies Act, 2013, and in accordance with the recommendation of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors, be and is hereby appointed as an Independent
Director of the Company to hold office for a term of 5 (five) consecutive years w.e.f May 21, 2025 to May
20, 2030 who shall not liable to retire by rotation.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the ‘code of conduct’ for the Board pursuant to the Companies Act be
and is hereby placed before the Company for information and for further compliance thereof by
Mr. Siddharth Bafna as Independent Director.
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors or the Company Secretary of the Company, be
and are hereby severally authorized to do all the acts, deeds, matters and things which are necessary for the
appointment of Mr. Siddharth Bafna as an Independent Director of the Company, including filing of the
necessary forms with the Registrar of Companies, Maharashtra at Mumbai and things as may be required to
be done to give effect to the abovementioned resolutions and to settle any question or difficulty that may
arise with regard to the aforesaid purpose and which it may deem fit in the interest of the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER a copy of the above resolution, certified to be true by any Director or Company
Secretary, be forwarded to concerned authorities for necessary actions.”

6. Appointment of Ms. Nandita Khurana (DIN: 09703228) as an Independent Director of the Company:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a Special
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 149, 150, 152, 160 & 161 read with Schedule
IV and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, each as amended from time to time
(“Companies Act”) and Regulation 17 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 and other applicable provisions, circulars, notifications (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force) (“SEBI Listing Regulations™) and
other applicable provisions thereof, if any, and pursuant to the provisions of the articles of association of
Glass Wall Systems (India) Limited (Formerly Glass Wall Systems (India) Private Limited) (the
“Company”), Ms. Nandita Khurana (DIN: 09703228), who has been appointed as an Additional Director
in the capacity of Independent Director of the Company by the Board of Directors effective July 22, 2025
in terms of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013, and in respect of whom the Company has received a
notice in writing from a Member proposing her candidature for the office of Director pursuant to Section
160 of the Companies Act, 2013, and in accordance with the recommendation of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors, be and is hereby appointed as an Independent
Director of the Company to hold office for a term of 5 (five) consecutive years w.e.f July 22, 2025 to July
21, 2030 who shall not liable to retire by rotation.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the ‘code of conduct’ for the Board pursuant to the Companies Act be
and is hereby placed before the Company for information and for further compliance thereof by
Ms. Nandita Khurana as Independent Director.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors or the Company Secretary of the Company, be
and are hereby severally authorized to do all the acts, deeds, matters and things which are necessary to the
appointment of Ms. Nandita Khurana as an Independent Director of the Company, including filing of the
necessary forms with the Registrar of Companies, Maharashtra at Mumbai and things as may be required to
be done to give effect to the abovementioned resolutions and to settle any question or difficulty that may
arise with regard to the aforesaid purpose and which it may deem fit in the interest of the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER a copy of the above resolution, certified to be true by any Director or Company
Secretary, be forwarded to concerned authorities for necessary actions.”
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7. Change in Designation and Appointment of Mr. Eshan Hemrajani (DIN: 02987292) as Managing
Director, CEO and Kev Managerial Personnel of the Company:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a Special
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee and
the Board of Directors of the Company and pursuant to the provisions of Sections 196, 197, 198, 203 and
all other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (**Act™) read with Schedule V to the
Act and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and
Regulation 17 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and other
applicable provisions, circulars, notifications (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s)
thereof, for the time being in force) (“SEBI Listing Regulations™) and other applicable provisions, the
consent of the Members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to change the designation and appoint
Mr. Eshan Hemrajani (DIN: 02987292) as a Managing Director of the Company for a period of 3 years
starting from May 21, 2025 to May 20, 2028, liable to retire by rotation, on payment of remuneration not
exceeding Rs. 1,50,00,000/- (Rupees One Crore Fifty Lakhs only) per annum including Basic Salary.
House Rent Allowance and other Perquisites and allowances, Bonus, Commission and other additional
perquisites as may be approved by the Board from time to time as per the rules of the Company
(*Remuneration™), in the exercise of its discretion, to grant increments and to alter and vary from time to
time the terms and conditions of the said appointment.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Eshan Hemrajani (DIN: 02987292), Managing Director was further
appointed as Chief Executive Officer (“CEO™) & Key Managerial Personnel of the Company with effect
from July 22, 2025, in addition to his current role as Managing Director.

The following perquisites however shall not be included in the computation of the ceiling on remuneration:
(a) Contribution to provident fund, superannuation fund or annuity fund to the extent these either singly or
put together are not taxable under the Income Tax Act, 1961;

(b) Gratuity payable at a rate not exceeding half a month's salary for each completed year of service;

(c) Encashment of leave at the end of the tenure;

(d) Reimbursement of expenses at actuals, travelling and all other expenses incurred by him for the
business of the Company and such other expenses as per the policy of the Company;

(e) Insurance coverage as per Company's policy.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT notwithstanding anything hereinabove, in the event of loss or
inadequacy of profit in any financial year during the tenure of service of Mr. Eshan Hemrajani, the
payment of salary, perquisites and other allowances shall be governed by the limits prescribed under
Section II of Part II of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and are hereby authorized to
alter or vary the scope of remuneration of Mr. Eshan Hemrajani, including the monetary value thereof, to
the extent recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee from time to time, as may be
considered appropriate, subject to the overall limits specified by this resolution and the Companies Act,
2013 and SEBI LODR Regulations, 2015.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors or the Company Secretary of the Company, be
and are hereby severally authorized to do such acts, deeds and things, as may be necessary for compliance
with the applicable laws and to file the aforesaid resolution with the Registrar of Companies and sign and
issue a certified copy of the aforesaid resolution, whenever necessary.”
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8. Change in Designation and Appointment of Mr. Jawahar Hemrajani (DIN: 00740482) as Whole
Time Director and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a Special
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee and
the Board of Directors of the Company and pursuant to the provisions of Sections 196, 197, 198, 203 and
all other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘‘Act”) read with Schedule V to the
Act and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and
Regulation 17 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and other
applicable provisions, circulars, notifications (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s)
thereof, for the time being in force) (“SEBI Listing Regulations™) and other applicable provisions, the
consent of the Members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the change the designation and
appoint Mr. Jawahar Hemrajani (DIN: 00740482) as a Whole Time Director and Key Managerial
Personnel of the Company for a period of 3 years starting from May 21, 2025 to May 20, 2028, liable to
retire by rotation, on payment of remuneration not exceeding Rs. 1,50,00,000/- (Rupees One Crore Fifty
Lakhs only) per annum including Basic Salary, House Rent Allowance and other Perquisites and
allowances, Bonus, Commission and other additional perquisites as may be approved by the Board from
time to time as per the rules of the Company (“Remuneration™), in the exercise of its discretion, to grant
increments and to alter and vary from time to time the terms and conditions of the said appointment.

The following perquisites however shall not be included in the computation of the ceiling on remuneration:
(a) Contribution to provident fund, superannuation fund or annuity fund to the extent these either singly or
put together are not taxable under the Income Tax Act, 1961;

(b) Gratuity payable at a rate not exceeding half a month's salary for each completed year of service;

(¢) Encashment of leave at the end of the tenure;

(d) Reimbursement of expenses at actuals, travelling and all other expenses incurred by him for the
business of the Company and such other expenses as per the policy of the Company;

(e) Insurance coverage as per Company's policy.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT notwithstanding anything hereinabove, in the event of loss or
inadequacy of profit in any financial year during the tenure of service of Mr. Jawahar Hemrajani, the
payment of salary, perquisites and other allowances shall be governed by the limits prescribed under
Section I of Part II of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and are hereby authorized to
alter or vary the scope of remuneration of Mr. Jawahar Hemrajani, including the monetary value thereof, to
the extent recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee from time to time, as may be
considered appropriate, subject to the overall limits specified by this resolution and the Companies Act.
2013 and SEBI LODR Regulations, 2015.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors or the Company Secretary of the Company, be
and are hereby severally authorized to do such acts, deeds and things, as may be necessary for compliance
with the applicable laws and to file the aforesaid resolution with the Registrar of Companies and sign and
issue a certified copy of the aforesaid resolution, whenever necessary.”
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9. Approve the borrowing powers of the Company under Section 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a Special
Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 180 (1) (c) and other applicable provisions, if
any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder (including any statutory modifications or
re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force) the consent of the members be and is hereby accorded to
the Board of Directors of the Company (hereinafter referred to as “Board” and which shall be deemed to
include any Committee constituted or persons authorised to exercise this power on behalf of the Board) for
borrowing from time to time, as it may think fit, any sum or sums of money in any currency on such terms
and conditions as the Board may deem fit by way of loans, issuance of bonds, notes, debentures or other
securities whether convertible into equity/ preference shares or not, from banks, financial or other
institution(s), investors, mutual fund(s), or any other persons, up to an aggregate amount not exceeding
Rs. 300,00,00,000 /- (Rupees Three Hundred Crore Only) notwithstanding that the monies to be
borrowed, together with the monies already borrowed by the Company (apart from the temporary loans
obtained from the Company's bankers in the ordinary course of business), may exceed the aggregate, for
the time being, of the paid-up share capital, free reserves, that is to say, reserves not set apart for any
specific purpose, and securities premium at any point of time.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to the above resolution any of the
Director and/or Company Secretary of the Company, be and is hereby severally authorised to take such
steps as may be necessary for obtaining approvals, statutory or otherwise, in relation to the above and to all
matters arising out of and incidental thereto and to sign and to execute deeds, applications, documents and
file returns with Registrar of to sign and to execute deeds, applications, documents and file returns with
Registrar of Companies, that may be required, on behalf of the Company and generally to do all such acts.
deeds, matters, and things as may be necessary, proper, expedient, or incidental for giving effect to this
resolution.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any of the Director and/or Company Secretary of the Company be and
is/are hereby authorised to sign the certified true copy of the resolution to be given as and when required."

10. Approve payment of commission not exceeding 1% (One Percent) of the net profits of the company
computed in the manner laid down under section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013 to the non-
executive directors of the Company:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a Speciai
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 197, 198 and other applicable provisions, if
any, of the Companies Act, 2013 as amended from time to time read with the relevant rules made
thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force).
the approval of the members of the Company be and is hereby accorded for the payment of commission to
the Non-Executive Directors (hereinafter “Non-Executive Directors” shall mean including “Independent
Directors”) of the Company as may be decided by the Board from time to time, provided that that total
commission payable to all Non-Executive Directors shall not exceed 1% (one percent) of the net profits of
the Company for each financial year, computed in the manner laid down under Section 198 of the
Companies Act, 2013, in addition to the sitting fees for attending the meetings of the Board and its
Committees.
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company, be and is hereby authorised
severally to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things and to execute all such agreements, documents,
instruments, applications etc. as may be required, with power to settle all questions, difficulties or doubts
that may arise in regard to the aforesaid Resolution as it may in its sole discretion deem fit and to delegate
all or any of its powers herein conferred to any of the Directors and/or Officers of the Company, to give
effect to this Resolution.”

11. Approval to increase the investment limits for non-resident Indian or overseas citizen of India from
10% to 24% of the paid-up equity share capital of the Company:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a Special
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the applicable provisions of Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999,
as amended, and the Foreign Exchange Management (Non-debt Instruments) Rules, 2019, as amended, the
Consolidated FDI Policy Circular of 2020 dated October 15, 2020 issued by the Department for Promotion
of Industry and Internal Trade, Ministry of Commerce and Industry, Government of India, the Companies
Act, 2013, and the rules made thereunder, each as amended and all other applicable acts, rules, regulations,
provisions and guidelines, circulars (including any statutory modifications or re-enactments thereof for the
time being in force) and subject to notification to the Reserve Bank of India, and such other
statutory/regulatory compliances and approvals as may be necessary, and subject to such conditions as may
be prescribed by any of the said concerned authorities while granting such approvals, permissions or
sanctions which may be agreed to by the Board, the limit of investment by non-resident Indian (“NRI™) or
overseas citizen of India (“OCI”) in the share capital of the Company, including, without limitation, on
repatriation basis, on a recognised stock exchange in India by subscription in the initial public offering in
accordance with the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018, as amended, or direct purchase or acquisition from the open market or
otherwise, be increased from 10% (Ten per cent) to 24% (Twenty-Four per cent) of the paid-up equity
share capital of the Company, provided however, that the shareholding of each NRI or OCI shall not
exceed 5 percent of the total paid-up equity capital of the Company on a fully diluted basis, and the total
holdings of all NRIs and OCIs put together shall not exceed 10 percent of the total paid-up equity capital
on a fully diluted basis.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any Director or Company Secretary of the Company be and are hereby
severally or jointly authorised to do all such acts, things and deeds on behalf of the Company and make
such filings with the regulatory authorities, including the Reserve Bank of India, to effectively implement
this resolution.
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT a copy of the above resolution, certified to be true by any Director or the
Company Secretary, be forwarded to the concerned authorities for necessary action.”

By Order of the Board of Directors
For Glass Wall Systems (India) Limit

Shweta Singh
Company Secretary & Comp
ACS: 44973

Date: August 05, 2025
Place: Mumbai

Registered Office:
503/504, 5™ Floor, A Wing, Marathon Futurex,
Mafatlal Mills Compound, N.M. Joshi Marg,
Lower Parel (East), Mumbai — 400013.

CIN: U74999MH2010PLC207187

Tel: +91 22 6103 3456 Fax: +91 22 6103 3401.
Email :complianceiw¢lasswallsystem.com
Website: www.glasswa

lisystems.in
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NOTES:

1. The Explanatory Statement setting out material facts pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013,
relating to the Special Business to be transacted at the Meeting is annexed hereto and forms part of this
Notice.

8]

A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint one or more proxies to attend and
vote instead of himself/herself and proxy need not be a member.

(U9)

Proxies, in order to be effective, should be complete, stamped and signed and must be deposited at the
registered office of the company before the commencement of the meeting.

4. A proxy form is enclosed for use, if necessary, by the members.

5. Members/proxies are requested to bring the duly filled Attendance Slip enclosed herewith to attend the
meeting.

6. Electronic copy of the Notice of the Fifteenth Annual General Meeting of the Company along with
Attendance Slip and Proxy Form is being sent to all the members whose email IDs are registered with the
Company/Depository Participants(s) for communication purposes unless any member has requested for a
hard copy of the same. For members who have not registered their email address, physical copies of the
Notice of the Fifteenth Annual General Meeting of the Company along with Attendance Slip and Proxy
Form is being sent in the permitted mode.

7. A Route Map showing the directions to reach the venue of the Annual General Meeting is given at the end
of this Notice as per the requirement of the Secretarial Standards-2 on ‘General Meeting’.
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT,
2013 (*ACT”)

Item No. 3 - Ratification of remuneration of the Cost Auditor for the Financial Year 2025-26:

As per Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014, the Board while appointing the Cost Auditor is required to approve the remuneration payable

to them as per the recommendation of the Audit Committee and the remuneration so approved by the Board
shall be ratified by the Shareholders.

Accordingly, the Board of Directors of the Company has on the recommendation of the Audit Committee,
approved the appointment and remuneration of M/s. Dilip M. Malkar & Co., Cost Accountant as the Cost
Auditors of the Company, to conduct audit of cost records of the Company for the Financial Year ending
March 31, 2026, at a remuneration of Rs. 80,000/- (Rupees Eighty Thousand only) plus applicable taxes &
re-imbursement of out-of- pocket expenses.

The consent of the members is sought for passing an Ordinary Resolution as set out at Item No. 3 of the
Notice for ratification of the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors for the Financial Year ending
March 31, 2026.

None of the Directors, Key Management: Personnel of the Company, or their relatives, are concerned or
interested in the said resolution.

The Board recommends passing of the resolution as set out at Item No.3 as an Ordinary Resolution.

Item No. 4 - Appointment of Ms. Sunaina Gera (DIN: 07763740) as an Independent Director of the
Company:

Ms. Sunaina Gera, holding DIN 07763740, was appointed as an Additional Director of the Company, under
the category of Non-Executive Independent Director with effect from May 21, 2025, pursuant to the
provisions of Sections 149, 150, 152, 161 read with Schedule IV and other applicable provisions, if any, of
the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014,
each as amended from time to time (“Companies Act”) and Regulation 17 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and other applicable provisions, circulars, notifications
(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force) (“SEBI
Listing Regulations™) and other applicable provisions thereof, if any, the provisions of the Articles of
Association of the Company and based on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee and approval of the Board of Directors of the Company.

Further, Ms. Sunaina Gera has confirmed that she is not disqualified to act as a Director in terms of Section
164 of the Act and she is not debarred from holding the office of Director by virtue of any SEBI order or
any other such authority and she is in compliance with Rule 6 of the Companies (Appointment and
Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014. Given her expertise, knowledge and experience, the Board is of the
opinion that it would be in the interest of the Company to avail her services as an Independent Director of
the Company and she has given her consent to act as a Director of the Company.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors has recommended appointment
of Ms. Sunaina Gera as an Independent Director, for a term of 5 (five) consecutive years, on the Board of
the Company.
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A brief profile of Ms. Sunaina Gera is mentioned hereunder:

Ms. Sunaina Gera, aged 55 years, has over 31 years of diverse experience in interior design, construction
management, real estate, executive search, and educational project management. She specializes in client
relationship building and business development. She successfully founded an architectural company and an
educational institution, demonstrating strong leadership and operational skills.

She holds a degree in English Literature from St. Stephens College, Delhi University and she has completed
her Diploma in Interior Design and is a certified LEED AP.

She has previously served as the director — projects with Gera Developments Private Limited, managing
trustee with Gera Education Foundation. She currently serves as an Independent Director on the Board of
Diensten Tech Limited, a listed entity.

Accordingly, the details of Ms. Sunaina Gera pursuant to the provisions of Secretarial Standard on General
Meetings (‘SS-2") issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India are provided in the ‘Annexure A’
to the Notice.

The Company has received notice in writing from a Member under Section 160 of the Act, proposing the
candidature of Ms. Sunaina Gera for the office of Independent Director. The Company has also received
declaration from Ms. Sunaina Gera that she meets the criteria of independence as prescribed under Section
149(6) of the Act.

Ms. Sunaina Gera is interested in resolution set out at Item No. 4 of the Notice with regards to her
appointment. None of the other Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company / their relatives are,
in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution.

The Board of Directors of the Company recommends the resolution set out at Item No. 4 for approval of
the Members as a Special Resolution.

Item No. 5 - Appointment of Mr. Siddharth Bafna (DIN: 00689925) as an Independent Director of
the Company:

Mr. Siddharth Bafna, holding DIN 00689925, was appointed as an Additional Director of the Company,
under the category of Non-Executive Independent Director with effect from May 21, 2025, pursuant to the
provisions of Sections 149, 150, 152, 161 read with Schedule IV and other applicable provisions, if any, of
the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014,
each as amended from time to time (“Companies Act™) and Regulation 17 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and other applicable provisions, circulars, notifications
(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force) (“SEBI
Listing Regulations™) and other applicable provisions thereof, if any, the provisions of the Articles of
Association of the Company and based on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee and approval of the Board of Directors of the Company.

Further, Mr. Siddharth Bafna has confirmed that he is not disqualified to act as a Director in terms of
Section 164 of the Act and he is not debarred from holding the office of Director by virtue of any SEBI
order or any other such authority and he is in compliance with Rule 6 of the Companies (Appointment and
Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014. Given his expertise, knowledge and experience, the Board is of the
opinion that it would be in the interest of the Company to avail his services as an Independent Director of
the Company and he has given his consent to act as a Director of the Company.
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A brief profile of Mr. Siddharth Bafna is mentioned hereunder:

Mr. Siddharth Bafna, aged 50 years, is a fellow member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
He holds a bachelor’s degree in commerce from the University of Bombay and a master’s degree in
business administration from the Fuqua School of Business, Duke University.

He has approximately 22 years of experience in the corporate finance and advisory sector. He is currently a
partner at Lodha & Co LLP, Chartered Accountants, where he has been responsible for strategic planning
and management within the firm, business development and ensuring adherence to regulatory and
compliance standards. '

Accordingly, the details of Mr. Siddharth Bafna pursuant to the provisions Secretarial Standard on General
Meetings (‘SS-27) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India are provided in the *‘Annexure A’
to the Notice.

Mr. Siddharth Bafna is interested in resolution set out at Item No. 5 of the Notice with regards to his
appointment. None of the other Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company / their relatives are,
in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution.

The Board of Directors of the Company recommends the resolution set out at Item No. 5 for approval of
the Members as a Special Resolution.

Item No. 6 - Appointment of Ms. Nandita Khurana (DIN: 09703228) as an Independent Director of
the Company:

Ms. Nandita Khurana, holding DIN 09703228, was appointed as an Additional Director of the Company.
under the category of Non-Executive Independent Director with effect from July 22, 2025, pursuant to the
provisions of Sections 149, 150, 152, 161 read with Schedule I'V and other applicable provisions, if any, of
the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014,
each as amended from time to time (“Companies Act”) and Regulation 17 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and other applicable provisions, circulars, notifications
(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force) (“SEBI
Listing Regulations™) and other applicable provisions thereof, if any, the provisions of the Articles of
Association of the Company and based on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee and approval of the Board of Directors of the Company.

Further, Ms. Nandita Khurana has confirmed that she is not disqualified to act as a Director in terms of
Section 164 of the Act and she is not debarred from holding the office of Director by virtue of any SEBI
order or any other such authority and she is in compliance with Rule 6 of the Companies (Appointment and
Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014. Given her expertise, knowledge and experience, the Board is of the
opinion that it would be in the interest of the Company to avail her services as an Independent Director of
the Company and she has given her consent to act as a Director of the Company.

A brief profile of Ms. Nandita Khurana is mentioned hereunder:

Ms. Nandita Khurana, aged 62 years, holds a bachelor’s of arts (honours course) degree in English and a
bachelor’s degree in law from the University of Delhi. She has approximately 35 years of experience as a
commercially astute and solutions-focused legal professional. She has previously served as Country Head —
Legal (India) and as Zonal Head Legal — Director Public Affairs (Africa India Middle East) at Michelin.
She is currently a director in Vedma World1 Solutions Private Limited.
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Accordingly, the details of Ms, Nandita Khurana pursuant to the provisions Secretarial Standard on General
Meetings (‘SS-27) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India are provided in the ‘Annexure A’
to the Notice.

Ms. Nandita Khurana is interested in resolution set out at Item No. 6 of the Notice with regard to her
appointment. None of the other Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company / their relatives are,
in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution.

The Board of Directors of the Company recommends the resolution set out at Item No. 6 for approval of
the Members as a Special Resolution.

Item No. 7 - Change in Designation and Appointment of Mr. Eshan Hemrajani (DIN: 02987292) as
Managing Director, CEO and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company:

The Members of the Company had changed designation and appointed Mr. Eshan Hemrajani (DIN:
02987292) as Executive Director of the Company in the Annual General Meeting held on September 30.
2023.

Mr. Eshan Hemrajani has expertise, knowledge and business acumen required for managing the overall
business of the Company and his appointment as Managing Director would be beneficial for the Company
given the paucity of experienced and skilled personnel.

Pursuant to the recommendation of Nomination & Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors at its
meeting held on May 21, 2025, has approved the Change in designation and has appointed Mr. Eshan
Hemrajani as a Managing Director and Key Managerial Personnel of the company for a term of 3 (three)
years w.e.f. May 21, 2025 subject to approval of Members of the Company.

Mr. Eshan Hemrajani was later appointed as CEO of the Company at meeting of Board of directors held on
July 22, 2025.

Mr. Eshan Hemrajani has already declared that he is not disqualified to be appointed as director of the
Company, pursuant to provisions of section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013 and has already given
necessary disclosure pursuant to provisions of section 184 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The terms and conditions of the appointment are set out herein below:
Period of Appointment: May 21, 2025 to May 20, 2028.

Terms of Appointment: Remuneration not exceeding Rs. 1,50,00,000/- (Rupees One Crore Fifty Lakhs
only) per annum including Basic Salary, House Rent Allowance and other Perquisites and allowances.
Bonus, Commission and other additional perquisites as may be approved by the Board from time to time as
per the rules of the Company (“Remuneration™), in the exercise of its discretion, to grant increments and
to alter and vary from time to time the terms and conditions of the said appointment.

The following perquisites however shall not be included in the computation of the ceiling on remuneration:
(a) Contribution to provident fund, superannuation fund or annuity fund to the extent these either singly or
put together are not taxable under the Income Tax Act, 1961;

(b) Gratuity payable at a rate not exceeding half a month's salary for each completed year of service;

(c) Encashment of leave at the end of the tenure;
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(d) Reimbursement of expenses at actuals, travelling and all other expenses incurred by him for the
business of the Company and such other expenses as per the policy of the Company;
(e) Insurance coverage as per Company's policy.

Minimum Remuneration: In case in any financial year during the currency of the tenure of the Managing
Director, the Company has no profits or the profits are inadequate, the Company shall, subject to the
provisions of Sections 197, 198 and 203 read with and subject to the conditions and limits specified in the
Schedule V and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act 2013, [including any statutory
modifications or re-enactment(s)], the payment of salary, perquisites and other allowances shall be
governed by the limits prescribed under Section II of Part IT of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives or any of other officials
of the Company as contemplated in the provisions of Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 is, in any
way, financially or otherwise, concerned or interested in the resolution save and except Mr. Eshan
Hemrajani himself and Mr. Jawahar Hemrajani, Mrs. Vinne Jawahar Hemrajani, Mrs. Dikshita Eshan
Hemrajani and Mr. Amit Hemrajani, being relatives in the Special Resolution as proposed. The above
statement is to be considered and construed as disclosures as per the provisions of section 102 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

The Board of Directors of the Company recommends the resolution set out at Item No. 7 for approval of
the Members as a Special Resolution.

Statement of Information as Required under Schedule V, Part I1, Section II(B)(IV):

Sr. No.| Particulars | Disclosure of Information
I. General information:
1. | Nature of industry Complete solutions in the architectural

fagade industry, specializing in the
design, construction, and installation of
glass wall curtain systems.

2. | Date or expected date of commencement of | The Company was incorporated on
commercial production August 27, 2010.

In case of new companies, expected date of | N.A.

commencement of activities as per project
approved by financial institutions appearing in
the prospectus

[U5)

4. | Financial performance based on given indicators | | Particulars For the year
ended
31.03.2025 (in
Million)
Total Income 2,516.99
Net Profit Before | 650.24
Interest, Tax,

Depreciation  and
Amortization
Depreciation  and | 30.74
amortization
expense
Finance Cost 30.21
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Net Profit Before | 589.29
Tax
Provision for | 151.20
Taxation
Net Profit after Tax | 438.09
5. | Foreign investments or collaborations, if any. The Company has not made any

investment in foreign body corporate or
foreign entities. The Company do not
have any foreign collaboration and has
not received or invested any money
towards foreign collaboration.

I1. Information about the appointee:
1. | Background details

Mr. Eshan Hemrajani holds a bachelor’s
degree in Civil Engineering from Cardiff
University and a Master’s degree in
Science in  Engineering  Business
Management from Warwick University.
He has more than a decade of experience
in Business Operations and Marketing.

2. | Past remuneration Rs. 1,50,00,000 (Rupees One Crore Fifty
Lakhs)

Recognition or awards -
4. | Job profile and his suitability He is responsible for managing domestic

and international client relationships and

(U5)

handles  functions such as risk
management, implementation of
mitigation strategies, operations,

productions and HR.

5. | Remuneration proposed Rs. 1,50,00,000 (Rupees One Crore Fifty

the company, or relationship with the

Lakhs)

6. | Comparative remuneration profile with respect | Considering the nature of the industry vis
to industry, size of the company, profile of the | a vis experience of the appointee and
position and person (in case of expatriates the | complex nature of the role to be
relevant details would be with respect to the | performed by Mr. Eshan Hemrajani, no
country of his origin) comparative remuneration of industry is

available for information.

7. | Pecuniary relationship directly or indirectly with | Mr. Jawahar Hemrajani relative of Mr.

Eshan Hemrajani, draws remuneration

managerial personnel or other director, if any from the Company. Mr. Eshan
Hemrajani, has no other material
pecuniary  relationship, directly or

indirectly with the Company or with the
Managerial Personnel.

II1. Other information:
1. | Reasons of loss or inadequate profits

| Considering recession in industry, Heavy
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cost of production, Overheads, Lower
margins, etc.

2. | Steps taken or proposed to be taken for | Due to rigorous effort of the management
improvement including appointee and various cost
control measures, the company is
expected to earn better returns in future.

(U%)

Expected increase in productivity and profits in | Considering the proposed businesses and
measurable terms the projects of the Company it is not
possible to ascertain and quantify the
expected increase in profits in measurable
at this stage. However, company expects
12% growth p.a. in income and
profitability in next 3 years.

Item No. 8 - Change in Designation and Appointment of Mr. Jawahar Hemrajani (DIN: 00740482) as
Whole Time Director and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company:

It is brought to the notice of the members of the Company that Mr. Jawahar Hemrajani (DIN: 00740482) is
a Promoter Director of the Company since incorporation. Due to his experience and expertise about the
business of the Company and his foresight, the Company has been immensely benefited. Further,
considering the contribution of Mr. Jawahar Hemrajani and the progress made by the Company under his
Leadership and guidance and pursuant to the recommendation of Nomination & Remuneration Committee.
the Board of Directors at its meeting held on May 21, 2025, has approved the Change in designation and
appointed Mr. Jawahar Hemrajani as a Whole Time Director and Key Managerial Personnel of the
company for a term of 3 (three) years w.e.f. May 21, 2025 subject to approval of the Members of the
Company. He is also appointed as Chairman of the Company at the meeting of the Board of Directors dated
May 21, 2025.

Mr. Jawahar Hemrajani holds a bachelor’s degree in commerce and a bachelor’s degree in law from the
University of Bombay. He has approx. 33 years of experience in construction and engineering sector. He is
responsible for overseeing daily operations and monitoring key performance indicators and business units
in our Company and handles functions such as finance, business development and strategy.

Mr. Jawahar Hemrajani has already declared that he is not disqualified to be appointed as director of the
Company, pursuant to provisions of section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013 and has already given
necessary disclosure pursuant to provisions of section 184 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The terms and conditions of the appointment are set out herein below:
Period of Appointment: May 21, 2025 to May 20, 2028.

Terms of Appointment: Remuneration not exceeding Rs. 1,50,00,000/- (Rupees One Crore Fifty Lakhs
only) per annum including Basic Salary, House Rent Allowance and other Perquisites and allowances,
Bonus, Commission and other additional perquisites as may be approved by the Board from time to time as
per the rules of the Company (“Remuneration”), in the exercise of its discretion, to grant increments and
to alter and vary from time to time the terms and conditions of the said appointment.
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The following perquisites however shall not be included in the computation of the ceiling on remuneration:
(a) Contribution to provident fund, superannuation fund or annuity fund to the extent these either singly or
put together are not taxable under the Income Tax Act, 1961;

(b) Gratuity payable at a rate not exceeding half a month's salary for each completed year of service;

(¢) Encashment of leave at the end of the tenure;

(d) Reimbursement of expenses at actuals, travelling and all other expenses incurred by him for the
business of the Company and such other expenses as per the policy of the Company;

(e) Insurance coverage as per Company's policy.

Minimum Remuneration: In case in any financial year during the currency of the tenure of the Managing
Director, the Company has no profits or the profits are inadequate, the Company shall, subject to the
provisions of Sections 197, 198 and 203 read with and subject to the conditions and limits specified in the
Schedule V and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act 2013, [including any statutory
modifications or re-enactment(s)], the payment of salary, perquisites and other allowances shall be
governed by the limits prescribed under Section II of Part II of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives or any of other officials
of the Company as contemplated in the provisions of Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 is, in any
way, financially or otherwise, concerned or interested in the resolution save and except Mr. Jawahar
Hemrajani himself and Mr. Eshan Hemrajani, Mrs. Vinne Jawahar Hemrajani, Mrs. Dikshita Eshan
Hemrajani and Mr. Amit Hemrajani, being relatives in the Special Resolution as proposed. The above
statement is to be considered and construed as disclosures as per the provisions of section 102 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

The Board of Directors of the Company recommends the resolution set out at Item No. 8 for approval of
the Members as a Special Resolution.

Statement of Information as Required under Schedule V, Part II, Section TI(B)(IV):

Sr. No.| Particulars | Disclosure of Information
I. General information:
1. | Nature of industry Complete solutions in the architectural

fagade industry, specializing in the
design, construction, and installation of
glass wall curtain systems.

2. | Date or expected date of commencement of | The Company was incorporated on
commercial production August 27, 2010.

Lo

In case of new companies, expected date of | N.A.
commencement of activities as per project
approved by financial institutions appearing in
the prospectus

4. | Financial performance based on given indicators | | Particulars For the year

ended
31.03.2025 (in
Million)

Total Income 2,516.99

Net Profit Before | 650.24

Interest, Tax,

Depreciation  and
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Amortization

Depreciation  and | 30.74
amortization

expense

Finance Cost 30.21
Net Profit Before | 589.29
Tax

Provision for | 151.20
Taxation

Net Profit after Tax | 438.09

Foreign investments or collaborations, if any.

The Company has not made any
investment in foreign body corporate or
foreign entities. The Company do not
have any foreign collaboration and has
not received or invested any money
towards foreign collaboration.

I1. Information about the appointee:

8.

Background details

He holds a bachelor’'s degree in
commerce and a bachelor’s degree in law
from the University of Bombay.

Past remuneration

Rs. 1,50,00,000 (Rupees One Crore Fifty
Lakhs)

10.

Recognition or awards

1.

Job profile and his suitability

He is responsible for overseeing daily
operations ~ and  monitoring  key
performance indicators and business units
in our Company and handles functions
such as finance, business development
and strategy.

Remuneration proposed

Rs. 1,50,00,000 (Rupees One Crore Fifty
Lakhs)

Comparative remuneration profile with respect
to industry, size of the company, profile of the
position and person (in case of expatriates the
relevant details would be with respect to the
country of his origin)

Considering the nature of the industry vis
a vis experience of the appointee and
complex nature of the role to be
performed by Mr. Jawahar Hemrajani, no
comparative remuneration of industry is
available for information.

Pecuniary relationship directly or indirectly with
the company, or relationship with the
managerial personnel or other director, if any

Mr. Eshan Hemarajani relative of Mr.
Jawahar Hemnrajani, draws remuneration

from the Company. Mr. Jawhar
Hemrajani, has no other material
pecuniary relationship, directly or

indirectly with the Company or with the
Managerial Personnel.

111. Oth

er information:

Reasons of loss or inadequate profits

Considering recession in industry, Heavy
cost of production, Overheads, Lower
margins, etc.
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5. | Steps taken or proposed to be taken for | Due to rigorous effort of the management
improvement including appointee and various cost
control measures, the company is
expected to earn better returns in future.

6. | Expected increase in productivity and profits in | Considering the proposed businesses and
measurable terms the projects of the Company it is not
possible to ascertain and quantify the
expected increase in profits in measurable
at this stage. However, company expects
12% growth p.a. in income and
profitability in next 3 years.
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Item No. 9 - Approve the borrowing powers of the Company under Section 180(1)(c) of the
Companies Act, 2013:

The members are hereby informed that the Board of Directors of a Company shall not, except with the
consent of Company by Special Resolution borrow money together with the money already borrowed, if
any (apart from temporary loans obtained from the Company's bankers in the ordinary course of business).
exceeding the aggregate of the paid-up capital, free reserves and securities premium as per the provisions
of Section 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") and its rules thereunder.

The borrowings of the Company are in general required to be secured by suitable mortgage or charge on all
or any of the movable or immovable properties of the Company, in such form, manner, and ranking as may
be determined by the Board of Directors/ any of its authorised Committee of the Company from time to
time, in consultation with the lender(s).

It is, therefore, necessary for the members to pass a Special Resolution under Section 180(1)(c) of the
Companies Act, 2013, as set out at No. 9 of the Notice, to enable the Board of Directors (and this shall be
deemed to include any committee or persons authorised to exercise this power on behalf of the Board) to
borrow money up to Rs. 300,00,00,000 (Rupees Three Hundred Crores only) and inter alia, authorise the
Board to secure its borrowing by mortgage/charge on any of the movable and/or immovable properties
and/or the whole or any part of the undertaking(s) of the Company.

The above proposal is in the interest of the Company and the Board recommends the Resolution as set out
at Item No. 9 for approval of the members of the Company by way of Special Resolution.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives are interested or
concerned in the aforesaid resolution.

Item No. 10 - Approve payment of commission not exceeding 1% (One Percent) of the net profits of
the company computed in the manner laid down under section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013 to the
non-executive directors of the Company:

The threshold limit prescribed for commission under Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 is 1% of the
net profits of the Company if there is a Managing Director or whole-time director or manager. However.
sitting fees paid to the Non-Executive Directors are outside the purview of the above limits.

The Board has at its meeting held on August 05, 2025, on recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration
Committee, subject to the approval of the Members, approved payment of commission not exceeding in
aggregate, 1% per annum of the net profits of the Company computed in the manner referred to in Section
198 of the Companies Act, 2013 to the Non-Executive Directors (hereinafter “Non-Executive Directors”™
shall mean including “Independent Directors™) of the Company.

In the event there are no profits or profits are inadequate, the Company shall pay to the Non-Executive
Directors of the Company commission by way of remuneration in accordance with the limits specified in
Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013.

Non-executive Directors are deemed to be concerned or interested, financially or otherwise in the Resolution
at Item No.10 of the Notice to the extent of the share of commission that may be received by them. No other
Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company / their relatives are, in any way, concerned or
interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution.

GLASS WALL SYSTEMS (INDIA) LIMITED.
(Formerly Known As Glass Wall Systems (India) Pvt. Ltd.)
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Item No. 11 - Approval to increase the investment limits for non-resident Indian or overseas citizen
of India from 10% to 24% of the paid-up equity share capital of the Company:

In terms of Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999, as amended, the Foreign Exchange Management
(Non-debt Instruments) Rules, 2019, as amended (the “FEMA Regulations™), and the Consolidated
Foreign Direct Investment Policy Circular of 2020, as amended (together with the FEMA Regulations, the
“FEMA Laws”), the Companies Act, 2013, as amended, and the rules and regulations made thereunder.,
the Non-resident Indians (“NRI”*) and Overseas Citizens of India (“OCI™), together, can acquire and hold
on repatriation basis up to an aggregate limit of 10% of the paid up equity share capital of an Indian listed
company on a fully diluted basis. The FEMA Laws further provide that the limit of 10% can be further
increased up to 24%, by passing a special resolution to that effect by the shareholders and followed by
necessary filings with Reserve Bank of India. In relation to the proposed Offer, the Company proposes to
increase the aggregate limit of investment by non-resident Indians in the Company from 10% to 24% of the
paid-up equity share capital. This would allow non-resident Indians to acquire to a greater extent the equity
shares proposed to be offered in the Offer and also allow effective post-listing trading in the Equity Shares
by non-resident Indians.

The Board recommends the resolution for approval of the shareholders of the Company.

None of the Directors, key managerial personnel and relatives of Directors and/or key managerial
personnel (as defined in the Companies Act, 2013) are concerned or interested in the proposed resolution.
except in the ordinary course of business.

By Order of the Board of Directors
For Glass Wall Systems (India) Limited
(Formerly Glass Wall Systems ([jpeamr

Al

Shweta Singh”™ \
Company Secretary & Comphg
ACS: 44973

Date: August 05, 2025
Place: Mumbai

Registered Office:

503/504, 5" Floor, A Wing, Marathon Futurex,
Mafatlal Mills Compound, N.M. Joshi Marg,
Lower Parel (East), Mumbai — 400013

CIN: U74999MH2010PLC207187

Tel: +91 22 6103 3456 Fax: +91 22 6103 3401
Email : compliancet@alasswallsvstem.com
Website : www.glasswallsystems.in

GLASS WALL SYSTEMS (INDIA) LIMITED.
(Formerly Known As Glass Wall Systems (India) Pvt. Ltd.)
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Annexure A

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and Secretarial Standard-2 on General Meetings:

Name of the | Mr. Jawahar | Ms.Sunaina Gera | Mr. Siddharth | Ms. Nandita
Director Hemrajani ' Bafna Khurana
Category & | Chairman & Independent Independent Director | Independent
Designation Whole Time Director Director
Director
Director 00740482 07763740 00689925 09703228
Identification
Number
Date of Birth 15/08/1963 16/08/1970 07/12/1974 17/08/1963
Date of | 27/08/2010 21/05/2025 21/05/2025 22/07/2025
appointment
on the Board
Educational He holds a | Degree in English | Bachelor’s degree in | Holds a
Qualification bachelor’s Literature from St. | Commerce from | bachelor’s of arts
degree in | Stephens College, | Sydenham College of | (honours course)
commerce and a | Delhi  University; | Commerce and | degree in English
bachelor’s Diploma in Interior | Economics, and a bachelor’s
degree in law | Design. She has | University of | degree in law
from the | completed her | Bombay;  Master’s | from the
University  of | training on [ATA | degree in business | University of
Bombay. certified from | administration from | Delhi.
Balmer Lawrie and | Fuqua  School  of
LEED AP, Business, Duke
University, Durham
and a fellow member
of the Institute of
Chartered
Accountants of India.
Experience & | He has over 33 | She has over 31 |He is  currently | She has
Expertise years of | years of diverse | associated as Partner | approximately 35
experience on | experience in | with Lodha & Co. | years of
Facade and | interior design, | LLP, Chartered | experience as a
construction construction Accountants and as | commercially
engineering management, real | an Independent | astute and
sector. He is | estate, executive | Director  on the | solutions-
responsible for | search, and | Board of Rishabh | focused legal
overseeing daily | educational project | Instruments Limited, | professional. She
operations and | management. She | a listed company in | has  previously
monitoring key | specializes in client | the electrical | served as
performance relationship instrumentation and | Country Head —
indicators and | building and | aluminum die casting | Legal (India) and
business units in | business business. He has |as Zonal Head
our Company | development. She | experience in | Legal — Director
and handles | successfully advising on Mergers | Public  Affairs
GLASS WALL SYSTEMS (INDIA) LIMITED.
(Formerly Known As Glass Wall Systems (india) Pvt. Ltd.)
Regd Office: 503-504, 5th floor, A wing, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mills Compound,
N.M. Joshi Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai, Maharashtra - 400013. Gouncil
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functions such | founded an | & Acquisitions and | (Africa India
as finance, | architectural on fund raising | Middle East) at
business company and an | through Private | Michelin.
development educational Equity.
and strategy. institution,
demonstrating
strong  leadership
and operational
skills.
Directorships M.J. Coaters | Diensten Tech | 1. Jalapeno Foods | Vedma Worldl
held in other | Private Limited | Limited Private Limited Solutions Private
companies and 2. Diya Investo - | Limited
excluding M.J. DesignFab Consultancy Private
foreign Private Limited Limited
companies as of | (Formerly 3.Rishabh
the date of this | known as GWS Instruments Limited
Notice. Fabricators
Private Limited)
GWS Engineers
&  Fabricators
Private Limited
M. J.
Aluminium
Private Limited
Jaysons
Chemical and
Gases  Private
Limited
Memberships/ | Member — CSR | NIL Chairman, Audit | NIL
Chairmanships | Committee Committee at
of Committees | Risk Rishabh Instruments
across Management Ltd.
companies Committee
Relationship Father of Mr. | NIL NIL NIL
with other | Eshan
Directors, Hemrajani, MD
Manager and | & CEO
other Key
Managerial
Personnel  of
the Company
Shareholding 41.42% NIL NIL NIL
(%) in  the
Company
Remuneration | Rs. 1.38 Cr. NIL NIL NIL
last drawn (FY

GLASS WALL SYSTEMS (INDIA) LIMITED.
(Formerly Known As Glass Wall Systems (India) Pvt. Ltd.)

Regd Office: 503-504, 5th floor, A wing, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mills Compound,
N.M. Joshi Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai, Maharashtra - 400013.
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24-25)

Terms and | As per | As per Companies | As per Companies | As per

Conditions of | Companies Act, | Act, 2013, SEBI | Act, 2013, SEBI Companies Act,

appointment 2013, SEBI | (Listing (Listing Obligations | 2013, SEBI
(Listing Obligations and | and Disclosure | (Listing
Obligations and | Disclosure Requirements) Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 | Disclosure
Requirements) | Regulations, 2015 | and the Appointment | Requirements)
Regulations, and the | Letter of the | Regulations,
2015 and the | Appointment Letter | Company 2015 and the
Appointment of the Company Appointment
Letter of the Letter of the
Company Company

Number of | 5 1 1 NIL

Board meeting '

attended

during the year

GLASS WALL SYSTEMS (INDIA) LIMITED.

(Formerly Known As Glass Wall Systems (India) Pvt. Ltd.) % 4
ﬂ 1Y
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Form MGT-11
Proxy Form
[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

CIN : U74999MH2010PLC207187

Name of the Company : Glass Wall Systems (India) Limited (Formerly Glass
Wall Systems (India) Private Limited)

Registered Office : 503/504, 5™ Floor, A Wing, Marathon Futurex, Mafatl

-Mills Compound, N.M. Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East)
Mumbai —400013.

Name of the Member(s)
Registered Address
E-mail Id

Folio No. / Client Id and DP Id

I/We, being the Member(s) of ............. shares of the above-named Company, hereby appoint:

l. INATHIED 10o01e sooimreicrmiommmmmsissnisismnmtistommassomisonsseeis sl s M0 AT SEAEEAS GeEEs
Address: covvviiiiiiiiiii s A e .

E-TITAL T . ooneonoeininomsssosons:smsnsasn sircssims:mcmssonios e .505.6 58505 RS0 0 B R 08 S0

T L T T — , or failing him

2. T
AAALEEST & ovonmmms s s s o A R A Y S S

E-mail Id: oo
STENATUIE Lttt ittt ettt e e e e e e e , or failing him

A 11 (PP
PN [ TP

(UF)

BRI JZ ..ooccmcvmmmsin sommosmmmioimoms ssmsonamsnsmtopmins: ssssnmsins b 504 S A0S 579
SIENANITET, <.eorcomunsremrsresosmenm Ao s beriiniit FLRERAS IR TN IS 205

as my/our Proxy to attend and vote (on ‘poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Fifteenth Annual
General Meeting of the Company, to be held on Friday, August 08, 2025 at the registered office of the
Company situated at 503/504, 5™ Floor, A Wing, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mills Compound, N.M. Joshi

GLASS WALL SYSTEMS (INDIA) LIMITED.

(Formerly Known As Glass Wall Systems (India) Pvt. Ltd.) £
10NN
Regd Office: 503-504, 5th floor, A wing, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mills Compound, @ fL.‘;J
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Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai — 400013, at 12:00 p.m. or at any adjournment thereof in respect of

resolutions as indicated below:

Sr. | Resolutions
No.
Ordinary Business
1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company comprising
of the Audited Balance Sheet as-on March 31, 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss and
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on that date and the Reports of the Board of
Directors and Auditors thereon along with its annexures thereon.
2 To appoint a director in place of Mr. Jawahar Hemrajani (DIN: 00740482) who retires by rotg
and, being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.
Special Business
3. Ratification of remuneration of the Cost Auditor for the Financial Year 2025-26.
4, Appointment of Ms. Sunaina Gera (DIN: 07763740) as an Independent Director of the
Company.
3. Appointment of Mr. Siddharth Bafna (DIN: 00689925) as an Independent Director of the
Company.
6. Appointment of Ms. Nandita Khurana (DIN: 09703228) as an Independent Director of the
Company.
7. Change in Designation and Appointment of Mr. Eshan Hemrajani (DIN: 02987292) as Mana
Director, CEO and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company.
8. Change in Designation and Appointment of Mr. Jawahar Hemrajani (DIN: 00740482) as
Whole Time Director and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company.
9. Approve the borrowing powers of the Company under Section 180(1)(c) of the Companies
Act, 2013.
10. | Approve payment of commission not exceeding 1% (One Percent) of the net profits of the
company computed in the manner laid down under section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013
to the non-executive directors of the Company.
11. | Approval to increase the investment limits for non-resident Indian or overseas citizen of India
from 10% to 24% of the paid-up equity share capital of the Company.
Affix
Signed this .vseoss day of ... 2025. Revenue
St
Signature of Shareholder ......ccocovieiiiiiiiiiiiiinnin. ame
Signature of Proxy holder(s) .............. eeeeeseiieesssrstiias
GLASS WALL SYSTEMS (INDIA) LIMITED.
(Formerly Known As Glass Wall Systems (india) Pvt. Ltd.)
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Note:
a) Revenue Stamp to be affixed on this form.

b) This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the
Registered Office of the Company, not less than 48 (forty-eight) hours before the commencement of

the Meeting.

GLASS WALL SYSTEMS (INDIA) LIMITED.
(Formerly Known As Glass Wall Systems (India) Pvt. Ltd.)
=
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ATTENDANCE SLIP

Glass Wall Systems (India) Limited
(Formerly Glass Wall Systems (India) Private Limited)

Registered Office: 503/504, 5" Floor, A Wing, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mills Compound, N.M. Joshi
Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai — 400013.

Please complete this Attendance Slip and hand it over at the entrance of the place of the meeting.
Folio No./ Client ID: DP ID:

Name of the Shareholder/Proxy:

Address:

No. of shares held:

I hereby record my presence at the Fifteenth Annual General Meeting of the Company held on Friday,
August 08, 2025 at 12:00 p.m. at the registered office of the Company situated at 503/504, 5" Floor, A
Wing, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mills Compound, N.M. Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai —
400013.

GLASS WALL SYSTEMS (INDIA) LIMITED.
(Formerly Known As Glass Wall Systems (India) Pvt. Ltd.)

Regd Office: 503-504, 5th floor, A wing, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mills Compound,
N.M. Joshi Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai, Maharashtra - 400013. Council
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ROUTE MAP OF THE VENUE OF FIFTEENTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Registered office of the Company: 503-504, 5" Floor, A Wing, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal
Mills Compound, N.M. Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai — 400013.

Landmark: Near Currey Road Railway station.

s

£

GLASS WALL SYSTEMS (INDIA) LIMITED.
(Formerly Known As Glass Wall Systems (India) Pvt. Ltd.)
Regd Office: 503-504, 5th floor, A wing, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mills Compound,

N.M. Joshi Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai, Maharashtra - 400013.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

To,

The Members,

Glass Wall Systems (India) Limited

(Formerly Glass Wall Systems (India) Private Limited)
503-504, 5t Floor, A Wing, Marathon Futurex,
Mafatlal Mills Compound,

N.M. Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East),

Mumbai — 400013.

Your directors take pleasure in presenting the Fifteenth Annual Report on the business and operations

of your Company, together with the Audited Financial Statements o

March 31, 2025.

1. FINANCIAL RESULTS:

f the Company for the year ended

The Company’s financial performance for the year under review along with previous year’s figures is

given hereunder:

Particulars

= — |

(Rs. in Million)

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Revenue from Operations 2,447.61 2,821.71
Other Income 69.38 58.48
Total Income 2,516.99 2,880.19
Less: Total Expenditure 1,927.70 2,504.08
Profit/ (Loss) before exceptional items and Tax 589.29 376.11
Less: Exceptional items - 161.89
Profit/ (Loss) Before Tax 589.29 214.22
Less: Tax Expenses
Current Tax 46.59 (4.30)
Deferred Tax 104.61 98.99
Total Tax Expense 151.20 94.69
Profit / (Loss) After Tax 438.09 11.953

2. STATE OF AFFAIRS OF YOUR COMPANY:

Your Company is engaged in the business of providing complete solutions in the architectural fagade
industry, specializing in the design, construction, and installation of glass wall curtain systems.

Your Company reported revenue from operations of Rs. 2,447.61 million during the year under review
as compared to Rs. 2,821.71 million in the previous financial year.

Further, your company has earned profit after tax of Rs. 438.09 million during the'year under review

as compared to profit after tax of Rs. 11.953 million in the previous financial year.

GLASS WALL SYSTEMS (INDIA) LIMITED.
(Formerly Known As Glass Wall Systems (India) Pvt. Ltd.)

Regd Offic_e: 503-504, 5th floor, A wing, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mills Compound
NM Joshi Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai, Maharashtra - 400013. I
E: info@glasswallsystem.com | W www.glasswallsystems.in
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3. REGISTRAR AND SHARE TRANSFER AGENT:

MUEG Intime India Private Limited (Formerly Link Intime India Private Limited) acts as a Registrar and
Share Transfer Agent of the Company. The ISIN allotted to the Company was INE644Q01013 for Equity
Shares having nominal value of Rs. 10 each. After subdivision of equity shares from Rs. 10 (Rupees Ten
only) each to five equity shares of Rs. 2 (Rupees Two only) each, the new ISIN is INE644Q01039 for
Equity Shares having nominal value of Rs. 2 (Rupees Two only) each.

As of March 31, 2025, all Equity Shares are in dematerialized form.

4. TRANSFER TO RESERVES:

Your directors have decided not to transfer any amount in General Reserves of the Company during
the year under review.

5. DIVIDEND:

The Company wishes to utilize earned revenues for future growth and hence have decided not to
recommend any payment of dividend on ordinary equity shares as at March 31, 2025.

However, in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Class B Equity Shares, the Board of

Directors, at their meeting held on July 11, 2024, approved the payment of 2% (two percent) per -
annum coupon on the subscription amount for the financial year 2024-2025, for the period from

April 1, 2024, to June 12, 2024.

6. TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED/ UNPAID DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND:

Your Company does not have any funds as contemplated under Section 125 of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”) lying unpaid or unclaimed which were required to be transferred to Investor
Education and Protection Fund (IEPF).

7. DEPOSITS:

Your Company has not accepted any Deposits within the meaning of Section 73 to 76 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.

8. CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS:

During the year under review, there was no change in the nature of the business of your Company.

9. CHANGE IN STATUS OF THE COMPANY:

Subsequent to the closure of the financial year ended March 31, 2025, the Company has undertaken
conversion from a private limited company to a public limited company in accordance with the
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 at the Extra-Ordinary General Meeting of the
Members of the Company held on April 03, 2025.

GLASS WALL SYSTEMS (INDIA) LIMITED.
(Formerly Known As Glass Wall Systems (India) Pvt. Ltd.)
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As part of this conversion, the name of the Company has been changed from "Glass Wall Systems
(India) Private Limited" to "Glass Wall Systems (India) Limited", by removing the word "Private" from
its existing name. The necessary approvals have been obtained, and the change is effective from the
date of issuance of the fresh certificate of incorporation by the Registrar of Companies and Central
Processing Centre dated April 28, 2025.

In line with this change, the Corporate ldentification Number (CIN) of the Company has also been
changed to U74999MH2010PLC207187.

10. SUBSIDIARY/JOINT VENTURES/ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:

During the year under review, your Company did not have any Subsidiary, Associate or Joint Venture
Company.

11. SHARE CAPITAL:

During the year under review, the Authorized Share Capital of the Company stood at Rs.
26,00,00,000/- (Rupees Twenty-Six Crores only) divided into 2,60,00,000 (Two Crore Sixty Lak_hs)
Equity shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten only) each and the Paid-up Share Capital of the Company stood
at Rs. 15,18,43,250/- (Rupees Fifteen Crores Eighteen Lakhs Forty-Three Thousand Two Hundred Fifty
only) divided into 1,51,84,325 (One Crore Fifty-One Lakh Eighty-Four Thousand Three Hundred
Twenty-Five) Equity shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten only) each.

During the year under review, following changes took place:

The Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on May 25, 2024 approved the proposal
for buy-back of 42,53,910 (Forty Two Lakhs Fifty Three Thousand Nine Hundred Ten) fully paid-up
equity shares (including Class B Equity Shares) of face value of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten only) per share in
accordance with Sections 68, 69, 70 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 at a
price of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten only) per share for an aggregate amount not exceeding Rs. 4,25,39,100
(Rupees Four Crore Twenty Five Lakhs Thirty Nine Thousand One Hundred), (which is less than 10% of
the paid-up capital and free reserves of the Company as per Special Purpose Interim Condensed
Accounts as at December 31, 2023). The Company has completed its buyback including
extinguishment of its bought back shares on 9 July 2024.

Further, 44,54,595 (Forty Four Lakhs Fifty Four Thousand Five Hundred Ninety Five) Class B Equity
shares having face value of Rs. 10 (Rupees Ten only) each, were converted into 44,54,595 (Forty-Four
Lakhs Fifty-Four Thousand Five Hundred Ninety-Five) Ordinary Equity Shares of Rs..10/- (Rupees Ten
only) each. The same was approved at the Extra-Ordinary General Meeting of the Company held on
July 11, 2024.

There was change in the Authorised Share Capital structure of the Company from
Rs. 26,00,00,000/- (Rupees Twenty-Six Crores only) divided into 2,15,45,405 (Two Crore Fifteen Lakhs
Forty-Five Thousand Four Hundred Five) Equity shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten only) each and
44,54,595 (Forty-Four Lakhs Fifty-Four Thousand Five Hundred Ninety-Five) Class B Equity shares of
Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten only) each, into Rs. 26,00,00,000/- (Rupees Twenty-Six Crores only) divided into
2,60,00,000 (Rupees Twenty-Six Crores only) Equity shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten only) each. The
same was approved at the Extra-Ordinary General Meeting of the Company held on July 11, 2024.

Subsequent to the financial year ended March 31, 2025, following change took place:
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The members of the Company approved sub-division of each Equity Share of the Company having face
value of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten only) each into 5 (Five) Equity Shares of face value of Rs. 2/- (Rupees
Two only) each fully paid up at an Extra-Ordinary General Meeting of the Company held on May 05,
2025.

Pursuant to above, the authorized share capital of the Company changed to Rs. 26,00,00,000/-
(Rupees Twenty-Six Crores only) divided into 13,00,00,000 /- (Thirteen Crore) Equity Shares of Rs. 2/-
(Rupees Two only) each.

12. ENERGY CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND
OUTGO:

As required under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read together with Rule 8(3) of
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the concerned particulars relating to Energy Conservation,
Technology Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo are given in Annexure ‘A’ which is
attached hereto and forms part of the Directors’ Report. '

13. RISK MANAGEMENT AND ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS:

The Company has in place a mechanism to identify, assess, evaluate, monitor and mitigate various
risks to key business objectives. Major risks identified by the businesses and functions are
systematically addressed through mitigating actions on a continuing basis. The internal financial
controls with reference to the Financial Statements are commensurate with the size and nature of
business of the Company.

14. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR):

Corporate Social Responsibility Policy (CSR Policy) indicating the activities to be undertaken by the
Company was adopted by the Board on the recommendation of the CSR Committee. During the year,
no revision was made to the CSR Policy of the Company.

Further, since the average net profit of the Company made during the three immediately preceding
financial years was in negative, the Company was not required to make any CSR spending for the
financial year 2024-2025.

However, as a part of good corporate governance, the Company has voluntarily spent CSR contribution
of Rs. 2,50,00,000/- (Rupees Two Crore Fifty Lakhs only) through Dr. Aabaji Thatte Seva Aur
Anusandhan Sanstha. :

Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility as per Rule 8 of Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 is prepared and the same is enclosed as Annexure ‘B’ and forms part
of the Directors’ Report.
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15.

16.

17.

18.

POLICY RELATING TO DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENT, PAYMENT OF REMUNERATION AND DISCHARGE
OF DUTIES:

Subsequent to the financial year ended March 31, 2025, Company has adopted Nomination and
Remuneration policy at the Board meeting held on August 05, 2025.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS MADE UNDER SECTION 186 OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013:

During the year under review, the Company did not grant any loan or provide any guarantees or
Investments as per the provisions of section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. ’

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS MADE WITH RELATED PARTIES:

All related party transactions entered into during the financial year under review by the Company
were on an arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course of business. Statement of these transactions
is given at Notes to financial statements.

There are no material significant related party transactions made by the Company with Promoters,
Directors, Key Managerial personnel or other designated persons which may have a potential conflict
with the interest of the Company at large.

The particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties referred to in Section 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013 during the financial year ended on March 31, 2025 are provided in Form AOC?2

enclosed herewith as Annexure ‘C.

STATUTORY AUDITORS AND AUDITORS’ REPORT:

pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 of the Act, and rules made thereunder, the Members of the
Company at their 14t Annual General Meeting had re-appointed S R B C & Co. LLP, Chartered
Accountants, Mumbai, bearing ICAI Firm Registration No. 324982E/E300003, as the Statutory Auditors
of the Company for Five Financial Years to hold office from the conclusion of the 14th AGM held on
September 30, 2024 until the conclusion of 19th AGM of the Company to be held in the calendar year
2029.

The Auditors have confirmed that they have subjected themselves to the peer review process of
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) and hold a valid certificate issued by the Peer Review
Board of the ICAL

M/s. S R B C & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, have submitted their Report on the Financial
Statements of the Company for the F.Y. 2024-25, which forms part of the Annual Report 2024-2025.

There are no qualifications, reservations, adverse remark or disclaimer made by the Statutory Auditors
in their Audit Report except for the following observation -

The Company has used accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature
of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant
transactions recorded in the software except that, audit trail feature is not enabled for certain changes
made, if any, using privileged/ administrative access rights, as described in note 48 to the financial
statements. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail
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feature being tampered with, in respect of accounting software where the audit trail has been
enabled. Additionally, for the reasons stated in note 48 to the financial statements, we are unable to
comment on whether audit trail as per the applicable requirements has been preserved by the
company as per the statutory requirements for record retention in respect of the year ended March
31, 2025.

Board’s Comment on the Auditor’s Report:

The Board has taken note of the auditor’s observation regarding the audit trail (edit log) feature in the
accounting software used by the Company. The accounting software used by the Company includes .
an audit trail functionality, which remained active throughout the year for all relevant transactions.
However, due to certain system limitations, the audit trail feature was not enabled for changes made
using privileged or administrative access.

Effective from September 03, 2024, the Company has fully enabled the audit trail feature for all access
levels, including administrative users. The Board further notes that the auditors have not come across
any instance of tampering with the audit trail where it was enabled.

With respect to the preservation of audit trail logs in accordance with the applicable statutory
requirements, the Company is evaluating its current system configurations and working with its
service provider to ensure full compliance with the provisions of Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014, as amended. The Company is committed to strengthening its interna’ controls and has
initiated steps to enhance system settings and access protocols to ensure cornplete audit trail
coverage and preservation across all access levels.

19. DETAILS IN RESPECT OF FRAUDS REPORTED BY AUDITORS UNDER SUB- SECTION (12) OF SECTION
143 OTHER THAN THOSE REPORTABLE TO THE CENTRAL GOVERNMENT:

During the year under review, no fraud by the Company, by its officers or employees has been noticed
or reported during the course of audit.

20. COST AUDITOR:

The Board of Directors of the Company at their Board meeting held on May 25, 2024 pursuant to the
recommendation of Audit Committee had appointed Dilip M. Malkar & Co., Cost Accountants
(Registration No. 101222) as the Cost Auditors of the Company for the Financial Year 2024-25 at a
remuneration of Rs. 70,000/~ (Rupees Seventy Thousand only) plus Applicable Tax & re-imbursement
of out-of-pocket expenses, subject to the ratification of the said remuneration by the shareholders at
the Annual General Meeting, according to Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Cost Audit Report was filed with the Central Government within prescribed timelines.

21. SECRETERIAL AUDITOR:

During the year under review, Secretarial Audit was not applicable to the Company.
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22. INTERNAL AUDITOR:

In terms of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable laws, ASA & Associates LLP,
Chartered Accountants were appointed as the Internal Auditors of the Company for the Financial Year
2024-25, to conduct Internal Audit of the Company.

23. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

As on March 31, 2025, the Board of Directors of your Company comprised of 3 Directors, viz., 2
Executive Directors and 1 Non-Executive Directors.

Pursuant to provision of Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Key Managerial Person (KMP) of
the Company as on March 31, 2025 is as follows:

Mr. Jawahar Hemrajani (DIN: 00740482)

Mr. Eshan Hemrajani (DIN: 02987292)

Mr. Prakash Bagla (DIN: 03043874)

Mr. Vivek Baid - Chief Financial Officer (CFO)

Ms. Shruti Waghela - Company Secretary

During the year under review, following changes took place:

Date Name of Directors/ KMP Designation Appointment/ ]
Cessation/ Change in
Designation
April 16, | Mr. Sanjay Sawant Chief  Financial | Cessation
2024 Officer (CFO)
July 11, 2024 | Mr. Kamlesh Choudhari (DIN: 00740645) | Director Cessation
July 11, 2024 | Ms. Sunita Choudhari (DIN: 02987268) Director Cessation
July 11, 2024 | Mr. Vivek Baid Chief  Financial | Appointment
Officer (CFO)
July 11, 2024 | Ms. Rajeshree Chougule Company Cessation
Secretary
July 11, 2024 | Ms. Shruti Waghela Company Appointment
Secretary J

After the closure of financial year ended March 31, 2025, following changes took place:

Date Name of Directors/ KMP Designation Appointment/ T
Cessation/ Change
in Designation

April 02, | Ms. Shruti Waghela Company Secretary | Cessation

2025

April 03, | Ms. Shweta Singh* Company Secretary | :Appointment

2025

May 21,2025 | Mr. Vivek Baid Chief Financial | Cessation

Officer (CFO)
May 21,2025 | Mr. Sanjay Sawant Chief Financial | Appointment
Officer (CFO)
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rMay 21,2025 | Mr. Siddharth Bafna (DIN: 00689925) | Independent Appointment
Director
(Additional)
May 21,2025 | Ms. Sunaina Gera (DIN: 07763740) Independent Appointment
Director
(Additional)
May 21,2025 | Mr. Jawahar Hemrajani (DIN: 00740482) | Chairman and | Change in
Whole Time Designation
Director
May 21,2025 | Mr. Eshan Hemrajani (DIN: 02987292) Managing Director | Change in
Designation
July 22,2025 | Mr. Eshan Hemrajani (DIN: 02987292)* | CEO Appointment
July 22,2025 | Ms. Nandita Khurana independent Appointment
Director
| (Additional)

*Ms. Shweta Singh, Company Secretary of the Company was designated as Compliance Officer at

meeting of Board of Directors held on April 30, 2025.

*Mr. Eshan Hemrajani (DIN: 02987292) was appointed as Managing Director at meeting of Board of
as Chief Executive Officer at meeting of
Board of Directors held on July 22, 2025. His revised designation is Managing Director & CEO.

Directors held on May 21, 2025. He was later also appointed

Pursuant to Section 149, 152 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act,

2013, one-third

of the Directors are liable to retire by rotation and shall retire every year and, if eligible, offer

themselves for re-appointment at every Annual General Meeting. Consequently,

Mr. Jawahar

Hemrajani (DIN: 00740482) shall retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting, being
eligible offers himself for re-appointment. The Board recommends his re-appointment.

DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:

As required under Section 149 (7) of the Companies Act, 2013, all the Independent Directors on the

Board of the Company have given declarations that they meet t
down in section 149 (6) of the Act. They have further confirmed that they have complied with

he criteria of independence as laid

the

Company’s Code of Conduct and that they have registered their names in the Independent Directors’

Databank.

24. NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

During the year under review, five Board Meetings were held. The provisions of Companies Act, 2013
were adhered to while considering the time gap between two meetings, wherever required. The

necessary quorum was present for all the
year are as under:

meetings. The details of the meetings convened during the

Dates on which Board Meetings were held | Total Strength of the Board No. ->f Directors present
May 25, 2024 5 5
July 11, 2024 5 5
September 16, 2024 3 3
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December 24, 2024 3 3

March 05, 2025 3 3

25. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD:

Audit Committee; Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee have been duly constituted in accordance with the provisions of the Aci.

AUDIT COMMITTEE:

During the Financial year 2024-25, Three (3) meetings of Audit Committee were held on May 25, 2024,
September 16, 2024 and December 24, 2024.

The Composition of Audit Committee during period under review is as under:

Name of the Director Designation in the Committee
Mr. Prakash Bagla Chairman of Committee

Mr. Jawahar Hemrajani Member

Mr. Eshan Hemrajani Member

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:

During the Financial year 2024-25, One (1) meeting of Nomination and Remuneration Committee was
held on July 11, 2024.

The Composition of Nomination and Remuneration Committee during period under review is.as

under:
Name of the Director Designation in the Committee
Mr. Eshan Hemrajani Chairman of Committee
Mr. Jawahar Hemrajani Member
Mr. Prakash Bagla Member

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE:

During the Financial year 2024-25, One (1) meeting of Corporate Social Responsibility Committee was
held on December 24, 2024.

The Composition of Corporate Social Responsibility Committee during period under review is as under:

Name of the Director Designation in the Cominittee
Mr. Eshan Hemrajani Chairman of Committee

Mr. Jawahar Hemrajani Member

Mr. Prakash Bagla Member

26. ANNUAL EVALUATION:

Considering the limit of paid-up share capital of the Company, the provisions of Section 134 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(4) of the Companies (Companies Accounts) Rules, 2013 relating
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to formal Annual Evaluation of the Board and that of its committees and the Indiviaual Director is not
applicable to the Company.

27. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

As required under Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, your Directors, to the best of their
knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanation obtained by them, state that:

a. in the preparation of the Annual Accounts for the year ended March 31, 2025, the applicable,
accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material
departures, if any;

b. we have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Company at the end of March 31, 2025 and of the profit for the year ended on that period;

c. proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d. the attached Annual Statement of Accounts for the year ended March 31, 20..5 have been on a
‘going concern’ basis; and

e. proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws were in place and
that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

28. VIGIL MECHANISM

The Vigil functions of the Company are being overseen by the Board of Directors. Your directors have
provided an avenue for all the employees of the Company as a “Whistle Blower’ to come forward and
raise his/her concerns on suspect or wrongful conduct without fear of punishment or unfair treatment
through designated Email ID sugoestions@glasswallsystem.com.

29. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS:

No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company occurred
between the end of the financial year to which these financial statements relate and the date of this
report except-

Contingent liabilities:

The Joint Commissioner (Appeals) adjudicated the Maharashtra VAT (MVAT) assessment for the
financial years 2005-06 to 2017-18 and Central Sales Tax (CST) assessment for the financial years 2014-
15 and 2015-16 against which the Company has filed appeals with the Maharashtra Sales Tax Tribunal
(MSTT). As a result of the status of these assessment orders, it is possible that the Company may incur
a liability of % 312.13 Million under MVAT for the financial years 2005-06 to 2017-18 and liability of
£ 19.93 Million under CST for the financial years 2014-15 and 2015-16. Subsequent to the year-end,
MSTT passed an order dated July 09, 2025 quashing the demand, resulting in a cumulative refund (net
of liability in MVAT and CST) across the years.

30. DISCLOSURE_AS PER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION,
PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013:

The Company has always provided a safe and harassment free workplace for every individual working
in its premises through various policies and practices. The Company always endeavours to create and

GLASS WALL SYSTEMS (INDIA) LIMITED.
(Formerly Known As Glass Wall Systems (India) Pvt. Ltd.)

Regd Office: 503-504, 5th floor, A wing, Marathon Futurex, M i %
€ : ; ! 4 fatlal M
NM Joshi Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai, Maharashtra - 40601g.a S %
i: info@glasswallsystem.com | W www.glasswallsystems.in == 5:"“"'“
N ISO 8001: 2015 COM
PANY | CORPORATE IDENTITY NUMBER: U749939MH2010PLC207187 __—_;;"}B""ﬂ"w

1

E==—— Urban Habitat

=z
me
=g
ws



GLASS WALL SYSTEMS

Complete Solution For Facade Works

provide an environment that is free from discrimination and harassment including sexual harassment.
The Company is actively involved in ensuring that the employees/resources are aware of the
provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal)
Act, 2013 (“POSH Act”) and rights thereunder.

The Company has constituted an Internal Committee (IC) as required under POSH Act and the
constitution of the committee is in compliance with the said Act.

The Company has also adopted POSH Policy which is in line with requirements of the POSH Act and is
fully committed to uphold and maintain the dignity of every woman executive working in the
Company. The Company’s Policy provides for protection against sexual harassment at workplace and
for prevention and redressal of such complaints.

Number of complaints of sexual harassment received in the year: 0
Number of complaints disposed off during the year: 0

Number of cases pending for more than ninety days: 0

31. ANNUAL RETURN:

As per Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, the copy of the annual return for the Financial Year
2024-25 shall be made available at hitps://www.glasswallsystems.in/.

32. CREDIT RATING:

Your Company has sustained credit rating provided by CRISIL Ratings Limited which is ‘CRISIL A2’ for
Short Term Rating and ‘CRISIL BBB+/Stable’ for Long Term Rating.

33. DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT & MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR
TRIBUNAL:

No significant and material orders were passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the
going concern status and company’s operations in future, except as stated below -

MSTT passed an order dated July 09, 2025 quashing the MVAT and CST demand as disclosed under
point 29 above, resulting in a cumulative refund (net of liability in MVAT and CST) across the years.

34. OTHER DECLARATIONS, INFORMATIONS AND CONFIRMATIONS:

1. Annual General Meeting for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 was held on September 30,
2024.

2. Applicable Secretarial Standards, i.e. $s-1 and SS-2, relating to ‘Meetings of the Board of
Directors’ and ‘General Meetings’, respectively, have been duly observed by the Company.

3. The Company has not issued any employee stock option during the financial year as per Rule 12
of Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014.

4. The Company has not issued any sweat equity shares during the financial year in accordance with
the provisions of Section 54 of Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the Companies (Share
Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014.

5.  The Company has voluntarily adopted Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) during the year
ended March 31, 2025.
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35. DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR ANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE INSOLVENCY AND
BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 DURING THE YEAR ALONGWITH THEIR STATUS AS AT _THE END OF THE
FINANCIAL YEAR:

During the year under review, the Company did not make any applications under the Insolvency and
Bankruptcy Code, 2016 nor there are any proceeding pending under the said Code. Hence, disclosure
under this clause is not applicable to the Company.

36. DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE AT THE TIME OF ONE TIME
SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING LOAN FROM THE BANKS OR FINANCIAL
INSTITUTIONS:

During the year under review, there were no instances of one-time settlement with any bank or
financial institution.

37. COMPLIANCE RELATING TO THE PROVISIONS OF MATERNITY BENEFIT ACT 1961:

The Company has complied with the applicable provisions of the Maternity Benefit Act, 1961,
including the amendments made thereto.

38. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:

Your Board of Directors place on record their gratefulness for the continued and timely assistance and
excellent co-operation received from the Bankers, various Government Departments and valued
business associates. At the same time, your directors also express their gratitude to the Company’s
customers, shareholders, suppliers, dealers and employees for their great support and continued
confidence.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Glass Wall Systems (India) Limited
(Formerly Glass Wall Systems (India) Private Limited)

Jawahar H. Hemrajani \
Chairman and Whole — Time Di
DIN: 00740482

Date :August 05, 2025
Place : Mumbai
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ANNEXURE - A

Particulars of Energy Conservation, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo
required under the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY:

i. Steps taken or impact on conservation of energy:

As a responsible corporate, we are determined to adopt an appropriate energy conservation
measure wherever possible and also create continuous awareness among employees to take
energy conservation measures at individual level.

ii. Steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate sources of energy:

No specific action taken for utilizing alternate sources of energy.

iii. The capital investment on energy conservation equipment:

No capital investment was made during the year. Your directors are keen to find ways and
means which can possibly further reduce the consumption of energy.

B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION:

i the efforts made towards technology absorption:

- Implementation and utilization of advanced software such as ‘SAP’
- Recycling of Aluminium Waste

ii. the benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or import
substitution:

Areas Benefits derived

Implementation and utilization SAP helped in effective supply chain management
of advanced software whereas Orgadata helped in minimizing human error
and control waste which resulted into high quality

production..

Recycling of Aluminium Waste Helped the Company in re-usages of material and

minimize scrap.
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iii. in case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the
beginning of the financial year) — NIL

the details of technology imported;

the year of import;

whether the technology been fully absorbed;

if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, and the reasons

thereof; and

o 0 T W

iv. the expenditure incurred on Research and Development:

No specific expenditure incurred on Research and Development.

C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

(Rs. in million)

Particulars 2024 - 2025 2023 - 2024
Foreign exchange earnings: 1147.06 1320.28
Foreign exchange outgo: 135.12 198.88

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Glass Wall Systems (India) Limited
(Formerly known as Glass Wall Systems (India) Private Limited)

Jawahar H. Hemrajani
Chairman and Whole-Time Director
DIN: 00740482

» Date :August 05, 2025
Place :Mumbai
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1.

2.

ANNEXURE B

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES

Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company:

The Board of Directors (Board) adopted the CSR Policy (“Policy”) on December 23, 2014 which
was revised on May 30, 2019 as recommended by the CSR Committee. The Policy shall be made
available on the Company’s website. The activities undertaken by the Company during the
financial year under review adheres to Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013 which specifies
activities that can be undertaken by a Company in fulfilment of its CSR objective provided in
Policy. These specified activities, interalia, includes promoting and providing health care
facilities including preventive health care and sanitations to the indigent & needy persons from
the society in India.

Composition of CSR Committee (During the year under review):

SI_. Name of Director Position | Nature of Number of Number of
No. Directorship meetings of | meetings of
CSR CSR

Committee | Committee
held during | attended

the year during the
year
1 Mr. Eshan Hemrajani Chairman | Director 1 1
2 Mr. Jawahar Hemrajani | Member | Director 1 1
3 Mr. Prakash Bagla Member | Non-executive 1 1

Director

Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects
approved by the board are disclosed on the website of the company:

Composition of CSR | https://www.glasswallsystems.in/
committee
CSR Policy https://www.glasswallsystems.in/

.CSR projects approved by the | https://www.glasswallsystems.in/

board of the Company

Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule
(3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if
applicable: The requirement of carrying out the Impact assessment of CSR pro‘ects in pursuance
of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, is
not applicable to the company.

GLASS WALL SYSTEMS (INDIA) LIMITED.
(Formerly Known As Glass Wall Systems (India) Pvt. Ltd.)
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5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the:
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off
for the financial year, if any:
Sl. Financial Year Amount available for set-off | Amount re juired to be set-
No. from preceding financial off for the financial year, if
years (in Rs) any (in Rs)
NIL
6. Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): X (1273.65) lakhs
7.
Two percent of average net profit of the company as per X (25.47) lakhs
section 135(5):
(b) |Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programs or Nil
activities of the previous financial years
(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: Nil
(d) [Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c). X (25.47) lakhs
8. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:
Total Amount Amount Unspent (X in lakhs)
Spent for the Total Amount transferred to Amount transferred to any fund specified
Financial Year. Unspent CSR Account as per under Schedule VIl as per second proviso to
(X in lakhs) section 135(6). section 135(5).
Amount. Date of transfer. | Name of Amount. | Date of transfer.
the
Fund
X250 Nil NA NA Nil NA
(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year:
(1) |2 (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8. (9)
GLASS WALL SYSTEMS (INDIA) LIMITED.
(Formerly Known As Glass Wall Systems (India) Pvt. Ltd.)
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Sr.

No.

Name
of the

Project

Item from
the

list of
activities
in
Schedule
Vil

to the Act.

Local Location of Project |Amt Amount |Mode of |Mode of
area the duration [allocated spent for [Imgleme [Implementation -
(Yes/No) |project. for the the ntation - [Through
project project [Direct Implementing
(Xin lakhs) [(Xin (Yes/No) [Agency
lakhs)
State District Nam CSR
e [Registration |
number.
NIL

(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year:

(1) (2) (3) (4 |(5) (6) (7 |(8)
Sl. No.Name Item from  [Local |Location of the Amount [Mode [Mode of
of the the rea |project. spent  |of Implementation -
Project list of (Yes/ for Imple [Through Implementing
activities No) the ment |Agency
in Schedule State District [project [ation [Name CSR
VI (Xin - Registration
to the Act. lakhs) |Direci number
(Yes/
No)
1 Promoting and providing (item (i) of No Maharashtra [Nagpur (250 No Dr. Aabaji |CSR00012471
Health care facilities Schedule VI Thatte
Seva Aur
Anusandh
" lan
Sanstha
GLASS WALL SYSTEMS (INDIA) LIMITED.
(Formerly Known As Glass Wall Systems (India) Pvt. Ltd.) _/
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TOTAL

250 | \

(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads

(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable

¢ Nil

: Not Applicable

(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e): X 250 lakhs
(g) Excess amount for set off, if any

Sl. Particulars Amount (X in

No. lakhs)

(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section (25.47)
135(5)

(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year 250

(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [{ii)-(i)] 250

{iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities Nil
of the previous financial years, if any i

(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [{iii)-(iv)] l 250

9. a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: NIL

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding

financial year(s):
(1 (2 |B) (4) (5) (6) () (8) (9)
Sl. Pro | Name Financial | Project | Total Amount Cumulative Status of the
No. | ject | of the Year in duratio | amount | spenton the | amountspent | project-
ID Project | which n allocate | projectin the | at the end of Completed
the d for reporting reporting /Ongoing
project the Financial Year | Financial Year
was project | (in Rs.)
commen {(in Rs.)
ced.
NIL
10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so

created or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year:

a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s): NIL

b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset: NIL

c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is
registered, their address etc: NIL

d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and
location of the capital asset): NIL

GLASS WALL SYSTEMS (INDIA) LIMITED.
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Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit
as per section 135(5):

Not applicable, as the company has spent the required CSR amount.

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors
Glass Wall Systems (India) Private Limited
(Formerly Glass Wall Systems (India) Private Limited)

DIN: 00740482

Date: August 05, 2025
Place: Mumbai
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ANNEXURE- C

Form No. AOC - 2
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related
parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s

length transaction under third proviso thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis:

Not Applicable, as all transactions are at Arm'’s Length basis.

2. Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis:

Sr. | Particulars Details Details Details
No. (1) (2) ; (3)
1 Name (s) of | M.J. Coaters Private GWS Engineers & Yes Systems Private
the related Limited Fabricators Private Limited | Limited
party
2 Nature of Key Management Key Management Personnel| Key Management
relationship | Personnel or their relatives | or their relatives are Personnel or their
are interested interested relatives are interested
3 Nature of Purchase of materials, Job | Job Work/Sub-contract Sale of Duty drawback
contracts/ Work/Sub-contract Services/Other Services
arrangements | Services/Other Services Received

/transactions | Received

Duration of
the contracts/ Terminable at will
arrangements
/ transactions

GLASS WALL SYSTEMS (INDIA) LIMITED.
(Formerly Known As Glass Wall Systems (India) Pvt. Ltd.)
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Salient terms
of the
contracts or
arrangements
or
transactions

Normal Terms

Date of
6 approval by
the Board

May 25, 2024

Amount paid
7 as advances,

if any

NIL

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Glass Wall Systems (India) Private Limited

(Formerly Glass Wall Systems (India) Private Limited)

Jawahar H. Hemrajani \
Chairman and Whole -Time Direct
DIN: 00740482

Date :August 05, 2025
Place :Mumbai
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S R B C & CO LLP 1st Floor, Block B-7, North Side

Nirlon Knowledge Park, Near Hub Mall
Chartered Accountants Off Western Express Highway
Goregaon (E), Mumbai - 400 063, India

Tel: +91 22 6819 8000

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Glass Wall Systems (India) Limited (formerly known as Glass Wall Systems (India) Private
Limited)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audifed the financial statements of Glass Wall Systems (India) Limited (formerly known as Glass Wall
Systems (India) Private Limited) (“the Company”), which comprises the Balance sheet as at March 31, 2025, the
Statement of Profit and Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement
and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, its profit including other comprehensive
income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs), as
specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are independent
of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions
of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Other Information

The Company s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
Director’s Report, but does not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

SR BC & COLLP, aLimited Liability Partnership with LLP Identity No. AAB-4318
Reqd. Office : 22, Camac Street, Block 'B', 3rd Floor, Kolkata-700 016
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Responsibility of Management for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect
to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended, specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error. '

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

*  ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

+  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing
our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

+  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.
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+  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

«  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure 1” a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable. that:

(@ We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books except that the backup of the books of account and other
books and papers maintained in electronic mode has not been maintained on servers physically located
in India on daily basis and for the matters stated in the paragraph below on reporting under Rule 11(g).

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive
Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 , as amended,
specified under section 133 of the Act;

(¢) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2025 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;




SRBC&COLLP

Chartered Accountants

Page 4 of 13
Glass Wall Systems (India) Limited
Independent Auditor’s report on financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

(f) The modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith are as
stated in paragraph (b) above and paragraph (i)(vi) below.

(g) Withrespect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 2” to this
report;

(h) The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the Company for the
year ended March 31, 2025;

(i) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial
statements — Refer Note 32 to the financial statements;

ii.  The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting standards,
for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts — Refer Note 21 to the financial
statements;

iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

iv.  a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have
been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign
entities (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have
been received by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entities (“Funding
Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall,
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

¢) Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

v.  The final dividend paid by the Company during the year in respect of the same declared for the
previous year is in accordance with section 123 of the Act to the extent it applies to payment of
dividend.
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vi.  Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used accounting software
for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility
and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software
except that, audit trail feature is not enablied for certain changes made, if any, using privileged/
administrative access rights, as described in Note 48 to the financial statements. Further, during the
course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with,
in respect of accounting software where the audit trail has been enabled. Additionally, for the
reasons stated in Note 48 to the financial statements, we are unable to comment on whether audit
trail as per the applicable requirements has been preserved by the company as per the statutory
requirements for record retention in respect of the year ended March 31, 2025.

ForSRBC & COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

(=

per Pri\esh Maheshwari
Partner

Membership Number: 118746
UDIN: 25118746BMOLEV7339
Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: August 05, 2025
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Annexure ‘1’ referred to in paragraph under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements” of our report of even date

Re: Glass Wall Systems (India) Limited (“the Company”)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of account
and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we state
that:

@) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(a) (B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangibles assets.

(b) Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management during the year and
no material discrepancies were identified on such verification.

(c) The title deeds of immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is the lessee and
the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) disclosed in Note 4 to the financial
statements included in investment property are held in the name of the Company except certain
immovable properties as indicated below:

Description of Gross Held in Whether Period held | Reason for not
Property carrying name of promoter, — indicate being held in
value director or range, the name of
(Rs. in their where Company
Million) relative or | appropriate
employee
Investment Property | 9.54 Glass Wall No 02-03-2009 | Property is
(Asset held for sale) Systems registered in the
Investment Property 13.52 Glass Wall No 20-02-2008 | name of
Systems erstwhile
Investment Property | 12.49 Glass Wall | No 20-02-2008 | partnership firm
Systems Glass Wall
Systems.

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment or intangible assets during the year
ended March 31, 2025.

(e) There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami
property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

(i)  (a) Physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals during the year by
management except for inventories lying with third parties. In our opinion, the coverage and procedure
of such verification by the management is appropriate. Inventories lying with third parties have been
confirmed by such third parties as at March 31, 2025. There were no discrepancies of 10% or more
noticed, in the aggregate for each class of inventory.
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(iii)

(b) As disclosed in Note 18 to the financial statements, the Company has been sanctioned working capital
limits in excess of Rs. five crores in aggregate from banks during the year on the basis of security of
current assets of the Company. Based on the records examined by us in the normal course of audit of the
financial statements, the quarterly returns/statements filed by the Company with such banks are not in
agreement with the unaudited books of accounts of the Company and the details are as follows:

(Rs. in Million)

Value as per Value as per .
Quarter Ended books of account | quarterly statement Difference
Inventory
30 June 2024 343.84 337.46 6.38
30 September 2024 253.70 246.90 6.80
Trade Receivable
(including Retention)
30 June 2024 911.14 911.65 0.51
30 September 2024 780.23 781.73 -1.50
Trade Payable (including
LC creditors)
30 June 2024 246.11 262.27 -15.76
(a) During the year the Company has provided loans to others as follows:
Loan

Particulars (Rs. in Million)

Aggregate amount granted / provided (principal) during the year
-To Others 2.52

Balance Outstanding as March 31,2025 in respect of above
-To Others 1.43

The Company has not provided advances in the nature of loans, stood guarantee and provided security
to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties.

(b) During the year the terms and conditions of the grant of all loans to other parties are not prejudicial
to the Company's interest. During the year, the Company has not made investments, provided guarantees,
provided security and granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships.

(c) The Company has granted loan during the year to other parties where the schedule of repayment of
principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and the repayment or receipts are regular.
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(d) There are no amounts of loans and advances in the nature of loans granted to companies, firms, limited
liability partnerships or any other parties which are overdue for more than ninety days.

(e) There were no loans or advance in the nature of loan granted to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or any other parties which was fallen due during the year, that have been renewed or
extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdues of existing loans given to the same parties.

(f) The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, either repayable on demand
or without specifying any terms or period of repayment to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(f) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company

(iv)  There are no loans, investments, guarantees and security in respect of which provisions of sections 185
and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are applicable and accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(v)  The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts which are
deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act and the rules made
thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(v) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

(vi)  We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules made
by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the Companies
Act, 2013, related to the construction activities, and are of the opinion that prima facie, the specified
accounts and records have been made and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed
examination of the same.

(a) Undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state
insurance, income-tax, duty of custom, cess and other statutory dues have not generally been regularly
deposited with the appropriate authorities though the delays in deposit have not been serious.

(vii)

(b) The dues of income-tax, sales-tax, value added tax, and other statutory dues have not been deposited
on account of any dispute, are as follows:

y Amount Period to which
Name of the statute Nature of the Rs. in the amount Forum where the
i dues Million) dispute is pending
*) relates
2005-06 to 2014-
Mabharashtra Value Value Added 28994 15, 2015-16, Mabharashtra Sales
Added Tax Act, 2002 Tax Demand ) 2016-17 Tax Tribunal
2017-18
Maharashtra Value Central Sales Tax 15.47 2014-15 and Maharashtra Sales
Added Tax Act, 2002 Demand ’ 2015-16 Tax Tribunal
Joint commissioner
UPGST Act ,2017 Goods and 1.00 2019-20 of State tax
Service Tax (Appeals, UP)
Income Tax Act, Income Tax
1961 Demand 1.61 2017-18 CIT Appeals

*Net of amount paid under protest.
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(viii) The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the books of

(ix)

)

(xi)

(xii)

account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year. Accordingly,
the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of
interest thereon to any lender.

(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

(c) Term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, no funds raised on short-term
basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

(e) The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly, the requirement
to report on clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(f) The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its joint venture.
Hence, the requirement to report on clause (ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer (including debt
instruments) hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares/fully or partially
or optionally convertible debentures during the year under audit and hence, the requirement to report on
clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) No fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

(b) During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been
filed by us in Form ADT - 4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 with the Central Government. Further, as represented to us by the management, no report under
sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been filed by cost auditor in Form ADT
— 4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central
Government. As represented to us by the management, secretarial audit is not applicable to the Company.

(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by the
Company during the year.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, the
requirement to report on clause 3(xii)(a), 3(xii)(b) and 3(xii)(c) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company and hence not commented upon.
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(xiii) Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as required by the
applicable accounting standards. The provisions of section 177 are not applicable to the Company and
accordingly the requirements to report under clause 3(xiii) of the Order insofar as it relates to section 177
of the Act is not applicable to the Company.

(a) The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

(b) The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit report, for the period under
audit have been considered by us.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with
its directors and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(a) The provisions of section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are not applicable
to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

(b) The Company is not engaged in any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by Reserve Bank
of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(d) There are no other Companies part of the Group, hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi)(d)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and immediately preceding financial year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly requirement to

(xix)

report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in Note 46 to the financial statements, ageing and expected
dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans
and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report
that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when
they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not
an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the
facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the
Company as and when they fall due.
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(xx)  (a) In respect of other than ongoing projects, there are no unspent amounts that are required to be

deposited to a fund specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act (the Act), in compliance with second

proviso to sub section 5 of section 135 of the Act. This matter has been disclosed in Note 34 to the
financial statements.

(b) There are no unspent amounts in respect of ongoing projects, that are required to be transferred to a
special account in compliance of transferred provision of sub section (6) of section 135 of Companies
Act. This matter has been disclosed in Note 34 to the financial statements.

ForSRBC & CO LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

e~

per Pritesh Maheshwari
Partner

Membership Number: 118746
UDIN: 25118746BMOLEV7339
Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: August 05, 2025
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF GLASS WALL SYSTEMS (INDIA) LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Com panies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Glass Wall Systems
(India) Limited (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements
of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies
Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to these
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing, as
specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both
issued by ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with
reference to these financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively
in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to these financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls with reference to these financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to these Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
intenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of

& ﬂ]@ ets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit

)
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preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with
reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI

For SRBC & CO LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

(Bt

per Prilfsh Maheshwari
Partner

Membership Number: 118746
UDIN: 25118746BMOLEV7339
Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: August 05, 2025




Glass Wall Systems (India) Limited

(Formerly known as Glass Wall Systems (India) Private Limited)
CIN: U74999MH2010PLC207187

Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2025

ASSETS

Nou-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Capital work-in-progress
Investment properties
Intangible assets

Right-of-use asset

Financial assets

i} Investments

ii} Other financial assets
Deferred tax assets (net}
Income tax assets (net)
Other non-current assets
Total non-current assets

Current assets

Inventories

Financial assets

i} Trade receivables

ii} Cash and cash equivalents
iii) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
iv] Loans

v} Other financial assets
Other current assets

Total current assets

Assets held for sale

TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity

Equity share capital

Other equity

Total equity

Liabilities

Noun-current liabilities
Financial liabilities

i) Borrowings

ii) Other financial liabilities
Provisions

Total non-current liabilities

Current liabilities

Financial liabilities

i) Borrowings

ii) Trade payables
- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro

enterprises and small enterprises

iiij Other financial liabilities

Other current liabilities

Provisions

Current tax liabilities {net}

Total current liabilities

Total liabilities

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Notes 31 March 2025 31 March 2024 1 April 2023
? in Million ¥ in Million ¥ in Million
(Restated)* {Restated)*
3(a) 363.18 359.35 366.57
3(b) 79.28 - -

4 43,72 32.52 140.56
3(c} 3.09 1.48 291
42 89.95 91.03 92.11

5 0.50 0.50 0.50

6 17.11 4.18 3.71

7 23.37 127.60 224.83

8 44.04 44.79 57.20

9 196.84 205.20 309.28

861.08 926.65 1,197.67

10 382.73 274.32 213,22
11 473.37 617.81 729.71
12 3.18 69.11 1.00
13 711.70 232.88 225.82
14 4.30 5.68 4.57

6 43.64 28.49 3.00

9 408.56 420.21 664.31

2,027.48 1,648.50 1,841.63

15 7.17 8.26 -

2,895.73 2,583.41 3,039.30

16 151.84 194.39 194.39

17 1,383.16 946.04 827.51
1,535.00 1,140.43 1,021.90

18 67.29 84.56 100.63
20 1.14 0.57 12.97
21 34.65 27.72 24.85

103.08 112.85 138.45

18 17.35 100.90 370.69
19 98.63 94.07 37.47
19 273.27 284.14 451.85
20 34.82 16.09 93.35
22 785.72 794.53 888.44
21 33.73 39.84 33.32
23 14.13 0.56 3.83

1,257.65 1,330.13 1,878.95
1,360.73 1,442.98 2,017.40
2,895.73 2,583.41 3,039.30

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements. (refer note 2 to 49}

*Refer note 49

As per our report of even date

For SR B C & CO LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

Membership Number: 118746

Place: Mumbai
Date: S5 August 2025

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Glgss Wall Systems (India) Limited

N
wﬁu\ovi
Jawahar H. Hemrajani

Chairman and

Whole Time Director

DIN:-00740482

L2

Shweta Singh
Company Secretary

Membership Number: A44973

Place: Mumbai

Date: 5 August 2025

%2_

Eshan J. Hemrajani
Managing Director and
Chief Executive Officer
DIN:-02987292

&

Sanjay Sawant
Chief Financial Officer




Glass Wall Systems (India) Limited

(Formerly known as Glass Wall Systems {India} Private Limited)
CIN: U74999MH2010PLC207187

Statement of Profit and Loss for the Year ended 31 March 2025

Year ended Year ended
Notes 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
¥ in Million ¥ in Million
{Restated)*

Income
Revenue from operations 24 2,447.61 2,821.71
Other income 25 69.38 58.48
Total income 2,516.99 2.880.19
Expenses
Cost of raw materials and components consumed 26 1,181.21 1,469.94
Employee benefits expense 27 259.69 253.95
Finance costs 28 30.21 84.05
Depreciation and amortisation expense 29 30.74 30.17
Other expenses 30 425.85 665.97
Total expenses 1,927.70 2,504.08
Profit before exceptional items and tax 589.29 376.11
Exceptional items 9 - 161.89
Profit before tax 589.29 214.22
Tax expenses:
! Current tas 46.59 -
{ii} Adjustment of tax relaling to earlier periods 0.47) (4.30}
{ifi) Deferred tax 105.08 98.99
Total tax expense 151.20 94.69
Profit for the year 438.09 119.53
Other comprehensive income/{loss)
Item that will not be reclassified to statement of profit and loss:
(a) Re-measurement (loss)/gain on defined benefit plans (L2, {1.34)
{b) Income tax effect on the above 0.32 0.34
Other comprehensive loss for the year, net of tax {0.97) (1.00)
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 437.12 118.53
Earning per equity share [nominal value of share 22 (31 March 2024 22)] 31
Equity shares
Basic and diluted {2) 5.20 1.12
Equity shares {Class B}
Basic and diluted {2 7.35 1.61
The accompanying notes furm an integrai part of the financial statements. {refer note 2 to 49}
“Refer note 49
As per our report of even date For and on behalf of Board of Directors of

'Glass Wall Systems (India) Limited
\

For SRBC & CO LLP awahar H. Hemrajani Eshan J. Hemrajani

Chartered Accountants Chairman and Managing Director and

ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003 Whole Time Director Chief Executive Officer
DIN:-00740482 DIN:-02987292

per Pritdsh Maheshwari
Partner
Membership Number: 118746

Shweta Singh Sanjay Sawant
Com:pany Secretary Chief Financial Officer
Membership Number: A44973

Place: Mumbai
Date: 5 August 2025

Place: Mumbai
Date: 5 August 2025




Glass Wall Systems (India} Limited

{Formerly known as Glass Wall Systems (India) Private Limited}
CIN: U74999MH2010PLC207187

Statement of Cash Flows for the Year ended 31 March 2025

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

¥ in Million ¥ in Million
(Restated)*

Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax 589.29 214.22
Adjustment for:
Depreciation and amortisation expense 30.74 30.17
Liabilities no longer required written back - {5.52)
Allowance for expected credit loss 8.99 67.26
Allowance for unbilled revenue {0.03} {7.22}
Impairment of advance for property (refer note 9) - 161.89
Impairment for doubtful receivables - 8.81
Bad debts written off - 3.68
(Profit)/loss on sale/discard of property, plant & equipment (0.33) 0.08
{Profit}/loss on sale of investment properties {net) - (26.57)
{Profit) on sale of assets held for sale (net) (10.90}
Bad debts earlier written off now written back (13.89} -
Unrealised exchange difference (net) (0.84} 16.80
Dividend received {0.08} (0.14)
Finance cost 30.21 84.05
Interest income (32.83) {16.28}
Operating profit before working capital changes 600.33 §31.23
Movements in working capital :
Decrease in trade receivables 150.17 37.08
(Increase) /decrease in loans 1.38 {1.10}
(Increase) in inventories {108.41) (61.11)
Decrease in other assets 75.06 142.56
{Increase) in other financial assets (16.49) {25.97)
(Decrease} in trade payables {6.30} {111.12)
{Decrease}/increase in provisions {0.47) 8.05
(Decrease} in other liabilities (8.01) (115.66}
Increase/{decrease} in other financial liabilities 16.74 {74.68}
Cash generated from operations 704.00 329.28
Income tax paid {net of refunds} (32.33) 12.00
Net cash flow generated from operating activities (A) 671.67 341.28
Cash flows from investing activities
{Acquisition) of property, plant & equipment, including capital work-in-progress and capital advance given {net) (91.32) {27.29)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant & equipment 1.30 -
{Acquisition) of intangible assets including capital work-in-progress and capital advances (net) (2.68) {0.63)
Interest received 27.69 16.37
Dividend received 0.08 0.14
(Investment) in margin money deposits {937.49) (172.00}
Proceeds from maturity of margin money deposits 452.21 164.85
{Acquisition) of investment properties including advance given for properties (12.04) {1.00)
Proceeds from sale of investment properties including advance received against sale of properties - 124.75
Proceeds from sale of asset held for sale including advance received against sale of building 11.20 1.10
Net cash flow (used in)/generated from investing activities (B} {551.05) 106.29
Cash flows from financing activities
Buyback of equity shares (42.55}) -
{Repayment} of non-current borrowings (15.72) {10.66)
{Repayment) of current borrowings (85.03) {274.58)
Dividend paid on class B equity shares (13.20) {11.00}
Interest paid {30.05) (83.22)
Net cash flow (used in)j fi ing activities (C) (186.55) {379.46)
Net (decrease}/increase in cash and cash equivalents {A + B + C} {65.93) 68.11
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 69.11 1.00
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 3.18 69.11
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand 0.97 0.21
With banks
-On current accounts 2.21 2.54
-Deposit with original maturity of less than three months - 66.36
Total cash and cash equivalents (refer note 12) 3.18 69.11

Notes:
(i) Disclosure with regard to changes in liabilities arising from financing activities (refer note 38)

(ii) Statement of cash flows has been prepared under the "Indirect method” as set out in the Ind AS 7 " Statement of Cash Flows”

(iii} The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements (refer note 2 to 49}.
(ivi *Refer note 49

As per our report of even date

For SRBC & CO LLP
Chartered Accountants Chairman and
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003 Whole Time Director
DIN:-00740482

s

Shweta Singh
Company Secretary

per Phitesh Maheshwari
Partnel
Membdrship Number: 118746

Place: Mumbai
Date: 5 August 2025

Place: Mumbai
Date: 5 August 2025

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
ss Wall Systems {IndiapLimited

Jawahar H. Hemrajani

Membership Number: A44973

Miy

Eshan J. Hemrajani

Managing Director and
Chief Executive Officer

DIN:-02987292

g 4

Sanjay Sawant

Chief Financial Officer




Glass Wall Systems (India) Limited

(Formerly known as Glass Wall Systems (India) Private Limited)
CIN: U74999MH2010PLC207187

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2025

a. Equity share capital

(i) Equity shares

No. of shares Zin Million
Issued, subscribed and fullv paid up equity shares of €10/-each
As at 1 April 2023 1.49,83,640 149.84
Changes in equity share capital - -
As at 31 March 2024 1,49,83,640 149.84
Changes in equity share capital 2.00,685 2.00
As at 31 March 2025 1,51,84,325 151.84 -
(ii) Equity shares (Class B)

No. of shares ¥ in Million
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up class B equity Shares of 210/ -each
As at 1 April 2023 44,54,595 44,55
Changes in class B equity share capital - -
As at 31 March 2024 44,54,595 44.55
Changes in class B equity share capital (44,54,595) {44.55)

As at 31 March 2025

b. Other equity

Reserves and Surplus

Securities Retained Capital Total other
Premium earnings redemption equity
reserve

¥ in Million T in Million ¥ in Million ¥ in Million
As at 1 April 2023 (Restated)* 505.45 322.06 - 827.51
Profit for the year - 119.53 - 119.53
Other comprehensive income / {loss) for the vear - (1.00) - (1.00}
As at 31 March 2024 (Restated)* 505.45 440.59 - 946.04
Profit for the year - 438.09 - 438.09
Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the vear - (0.97) - (0.97)
Transfer to capital redemption reserve on account of buyback of equity shares - (42.54) 42.54 -
As at 31 March 2025 505.45 835.17 42.54 1,383.16

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements (refer note 2 to 49).

*Refer note 49
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Glass Wall Systems (India) Limited

(Formerly known as Glass Wall Systems {India) Private Limited)

CIN: U74999MH2010PLC207187

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

1 Corporate Information

Glass Wall Systems (India) Limited (formerly known as Glass Wall Systems (India) Private Limited) (“the Company”),
incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, is a leading facade engineering company in India,
engaged in providing comprehensive solutions in architectural facades and glass curtain wall systems. The Company's
registered office is located at 503-504, 5th Floor, A-Wing, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mills Compound, N.M. Joshi
Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai —~ 400013, Maharashtra. The Company holds Corporate Identification Number (CIN)
CIN: U74999MH2010PLC207187 and operates a manufacturing facility located at D-120, Vile Bhagad Industrial Area,
Village Warchiwadi, Taluka Mangaon, Raigad-402308, Maharashtra.

Effective from 28 April 2025, the Company has been converted into a Public Limited Company. Pursuant to the
conversion, its name has been changed from 'Glass Wall Systems (India) Private Limited' to 'Glass Wall Systems (India)
Limited’, and its Corporate Identification Number (CIN) has been updated from U74999MH2010PTC207187 to
U74999MH2010PLC207187.

2 Basis of preparation

a) Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards {Ind AS)
notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards} Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and
presentation requirements of Division II of Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013.The financials for the year ended 31
March 2025 of the company are the first financial statements prepared in compliance with Ind AS. The date of
transition to Ind AS is 1 April 2023. The financial statements upto the year ended 31 March 2024, were prepared in
accordance with the accounting standards notified under the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021

(“Previous GAAP”) and other relevant provisions of the Act. The figures for the year ended 31 March 2024 have now
been restated as per Ind AS to provide comparability. These financials statements have been approved for issue by the
Board of Directors at their meeting held on 5 August 2025. Refer note 49 for information on adoption of Ind AS.

All the amounts included in the said financial statements are reported in Million of Indian Rupees, which is also the
functional currency of the Company, and are rounded to the Million, except per share data and unless stated
otherwise.

b) Material accounting policies
The Company maintains its accounts on accrual basis following historical cost convention, except for certain assets
and liabilities that are measured at fair value in accordance with Ind AS.

The Company has prepared the financial statements on the basis that it will continue to operate as a going concern.

In preparing these Financial Statements, management has made certain judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognized prospectively in the year in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected (refer note
2(w).

Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current / non-current classification.

The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle. The operating cycle is the time between the
acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents.

An asset is treated as current when it is:

« Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

¢ Held primarily for the purpose of trading

* Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

« Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

All liability is current when:

» It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

» It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

« It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

= [ MuMBAI
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ax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.




Glass Wall Systems (India) Limited

{Formerly known as Glass Wall Systems (India} Private Limited)

CIN: U74999MH2010PLC207187

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

c} Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when a performance obligation is satisfied by transfer of
promised goods or services to a customer.

For performance obligation satisfied over time, the revenue recognition is done using input method by measuring the
progress towards complete satisfaction of performance obligation. The progress is measured in terms of a proportion of
actual cost incurred to-date, to the total estimated cost attributable to the performance obligation as it best depicts the
transfer of control that occurs as costs are incurred.

The Company transfers control of a good or service over time and therefore satisfies a performance obligation and
recognises revenue over a period of time if one of the following criteria is met:

(a) the customer simultaneously consumes the benefit of the Company’s performance or
(b) the customer controls the asset as it is being created/ enhanced by the Company’s performance or

(c) there is no alternative use of the asset and the Company has either explicit or implicit right of payment considering
legal precedents,

In all other cases, performance obligation is considered as satisfied at a point in time.

The revenue is recognised to the extent of transaction price allocated to the performance obligation satisfied.
Transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for
transferring goods or services to a customer excluding amounts collected on behalf of a third party. The Company
includes variable consideration as part of transaction price when there is a basis to reasonably estimate the amount of
the variable consideration and when it is probable that a significant reversal of cumulative revenue recognised will not
occur when the uncertainty associated with the variable consideration is resolved. Variable consideration is estimated
using the expected value method or most likely amount as appropriate in a given circumstance. Pavment terms agreed
with a customer are as per business practice and the financing component, if significant, is separated from the
transaction price and accounted as interest income.

(i} Revenue from construction/project related activity

Contract revenue is recognised over time to the extent of performance obligation satisfied and control is transferred to
the customer. Contract revenue is recognised at allocable transaction price which represents the cost of work
performed on the contract plus proportionate margin, using the percentage of completion method. Percentage of
completion is the proportion of cost of work performed to-date, to the total estimated contract costs. Projects which are
completed less than 10% of the total estimated project cost, revenue is recognised to the extent of actual cost incurred.
Determination of revenues under the percentage of completion method necessarily involves making estimates by the
management.

Generally, the Company receives mobilisation advances from its customers. Using the practical expedient in Ind AS
115, the Company does not adjust the promised amount of consideration for the effects of a significant financing
component if it expects, at contract inception, that the period between the transfer of the promised good or service to
the customer and when the customer pays for that good or service will be one year or less.

Contract balances and trade receivables

For contracts where the aggregate of contract cost incurred to date plus recognised profits (or minus recognised losses
as the case may be) exceeds the progress billing, the surplus is shown as contract asset and termed as “Unbilled
revenue”. For contracts where progress billing exceeds the aggregate of contract costs incurred to-date plus recognised
profits {or minus recognised losses, as the case may be), the surplus is shown as contract liability and termed as
“Billing in Excess of Contract Revenue”. Amounts received before the related work is performed are disclosed in the
Balance Sheet as contract liability and termed as “Advances from customer”. The amounts billed on customer for work
performed and are unconditionally due for payment i.e. only passage of time is required before payment falls due, are
disclosed in the Balance Sheet as trade receivables. The amount of retention money held by the customers pending
completion of performance milestone is disclosed as part of contract asset and is reclassified as trade receivables when
it becomes due for payment.

Impairment loss {termed as provision for foreseeable losses in the financial statements) is recognised in profit or loss to
the extent the carrying amount of the contract asset exceeds the remaining amount of consideration that the Company
expects to receive towards remaining performance obligations (after deducting the costs that relate directly te fulfil such
remaining performance obligations). The Company recognises impairment loss (termed as provision for expected credit
loss in the financial statements) on account of credit risk in respect of a contract asset using expected credit loss model
on similar basis as applicable to trade receivables.




Glass Wall Systems (India) Limited

(Formerly known as Glass Wall Systems (India) Private Limited)

CIN: U74999MH2010PLC207187

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

(i} Other operating revenue

Other operational revenue represents income earned from the activities incidental to the business and is recognised
when the performance obligation is satisfied and right to receive the income is established.
(a) Export incentives

Export incentives receivable in the form of duty credit scrips is recognised as other operating income in the Statement
of Profit and Loss in the period in which the export is done or the application is made to the government authorities
and to the extent there is no uncertainty towards its receipt.

(b} Scrap sales

The Company recognises income from scrap sales on accrual basis. However, where the ultimate collection of the same
is uncertain, revenue recognition is postponed to the extent of uncertainty.

(iii) Interest income

Interest income on financial asset is recognised using the effective interest rate method. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the
expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instruments.

(iv} Dividends
Dividend is recognised when the Company's right to receive the payment is established, which is generally when
shareholders approve the dividend.

(v) Other items

Other items of income are accounted as and when the right to receive such income arises and it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably.

d) Property, plant and equipment (PPE)
PPE is recognised when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. PPE is stated at original cost net of tax/duty credits availed, if any,
less accumulated depreciation and cumulative impairment, if any. All directly attributable costs related to the
acquisition of PPE and borrowing costs in case of qualifying assets are capitalised in accordance with the Company’s
accounting policy.

For transition to Ind AS, the company has elected to adopt as deemed cost, the carrying value of PPE measured as per
previous GAAP less accumulated depreciation and cumulative impairment on the transition date of 1 April 2023.

Self constructed asset is capitalised at cost including an appropriate share of overheads. Administrative and other
general overhead expenses that are specifically attributable to construction or acquisition of PPE or bringing the PPE to
working condition are allocated and capitalised as a part of the cost of the PPE.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance cost are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss
during the period in which they are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment which are not ready for intended use as on the date of Balance Sheet are disclosed as
Capital work-in-progress (CWIP). CWIP is stated at cost.

PPE is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain
or loss arising on derecognition is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the same period.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each balance sheet date is
classified as capital advances under “Other Non-Current Assets”.




Glass Wall Systems (India) Limited

(Formerly known as Glass Wall Systems {India) Private Limited)

CIN: U74999MH2010PLC207187

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

e} Depreciation
Depreciation on Property, Plant & Equipment except building is calculated on a written down value basis using the
rates arrived at based on the useful lives estimated by the management. For Building depreciation is calculated on
straight line basis using the rates arrived at based on the useful lives estimated by the management.

Depreciation method is reviewed at each financial year end to reflect the expected pattern of consumption of the future
economic benefits embodied in the asset. The estimated useful life and residual values are also reviewed at each

financial year end and the effect of any change in the estimates of useful life/residual value is accounted on prospective
basis.

Depreciation on additions to/deductions from, owned assets is calculated pro-rata to the period of use.

The Company has used the following rates to provide depreciation on its property, plant & equipment.

Assets Useful lives estimated by the management (years)
Buildings 60
Factory Buildings 10 to 30
Plant & Equipments Sto25
Furniture & Fixtures 3to 10
Electrical Fittings 10
Office Equipments - Computers 3
Office Equipments - Others 3toS
Vehicles 8 to 10

Based on technical estimates, the useful lives of certain Plant & Equipments and Furniture & Fixtures are lower than
those indicated in Schedule II to Companies Act, 2013. The Management believes that these estimated useful lives are
realistic and reflects fair approximation over period which the assets are likely to be used.

Assets Useful lives estimated by the management (years)
Plant & Equipments 5to 10
Furniture & Fixtures 3toS

Leasehold land is amortized on a straight line basis over the period of lease i.e. 90 to 95 years

f) Investment properties
Properties held to earn rentals and/or capital appreciation are classified as investment property.

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, if any.

For transition to Ind AS, the company has elected to adopt as deemed cost, the carrying value of investment property as
per previous GAAP less accumulated depreciation and cumulative impairment as on the transition date of 1 April 2023.

The cost includes the cost of replacing parts and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition
criteria are met. When significant parts of the investment properties are required to be replaced at intervals, the
Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. All other repair and maintenance costs are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

The Company depreciates building component of investment property over 60 years from the date of original purchase.

Though the Company measures investment properties using cost-based measurement, the fair value of investment
properties are disclosed in the notes. Fair values are determined based on an annual evaluation performed by an
accredited external independent valuer.

Investment properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed of or when they are permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from their disposal. The difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognised in profit or loss in the period of derecognition. In
determining the amount of consideration from the derecognition of investment properties the Company considers the
effects of variable consideration, existence of a significant financing component, non-cash consideration, and
consideration payable to the buyer (if any).

Transfers are made to (or from) investment properties only when there is a change in use. Transfers between
investment property, owner-occupied property and inventories do not change the carrying amount of the property
transferred and they do not change the cost of that property for measurement or disclosure purposes.

MUMBAI
400013




Glass Wall Systems (India) Limited

(Formerly known as Glass Wall Systems (India) Private Limited)

CIN: U74999MH2010PLC207187

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

g} Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are recognised when it is probable that the future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset
will flow to the Company and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. Intangible assets are stated at original cost
net of tax/duty credits availed, if any, less accumulated amortisation and cumulative impairment. All directly
attributable costs and other administrative and other general overhead expenses that are specifically attributable to
acquisition of intangible assets are allocated and capitalised as a part of the cost of the intangible assets.

Intangible assets not ready for the intended use on the date of the Balance Sheet are disclosed as “Intangible assets
under development”,

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, the
intangible assets have finite useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Amortisation is computed using the Straight line method over the expected useful life of
intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are amortised on straight-line basis over the estimated useful life not exceeding 5
years. The method of amortisation and useful life are reviewed at the end of each financial year with the effect of any
changes in the estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

h} Impairment of assets
As at the end of each financial year, the carrying amounts of PPE, investment property and intangible assets are
reviewed to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If such
indication exists, PPE, investment property and intangible assets are tested for impairment so as to determine the
impairment loss, if any.

Impairment loss is recognised when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. Recoverable
amount is determined:

(i) in the case of an individual asset, at the higher of the fair value less costs of disposal and the value-in-use; and

(ii} in the case of a cash generating unit (the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates independent cash
flows), at the higher of the cash generating unit’s fair value less costs of disposal and the value-in-use.

(The amount of value-in-use is determined as the present value of estimated future cash flows from the continuing use
of an asset, which may vary based on the future performance of the Company and from its disposal at the end of its
useful life. For this purpose, the discount rate (pre-tax) is determined based on the weighted average cost of capital of
the Company suitably adjusted for risks specified to the estimated cash flows of the asset).

If recoverable amount of an asset (or cash generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, such deficit
is recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss as impairment loss and the carrying amount of the asset
(or cash generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.

When an impairment loss recognised earlier is subject to full or partial reversal, the carrying amount of the asset (or
cash generating unit), except impairment loss allocated to goodwill, is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, such that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss is recognised for the asset {or cash generating unit) in prior years. A reversal
of an impairment loss (other than impairment loss allocated to goodwill) is recognised immediately in the Statement of
Profit and Loss.

i) Employee Benefits

(i) Defined contribution plans

In accordance with Indian Law, eligible employees receive benefits from Provident Fund, Employee State Insurance
Scheme and Labour welfare fund which is defined contribution plan. In case of Provident fund, both the employee and
employer make monthly contributions to the plan, which is administrated by the Government Authorities, each equal
to the specific percentage of employee's basic salary. The Company has no further obligation under the plan beyond its
monthly contributions. Obligation for contributions to the plan is recognised as an employee benefit expense in the
Statement of Profit and Loss when incurred.




Glass Wall Systems {India) Limited

(Formerly known as Glass Wall Systems (India) Private Limited)

CIN: U74999MH2010PLC207187

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

k) Financial instruments

Financial assets and/or financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes party to a contract embodying
the related financial instruments. All financial assets, financial liabilities and financial guarantee contracts are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables not containing a significant financing component are initially
measured at transaction price. Transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to
or deducted from as the case may be, the fair value of such financial assets or liabilities, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss.

A financial asset and a financial liability is offset and presented on net basis in the balance sheet when there is a
current legally enforceable right to set-off the recognised amounts and it is intended to either settle on net basis or to
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

(i) Financial assets:

A. All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety either at amortised cost or at fair value as
follows:

1. Investments in debt instruments that are designated as fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) - at fair value. Debt
instruments at FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments, if any, and all changes are recognised in profit or
loss.

2. Investments in debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised cost
(unless the same designated as fair value through profit or loss):

* The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows;
+ The contractual terms of instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

3. Investment in debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income [FVTOCI] (unless the same are designated as fair value through profit or loss)

« The asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assets; and

« The contractual terms of instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

4. Investment in equity instruments issued by subsidiary, associate and joint venture companies are measured at cost
less impairment.

5. Investments in equity instruments issued by other than subsidiaries are classified as at FVTPL, unless the related
instruments are not held for trading and the Company irrevocably elects on initial recognition to present subsequent
changes in fair value in Other Comprehensive Income.

6. Trade receivables, security deposits, cash and cash equivalents, employee and other advances — at amortised cost.

B. For financial assets that are measured at FVTOCI, income by way of interest and dividend, provision for impairment
and exchange difference, if any, (on debt instrument} are recognised in profit or loss and changes in fair value (other
than on account of above income or expense) are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in other
equity. On disposal of debt instruments at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in other equity
is reclassified to profit or loss. In case of equity instruments at FVTOCI, such cumulative gain or loss is not reclassified
to profit or loss on disposal of investments.

C. A financial asset is primarily derecognised when:

1. the right to receive cash flows from the asset has expired, or

2. the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a pass-through arrangement; and (a) the
Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the differenice between the carrying amount at the date of
derecognition and the consideration received is recognised in profit or loss.




Glass Wall Systems (India) Limited

{Formerly known as Glass Wall Systems (India) Private Limited)

CIN: U74999MH2010PLC207187

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

(ii) Defined benefit plans (Gratuity)

In accordance with applicable Indian Law, the Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan (the
Gratuity Plan) covering eligible employees. The Gratuity Plan provides a lumsump payment to vested employees, at
retirement or termination of employment, and amount based on respective last drawn salary and the years of
employment with the Company. The Company's net obligation in respect of the Gratuity Plan is calculated by
estimating the amount of future benefits that the employees have earned in return of their service in the current and
prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present value. Any unrecognised past service cost and the fair
value of plan assets are deducted. The discount rate is yield at reporting date on risk free government bonds that have
maturity dates approximating the terms of the Company's obligation. The calculation is performed annually by a
qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method. When the calculation results in a benefit to the Company, the
recognised asset is limited to the total of any unrecognised past service cost and the present value of the economic
benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reduction in future contribution to the plan.

The Company recognises all remeasurements of net defined benefit liability/asset directly in other comprehensive
income and presented within equity.

iiij} Compensated absences

Accumulated compensated absences, which are expected to be availed or encashed within 12 months from the end of
the year are treated as short term employee benefits. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the
additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated as on the
reporting date. The Company presents the entire compensated absences as a short term provisions, since employee has
an unconditional right to avail the leave at any time during the year.

iv) Short term benefits

Employee benefits such as salaries, wages, short-term compensated absences, bonus, ex-gratia and performance-
linked rewards falling due wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-term employee
benefits and are expensed in the period in which the employee renders the service.

j) Leases
The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract contains a lease.
(i) As a Lessee

Assets taken on lease are accounted as right-of-use assets and the corresponding lease liability is recognised at the
lease commencement date.

Initially the right-of-use asset is measured at cost which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for
any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of
costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located,
as reduced by any lease incentives received.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments, discounted using the Company’s
incremental borrowing rate. It is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in
an index or a rate, or a change in the estimate of the guaranteed residual value, or a change in the assessment of
purchase, extension or termination option. When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding
adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The right-of-use asset is measured by applying cost model i.e. right-of-use asset at cost less accumulated depreciation
and cumulative impairment, if any. The right-of-use asset is depreciated using the straight-line method from the
commencement date to the end of the lease term or useful life of the underlying asset whichever is earlier.

Lease payments associated with following leases are recognised as expense on straight-line basis:
{(a) Low value leases up to ¥ 0.3 Million; and
(b} Leases which are short-term of 12 months or less

(ii) As a Lessor

Assets given on lease are classified either as operating lease or as finance lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease if
it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying asset. Asset held under
finance lease is initially recognised in balance sheet and presented as a receivable at an amount equal to the net
investment in the lease. Finance income is recognised over the lease term, based on a pattern reflecting a constant
periodic rate of return on Company’s net investment in the lease. A lease which is not classified as a finance lease is an
operating lease.

The Company recognises lease payments in case of assets given on operating leases as income on a straight-line basis.
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D. Impairment of financial assets: Impairment loss on trade receivables is recognised using expected credit loss model,
which involves use of a simplified provision matrix approach constructed on the basis of historical credit loss
experience as permitted under Ind AS 109 and is adjusted for forward looking information. Impairment loss on
investments is recognised when the carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. For all other financial assets,
expected credit losses are recognised based on the difference between the contractual cash flows and all the expected
cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate. ECLs are measured at an amount equal to 12-month
expected credit losses or at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on the financial asset
has increased significantly since initial recognition.

(ii) Financial liabilities:

A. Financial liabilities, including derivatives and embedded derivatives, which are designated for measurement at
FVTPL are subsequently measured at fair value. Financial guarantee contracts are subsequently measured at the
amount of impairment loss allowance or the amount recognised at inception net of cumulative amortisation, whichever
is higher. All other financial liabilities including loans and borrowings are measured at amortised cost using Effective
Interest Rate (EIR) method.

B. A financial liability is derecognised when the related obligation expires or is discharged or cancelled.

(iii) The Company designates certain hedging instruments, such as derivatives, embedded derivatives and in respect of
foreign currency risk, certain non-derivatives, as either fair value hedges, cash flow hedges or hedges of net
investments in foreign operations. Hedges of foreign exchange risk on firm commitments are accounted as cash flow
hedges.

A. Fair value hedges: Changes in fair vatue of the designated portion of derivatives that qualify as fair value hedges are
recognised in profit or loss immediately, together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability that
are attributable to the hedged risk.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised, or when it
no longer qualifies for hedge accounting. The fair value adjustment to the carrying amount of the hedged item arising
from the hedged risk is amortised to profit or loss from that date.

B. Cash flow hedges: In case of transaction related hedges, the effective portion of changes in the fair value of
derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity as ‘hedging reserve’. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately
in profit or loss. Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity relating to
the effective portion, are reclassified to profit or loss in the periods when the hedged item affects profit or loss, in the
same head as the hedged item. The effective portion of the hedge is determined at the lower of the cumulative gain or
loss on the hedging instrument from inception of the hedge and the cumulative change in the fair value of the hedged
item from the inception of the hedge and the remaining gain or loss on the hedging instrument is treated as ineffective
portion.

In case of time period related hedges, the premium element and the spot element of a forward contract is separated and
only the change in the value of the spot element of the forward contract is designated as the hedging instrument.
Similarly, wherever applicable, the foreign currency basis spread is separated from the financial instrument and is
excluded from the designation of that financial instrument as the hedging instrument in case of time period related
hedges. The changes in the fair value of the premium element of the forward contract or the foreign currency basis
spread of the financial instrument is accumulated in a separate component of equity as “cost of hedging reserve”. The
changes in the fair value of such premium element or foreign currency basis spread are reclassified to profit or loss as a
reclassification adjustment on a straight-line basis over the period of the forward contract or the financial instrument.

The cash flow hedges are allocated to the forecast transactions on gross exposure basis. Where the hedged forecast
transaction results in the recognition of a non-financial asset, such gains/losses are transferred from hedge reserve
(but not as reclassification adjustment) and included in the initial measurement cost of the non-financial asset.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised, or when it
no longer qualifies for hedge accounting. Any gain or loss recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity at that time remains in equity and is recognised when the forecast transaction is ultimately recognised in
profit or loss. When a forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the gain or loss accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.
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{iv) Compound financial instruments issued by the Company which can be converted into fixed number of equity
shares at the option of the holders irrespective of changes in the fair value of the instrument are accounted by
recognising the liability and the equity components separately. The liability component is initially recognised at the fair
value of a comparable liability that does not have an equity conversion option. The equity component is initially
recognised at the difference between the fair value of the compound financial instrument as a whole and the fair value
of the liability component. The directly attributable transaction costs are allocated to the liability and the equity
components in proportion to their initial carrying amounts. Subsequent to initial recognition, the liability component of
the compound financial instrument is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The equity
component of a compound financial instrument is not remeasured subsequently.

1) Inventories

Raw materials are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined using weighted average cost
basis. Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

m) Cash and bank balances

Cash and bank balances include fixed deposits, margin money deposits, earmarked balances with banks and other
bank balances which have restrictions on repatriation. Short term and liquid investments being subject to more than
insignificant risk of change in value, are not included as part of cash and cash equivalents.

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprises of cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with
an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as
defined above, as they are considered an integral part of the Company's cash management.

n) Foreign currencies
The functional currency and presentation currency of the Company is Indian Rupee.
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at their functional currency spot rates at the
date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of
exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in the statement of profit
and loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency
are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on
translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on
the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in
OCI or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or loss, respectively).

o) Segment information

Geographical segment are reported in manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating
Decision Maker.

The Board of Directors of the Company has been identified as the Chief Operating Decision Maker which reviews and
assesses the financial performance and makes the strategic decisions.

p) Taxes on income
Tax expense comprises current tax expense and deferred tax
(i} Current income tax
Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where the Company operates and generates taxable
income
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Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction
either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and considers whether it is probable that a
taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment. The Company reflects the effect of uncertainty for each
uncertain tax treatment by using either most likely method or expected value method, depending on which method
predicts better resolution of the treatment.

(1) Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet approach on temporary differences between the tax base of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and
any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused
tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is
realised, or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at
the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction
either in OCI or directly in equity

The Company offsets deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set
off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income
taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity which intends either to settle current tax
liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST/ value added taxes paid, except:

- When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in which
case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, as
applicable;

- When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included
The net amount of tax recovarable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of other current/non-
current assets/ liabilities in the balance sheet.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent asset

Provisions are recognised only when:

(i) the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event; and

(ii) it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; and
(ili) a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation and when the effect of time value
of money is material, the carrying amount of the provision is the present value of those cash flows. Reimbursement
expected in respect of expenditure required to settle a provision is recognised only when it is virtually certain that the
reimbursement will be received.

Contingent liability is disclosed in case of:
(i} a possible obligation arising from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity; or

(ii) a present obligation arising from past events where:
- it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation;
or

- the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.
Contingent assets are disclosed where an inﬂow of economic beneﬁts is probable.

oL
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r) Commitments
Commitments are future liabilities for contractual expenditure, classified and disclosed as follows:
(i) estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for;
(ii) uncalled liability on shares and other investments partly paid;
(iii) other non-cancellable commitments, if any, to the extent they are considered material and relevant in the opinion of
management.

Other commitments related to sales/procurements made in the normal course of business are not disclosed to avoid
excessive details.

s} Assets held for sale
Non-current assets or disposal groups comprising of assets and liabilities are classified as ‘held for sale’ when all of the
following criteria’s are met:
(i) Decision has been made to sell.
(ii) The assets are available for immediate sale in its present condition.
(iii) The assets are being actively marketed and
(iv) Sale has been agreed or is expected to be concluded within 12 months of the Balance Sheet date.
These are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sale. Costs to sell are the

incremental costs directly attributable to the disposal of assets (disposal group), excluding finance cost and income tax
expenses.

t} Statement of cash flows
Statement of Cash Flows is prepared segregating the cash flows into operating, investing and financing activities. Cash

flow from operating activities is reported using indirect method, adjusting the profit before tax excluding exceptional
items for the effects of:

(i) changes during the period in inventories and operating receivables and payables;

(i) non-cash items such as depreciation, provisions, unrealised foreign currency gains and losses; and

(iii) all other items for which the cash effects are investing or financing cash flows.

Cash and cash equivalents (including bank balances) shown in the Statement of Cash Flows exclude items which are
not available for general use as at the date of Balance Sheet.

u) Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed using the net profit or loss after tax and weighted average number of shares
outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share is computed using the net profit or loss after tax and weighted average number of equity
and potential equity shares outstanding during the year, except where the result would be anti-dilutive.

v) Government Grant
Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received, and all attached
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic
basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed. When the grant
relates to an asset, it is recognised as income in equal amounts over the expected useful life of the related asset.

w) Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions
The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future
periods. Other disclosures relating to the Company’s exposure to risks and uncertainties includes:
« Capital management Note 43(e}
 Financial risk management objectives and policies Note 43 &/
» Sensitivity analyses disclosures Notes 43 (a)

; { MUMBAI
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(i) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

Management reviews the useful lives of property, plant and equipment at least once a year. Such lives are dependent
upon an assessment of both the technical lives of the assets, and also their likely economic lives based on various
internal and external factors including relative efficiency, the operating conditions of the asset, anticipated
technological changes, historical trend of plant load factor, historical planned and scheduled maintenance. This
reassessment may result in change in depreciation and amortisation expected in future periods. It is possible that the
estimates made based on existing experience are different from the actual outcomes and could cause a material
adjustment to the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment. For the relative size of the Company’s property,
plant and equipment (refer note 2(d).

(ii) Provisions and Contingencies

Provisions and liabilities are recognised in the period when it becomes probable that there will be a future outflow of
funds resulting from past events that can reasonably be estimated. The timing of recognition requires application of
judgement to existing facts and circumstances which may be subject to change (refer note 18 to 23). In the normal
course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigation and other claims against the Company. Potential
liabilities that are possible but not probable of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits are treated as
contingent liabilities. Such liabilities are disclosed in the notes but are not recognised (refer note 32).

{iii) Income Taxes

Significant judgements are involved in determining the provision for income taxes, including amount expected to be
paid/recovered for uncertain tax positions. In assessing the realisability of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax
credits, the management considers convincing evidence about availability of sufficient taxable income against which
such unused tax credits can be utilised. The amount of the deferred income tax assets considered realisable, however,
could change if estimates of future taxable income changes in the future (refer note 41).

(iv) Defined benefit plans

The cost of defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment benefits are determined using actuarial valuations.
An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future.
These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the
complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to
changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. The mortality rate is based on
publicly available mortality tables for India. Those mortality tables tend to change only at interval in response to
demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates.
(refer note 40).

{v) Expected credit loss

The measurement of expected credit loss on financial assets is based on the evaluation of collectability and the
management’s judgement considering external and internal sources of information. A considerable amount of
judgement is required in assessing the ultimate realisation of the loans / receivables having regard to, the past
collection history of each party and ongoing dealings with these parties, and assessment of their ability to pay the debt
on designated dates (refer note 43(c)(i)).

(vi) Cost to complete

Revenue from construction contracts is recognised based on the stage of completion determined with reference to the
actual costs incurred up to reporting date on the construction contract and the estimated cost to complete the project.
The percentage-of -completion method places considerable importance on accurate estimates to the extent of progress
towards completion and may involve estimates on the scope of deliveries and services required for fulfilling the
contractually defined obligations. These significant estimates include total contract costs, total contract revenues,
contract risks, including technical, political and regulatory risks, and other judgments. The Company re-assesses these
estimates on periodic basis and makes appropriate revisions accordingly.

(vii) DLP estimation

DLP (Defect Liability Period) is a specified period after the completion of a construction project during which the
contractor is responsible for rectifying any defects or faults that may arise. Although DLP is project specific, it is
generally varying from 12 months to 24 months depending on the contractual condition. During the DLP, the
contractor carries out repairs and fix any defects from his own cost which appear in the workmanship, so that, at the
end of the DLP, all works are as per specifications of the contract. Accordirgly, the company makes provision of 1% of
the revenue recognised from the construction contracts during the reporting period.
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First time adoption of Ind AS

The company has prepared opening Balance Sheet as per Ind AS as of 1 April 2023 (transition to Ind AS) by recognising
all assets and liabilities whose recognition is required by Ind AS, derecognising items of assets or liabilities which are
not permitted to be recognised by Ind AS, reclassifying items from previous GAAP to Ind AS as required, and applying
Ind AS to measure the recognised assets and liabilities (refer note 49). The exemptions availed by the company under
Ind AS 101 for the first Ind AS financial statements as at 31 March 2025 are as follows:

{i) The company has adopted the carrying value determined in accordance with previous GAAP for all of its property
plant & equipment, Investment properties and intangible assets as deemed cost of such assets at the transition date.

(ii) Estimates at each balance sheet date are consistent with those made for the same dates in accordance with
previous GAAP.

¥) Recent accounting pronouncement

Amendment in Ind AS and its effective date:

The Company has adopted, with effect from April 1, 2024, the following new and revised standards and

interpretations. Their adoption has not had any significant impact on the amounts reported in these financial
statements.

(i) Amendments to Ind AS 117 “Insurance Contracts"

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has notified IND AS 117 which requires limited improvements to accounting by
insurers for insurance contracts and disclosures that identifies and explains the amounts in an insurer ‘s financial
statements arising from insurance contracts and helps users of those financial statements understand the amount,
timing and uncertainty of future cash flows from insurance contracts.

(i) Amendments to Ind AS 116 "Leases" - Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback

The MCA notified the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Second Amendment Rules, 2024, which amend Ind AS
116, Leases, with respect to Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback. The amendment specifies the requirements that a
seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease liability arising in a sale and leaseback transaction, to ensure the seller-lessee
does not recognise any amount of the gain or loss that relates to the right of use it retains. The amendment is effective
for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2024 and must be applied retrospectively to sale and
leaseback transactions entered into after the date of initial application of Ind AS 116.

{iii) The Ministry of Corporate Affairs notified amendments to Ind AS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange
Rates to specify how an entity should assess whether a currency is exchangeable and how it should determine a spot
exchange rate when exchangeability is lacking. The amendments also require disclosure of information that enables
users of its financial statements to understand how the currency not being exchangeable into the other currency
affects, or is expected to affect, the entity’s financial performance, financial position and cash flows.

The amendments had no impact on the Company’s financial statements. There are no other standards, changes in
standards and interpretations that are not in force up to reporting period that the Company expects to have a material
impact arising from its application in its financial statements.
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3{a) Property, plant & equipment
(¥ in Million)
Building Plant & Furniture 8 Electrical Office Vehicles Total
machinery fixtures fittings equipment
Deemed cost
At 1 April 2023 298.34 54.58 3.76 7.23 2.20 0.46 366.57
Additions - 12.99 0.71 - 330 1.28 18.28
Disposals - - - - - (0.08) (0.08)
At 31 March 2024 298.34 67.57 4.47 7.23 5.50 1.66 384.77
Additions - 26.65 0.07 - 2.86 2.97 32.55
Disposals - (0.95) - - - (0.32) (1.27)
At 31 March 2025 298.34 93.27 4.54 7.23 8.36 4.31 416.05
Depreciation
At 1 April 2023 - - - - - - -
Charge for the year 7.84 12.89 1.09 1.89 1.37 034 25.42
Disposals - - - - - - -
At 31 March 2024 7.84 12.89 1.09 1.89 1.37 0.34 25.42
Charge for the vear 7.72 15.17 0.67 1.39 218 0.62 27.75
Dispasuls - 0.30) - - - - (0.30)
At 31 March 2025 15.56 27.76 1.76 3.28 3.55 0.96 52.87
Net block
At 1 April 2023 298.34 54.58 3.76 7.23 2.20 0.46 366.57
At 31 March 2024 290.50 54.68 3.38 5.34 4.13 1.32 359.35
At 31 March 2025 282.78 65.51 2.78 3.95 4.81 3.35 363.18
3(b) Capital work-in-progress
(i) Capital work-in-progress movement during the vear
31 March 31 March 1 April
2025 2024 2023
¥ in Million ¥ in Million ¥ in Million
Opening - - -
Addition during the vear 79.28 - -
Capitalised during the vear - - -
Closing 79.28 - -
{ii) Capital work-in-progress ageing schedule
As at 31 March 2025
Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years  More than 3 Total
Projects in progress 79.28 - - -
79.28 - - - -
As at 31 March 2024
Less than 1 1-2 years 2.3 years More than 3 Total
Projects in progress - - - - -
As at 1 April 2023
Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total
Projects in progress - - - - -
3(c) Intangible assets
(% in Million}
Computer Total
software
Deemed cost
At 1 April 2023 2.91 2.91
Additions 0.64 0.64
Disposals - -
At 31 March 2024 3.55 3.55
Additions 2.68 2.68
Disposals - -
At 31 March 2025 6.23 6.23
Depreciation
At 1 April 2023 - -
Charge for the year 2.07 2.07
Disposals - -
At 31 March 2024 2.07 2.07
Charge for the vear 1.07 1.07
Disposals - -
At 31 March 2025 3.14 3.14
—
L f'ﬂ'et ock
... ALA Apyil 2023 2.91 2.91
At 31 March 2024 1.48 1.48
At 31 Maich 2025 3.09 3.09
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Investment properties
(¥ in Million}

Land Building Total
Deemed cost
At 1 April 2023 - 140.56 140.56
Additions - - -
Disposals - (98.77) {98.77)
Reclassification to asset held for sale# - 8.42) {8.42)
At 31 March 2024 - 33.37 33.37
Additions 12.05 - 12.05
Disposals - - -
At 31 March 2025 12.05 33.37 45.42
Depreciation
At 1 April 2023 - - -
Charge for the year - 1.60 1.60
Disposals - {0.59) (0.59)
Reclassification to asset held for sale# - {0.16) {0.16)
At 31 March 2024 - 0.85 0.85
Charge for the year - 0.85 0.85
Disposals - - -
At 31 March 2025 - 1.70 1.70
Net Block
At 1 April 2023 - 140.56 140.56
At 31 March 2024 - 32.52 32.52
At 31 March 2025 12.05 31.67 43.72

# During the previous year ended 31 March 2024, cost of buildings aggregating to % 8.42 Million and depreciation aggregating to ¥ 0.16 Million were classified from
investment properties to assets held for sale.

Notes :
(1) Investment properties with a carrying amount of Z Nil {31 March 2024:Z Nil , 1 April 2023: T 8.42 Million) are subject to first charge to secure the Company’s cash
credit loans. The said facilities have been surrendered during the year, and all associated charges have been released.

(2} Details of title deeds of immovable properties not held in name of the Company:
Relevant line item in the Balance Description of |{Gross carrying| Title deeds Whether title Property held Reason for not
sheet item of property value (in held in the |deed holder is | since which date | being held in the
Million) as at name of a promoter, name of the
31 March 25 director or company
relative of
promoter
/director or
empl.yee of
promoter
/director
Investment properties (Asset held for | Flat 2101-Raheja 9.54 M/s Glass Wall No 02-03-2009 Refer note***
sale} Willows at Systems
Kandivali, {erstwhile
Mumbai partnership
firm converted
into Company)
Investment properties Nirmal office No. 13.52 M/s Glass Wall No 20-02-2008 Refer note***
718 at Mulund, Systems
Mumbai (erstwhile
partnership
firm converted
into Company)
Investment properties Nirmal office No. 12.49 M/s Glass Wall No 20-02-2008 Refer note***
719 at Systems
Mulund,Mumbai {erstwhile
partnership
firm converted
into Company)

Note:

“*The Assets represents immovable properties used by the Company since its Purchases. At the time of purchase of the said properties, the constitution of the business
was Partnership Firm. The Company is formed by Conversion of Partnership Firm undet Chapter IX of the Companies Act 1956 in the year 2010. The properties are
registered in the name of erstwhile Partnership Firm M/s Glass Wall Systems. As stated in section 575 of Companies Act,1956, If the constitution of the partnership firm
is changed into that of a company by registering it under Chapter IX of the Companies Act 1956, there shall be statutory vesting of the title of all the property of the
previous firm in the newly incorporated company without any need for a separate conveyance.




Glass Wall Systems (India} Limited

(Formerly known as Glass Wall Systems (India) Private Limited)

CIN: U74999MH2010PLC207187

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

(3) Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 40 “Investment Property”
(i} Amount recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss for investment property:

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

? in Million ? in Million
{a) Rental income derived from investment property 277 0.63
(b} Direct operating expenses pertaining from investment property that generated rental income {ir.2) -
{c} Direct operating expenses pertaining from investment property that did not generate rental income - -
Profit arising from investment properties before depreciation and indirect expenses 2.48 0.63
Less: Depreciation (0.44) {0.02)
Profit arising from investment properties before indirect expenses* 2.04 0.61
*0.00 indicates value less than  0.01 Million
(i) Details with respect to fair valuation of Investment property:
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 1 April 2023
¥ in Million ¥ in Million 2 in Million
Fair valuation by*:
Independent registered valuers# 148.62 125.02 238.46
Total fair value 148.62 125.02 238.46

#Independent valuer as defined under rule 2 of Companies (Registered Valuers and Valuation) Rules, 2017
*Above valuation is based on government rates, market research, market trend and comparable values as considered appropriate.
The fair value measurement is categorised in level 2 fair value hierarchy
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Investments

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

1 April 2023

Z in Million ¥ in Million % in Million

Unquoted (Fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL}))
9,999 (31 March 2024: 9,999, 1 April 2023: 9,999} Equity shares of 2 50 each fully paid up in TJSB 0.50 0.50 0.50
Sahakari Bank Limited
Nil (31 March 2024: ¥ Nil, 1 April 2023: 5,000) Equity shares of Z 10 each fully paid up in Indus Facade - - 0.05
Private Limited*
Less:-Impairment in value of investment of Indus Facade Private Limited {refer note below) - - (0.05)

0.50 0.50 0.50

*The Company has provided an impairment of Z Nil (31 March 2024: ¥ Nil, 1 April 2023: Z 0.05 Million) on FVTPL securities. The impairment on FVTPL financial
assets is recognised in statement of profit and loss. During the previous year ended 31 March 2024, the entity i.e. Indus Fagade Private Limited against which the

impairment were provided on 1 April 2023 has been struck off w.e.f 30 December 2023.

Details of quoted /unquoted investments:

31 March 2025 31 March 2024 1 April 2023
¥ in Million ¥ in Million T in Million

(a) Aggregate amount of quoted investments and market value thereof;
Book value - - -
Market value - - -
(L) Aggregate amount of unquoted investments;
Book value 0.50 0.50 0.55
(c} Aggregate amount of Impairment in value of investments - - {0.05)

Other financial assets
(Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated)

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

1 April 2023

¥ in Million { in Million T in Million

Non-current
Security deposits 5.51 4.18 3.71
Margin money deposits {Includes interest accrued ¥ 0.13 Million (31 March 2024: Z Nil, 11.60 - -
1 April 2023: T Nilj)*

17.11 4.18 3.71
Current
Security deposits 0.41 0.29 0.36
Government grant receivable 13.75 - -
Others# 29.48 28.20 2.64

43.64 28.49 3.00
* Margin money deposits were secured against the overdraft facility (refer note 18).
#0thers includes duty drawback and RoDTEP receivables, IGST receivables from custom and other recoverable.
Deferred tax assets

31 March 2025 31 March 2024 1 April 2023
% in Million ¥ in Million % in Million

Deferred tax asset
Items disallowed u/s 43(b) of Income Tax Act,1961
- Employee benefits 11.37 10.24 8.75
- MSME 43(b)(h} 16.28 13.23 -
Expected credit loss 22.28 20.01 4.90
Capital loss 7.19 8.73 14.95
Business Loss and unabsorbed depreciation - 107.46 226.44
Gross deferred tax asset 57.12 159.67 255.04
Deferred tax liability
Property, plant & equipment 33.75 32.07 30.21
Gross deferred tax liability 33.75 32.07 30.21
Net deferred tax assets 23.37 127.60 224.83
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(Formerly known as Glass Wall Systems (India) Private Limited)

CIN: U74999MH2010PLC207187

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

Income tax assets (net)

31 March 2025 31 March 2024 1 April 2023

% in Million % in Million % in Million
Non-current
Advance income tax (Net of provision for taxation) 44.04 44.79 57.20
44.04 44.79 57.20

The Company offsets income tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable rights to setoff income tax assets and current tax liabilities

Other assets

31 March 2025 31 March 2024 1 April 2023

< in Million ¥ in Million ¥ in Million

Non-current

Capital advances 4.12 9.10 -
Advance for property (refer note (i) below) 162.89 162.89 161.89
Less:- Impairment for advance for property {161.89) {161.89) -
Prepaid expense 0.71 0.23 0.34
Contract assets

- Retention money 191.01 254.87 147.05

196.84 265.20 309.28

Current

Prepaid expense 33.33 5.95 5.24
Contract assets

- Unbilled revenue 75.58 158.08 362.62
Less:- Allowance for expected credit loss (refer note (ii) below) - (0.03) (7.25)
- Retention money 92.15 98.04 120.14
Advance to suppliers 70.76 66.65 63.55
Balances with government authorities 139.55 94.33 111.17
Less:- Impairment for doubtful receivables (2.81) (2.81) -
Others* - 6.00 8.84
Less:- Impairment for doubtful receivables - (6.00) -
408.56 420.21 664.31

*Others include advances recoverable in kind

Note:

(i) Advance for property includes property with a carrying amount of ¥ 160.67 Million (31 March 2024: 2 160.67 Million, 1 April 2023: Z 160.67 Million) against
which insolvency petition was filed against the developer of the proposed property which has been admitted by NCLT in February 2024.

The Management has fully provided advance of ¥ 161.89 Million given for properties and disclosed under exceptional Items in the Statement of Profit and Loss for
the vear ended 31 March 2024.

(ii) The reconciliation of ECL on unbilled revenue is as follows:

31 March 2025 31 March 2024 1 April 2023

T in Million X in Million % in Million
Balance as at 1 April 0.03 7.25 34.49
Changes in loss allowance for expected credit loss:
- Provision/ {reversal) of allowance for expected credit loss (0.03) (7.22) {27.24)
- Write off as bad debts - - -
Balance as at 31 March - 0.03 7.25

Inventories (valued at lower of cost and net realizable value)

31 March 2025 31 March 2024 1 April 2023

¥ in Million ¥ in Million { in Million

Raw materials (Net of provision of 2 85.91 Million (31 March 2024: ¥ 17.50 Million, 1 38273 274.32 213.22
April 2023: T 12.50 Million))

382.73 274.32 213.22

Trade receivables

31 March 2025 31 March 2024 1 April 2023

% in Million % in Million % in Million
Current
Unsecured, considered good 480.15 619.11 731.57
Trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk 34.87 7.81 10.37
Trade receivables - credit impaired 46.84 70.39 -
561.86 697.31 741.94
Allowance for expected credit loss (88.49) (79.50) (12.23)
473.37 617.81 729.71

receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on credit terms of 0 to 60 days.
isk management regarding trade receivable has been described in note 43(c)(i)

other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointlv with any other p, F 5 trade,oF Mer receivable
firms or private company respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member. ;:‘ MUMBA

o\ 400013




Glass Wall Systems (India) Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

Trade receivables ageing
As at 31 March 2025

Outstanding for following periods#
Not due Less than 6 6 months - 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total
months year years
Undisputed Trade receivables - 233.62 186.45 5.30 54.78 - - 480.15
considered good
Undisputed Trade Receivables — - - - - 33.46 141 34.87
which have significant increase
in credit risk
Undisputed Trade receivable — - - 16.14 25.66 5.04 - 46.84
credit impaired
Disputed Trade receivables - - - - - - - -

considered good

Disputed Trade Receivables — - - - - - - -
which have significant increase

in credit risk

Disputed Trade receivable — - - - - - - -
credit impaired

Total 233.62 186.45 21.44 80.44 38.50 1.41 561.86
# where due date of payment is not available, date of transaction has been considered

As at 31 March 2024

Qutstanding for following periods#
Not due Less than 6 6 months - 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total
months year years
Undisputed Trade receivables — 367.11 117.76 8.45 125.79 - - 619.11
considered good
Undisputed Trade Receivables ~ - - - - 4,75 3.06 7.81

which have significant increase

in credit risk

Undisputed Trade receivable — - 15.26 55.13 - - - 70.39
credit impaired

Disputed Trade receivables - - - - - - - -
considered good

Disputed Trade Receivables — - - - - - - -
which have significant increase

in credit risk

Disputed Trade receivable ~ - - - - - - -
credit impaired

Total 367.11 133.02 63.58 125.79 4.7S5 3.06 697.31
# where due date of payvment is not available, date of transaction has been considered

As at 1 April 2023

Outstanding for following periods#
Not due Less than 6 6 months - 1 1.2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total
months I year j{ years
Undisputed Trade receivables — 96.30 52493 65.71 44.63 - - 731.57
considered good

Undisputed Trade Receivables — - - - 9.40 0.97 10.37
which have significant increase

in credit risk

Undisputed Trade receivable — - - . - . - -
credit impaired

Disputed Trade receivables - - - - - - -
considered good

Disputed Trade Receivables — - - - - - -
which have significant increase

in credit risk

Disputed Trade receivable — - - - - - - N
credit impaired

Total 96.30 524.93 65.71 44.63 9.40 0.97 741.94
# where due date of payment is not available, date of transaction has been considered

12 Cash and cash equivalents

31 March 2025 31 March 2024 1 April 2023

¥ in Million T in Million ¥ in Million
Cash on hand 0.97 0.21 0.27
Balances with banks
On current accounts 2.21 2.54 0.73
Deposits with original maturity of less than three months (Includes interest accrued 2 - 66.36 -

Nil (31 March 2024: ¥ 0.36 Million, 1 April 2023: Z Nil))

1.00

%




Glass Wall Systems (India) Limited

(Formerly known as Glass Wall Systems (India) Private Limited)

CIN: U74999MH2010PLC207187

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

13 Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 1 April 2023
% in Million R in Million X in Million
Margin money deposits {Includes interest accrued ¥ 5.02 Million (31 March 2024: % Nil, 711.70 232.84 225.82
1 April 2023: 2 0.09 Million)}
Deposits with original maturity for less than 12 months - 0.04 -
711.70 232.88 225.82

Margin money deposits with a carrying amount of ¥ Nil (31 March 2024: ¥ 135.98 Million; 1 April 2023: Z 169.42 Million) were subject to a first charge to secure
the Company’s cash credit loans, which has been surrendered during the year (Refer Note 18). Additionally, deposits amounting to 2 461.99 Million (31 March
2024: ¥ 33.72 Million; 1 April 2023: ¥ 56.40 Million) were held against bank guarantee and letter of credit facilities, while 2 249.71 Million (31 March 2024: % Nil;
1 April 2023: Z Nil) were secured against the overdraft facility (Refer Note 18).

14 Loans
{Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated)
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 1 April 2023
% in Million R in Million T in Million
Current
Loans to employees 4.30 5.68 4.57
4.30 5.68 4.57
15 Asset held for sale
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 1 April 2023
{ in Million % in Million % in Million
Building (refer note (i) below) 7.17 8.26 -
7.17 8.26 -

Note:

{i) During the previous year ended 31 March 2024, cost of buildings aggregating to Z 8.42 Million and depreciation aggregating to 2 0.16 Million were classified
from investment properties to assets held for sale. All these properties are located at Mumbai.

16 Share capital
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 1 April 2023
1 in Million ¥ in Million T in Million
Authorised Shares
2,60,00,000 (31 March 2024 - 215,45,405, 1 April 2023 - 215,45,405) Equity shares of 260.00 215.45 215.45
%10/- each
Nil (31 March 2024 - 44,54,595, 1 April 2023 - 44,54,5935) Class B Equity shares of - 44.55 44.55
210/- each
260.00 260.00 260.00
Issued, Subscribed and fully Paid Up Shares
1,51,84,325 (31 March 2024 - 1,49,83,640, 1 April 2023 - 1,49,83,640) Equity shares 151.84 149.84 149.84
of ¥10/-each*
Nil (31 March 2024 - 44,54,595, 1 April 2023 - 44,54,595) Class B Equity shares of - 44.55 44.55
210/-each
Total issued, subscribed and fully paid-up share capital** 151.84 194.39 194.39

* During the year, the Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on 25 May 2024 approved the proposal for buy-back of 42,53,910 fully paid up
equity shares (including Class B Equity Shares) of face value of 2 10/- in accordance with Sections 68, 69, 70 and other applicable provisions of the Companies
Act. The Company has completed its buyback including extinguishment of its bought back shares on 9 July 2024. The Company has filed return of buyback with
Registrar of Companies (ROC) in prescribed Form "SH.11 - Return in respect of buv-back of securities” and the same is approved on 8 August 2024 .

** Subsequent to the year ended 31 March 2025, each equity share of 210/- each has been sub-divided into five equity shares of 22/~ each (refer note 45).

A

Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year
(i) Equity shares

31 March 2025 31 March 2024 1 April 2023
No. of shares T in Million No. of shares 2 in Million No. of shares Z in Miilion
At the beginning of the year 1,49,83,640 149.84 1,49,83,640 149.84 1,49,83,640 149 .84
Add: Convesrion of Class B equity shares 44,54,595 44.55 - : - -
Less: Shares extinguished on buy-back (42,53,910) (42.55) - - - -
Nutstanding at the end of the year 1,51,84,325 151.84 1,49,83,640 149.84 1,49,83,640 149.84
(ii} Equity shares (Class B)
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 1 April 2023
No. of shares X in Million No. of shares ? in Million No. of shares ¥ in Million
At the beginning of the year 44,54,595 44.55 44,54 ,595 44.55 44,54,595 44.55
Add: Issued during the vear - - - - -
nverted to equity shares during the year* (44,54,595) (44.55) - B - -
- - 44,54,595 44.55 44,54,595 44.55

¢
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Glass Wall Systems (India) Limited

(Formerly known as Glass Wall Systems (India) Private Limited)

CIN: U74999MH2010PLC207187

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

Terms/Rights attached to the Equity shares

Up to 11 July 2024, the Company had two class of equity shares i.e. ordinary equity shares and Class B equity shares, both having par value of Z 10 per share.
Each holder of ordinary equity shares and Class B equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. On 11 July 2024, Class B equity shares has been converted into
ordinary equity shares. As on 31 March 2025, the Company has only one class of equity shares i.e. ordinary equity shares. The Company declares and pays
dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

Class B equity shares shall get additional coupon @ 2% per annum on subscription amount from the date of issuance of Class B equity shares until conversion or
until such time as the holder of Class B equity share may decide, whichever is earlier. On 11 July 2024, Class B equity shares has been converted into ordinary
equity shares. As on 31 March 2023, the Company has only one class of equity shares i.e. ordinary equity shares.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of ordinary equity shares equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after
distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the ordinary equity shareholders.

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

31 March 2025 31 March 2024 1 April 2023

No. of shares % Holding No. of shares % Holding No. of shares % Holding
Equity shares of ¥ 10/- each fully paid
Amit J. Hemrajani 8,85,046 5.83% 10,25,046 6.84% 10,25,046 6.84%
Vistra ITCL (India) Limited* (Trustee of Business 17,00,845 11.20% 10,52,904 7.03% 10,52,904 7.03%
Excellence Trust II - India Business Excellence Fund
i)
*Formerly known as IL&FS Trust Company Ltd
India Business Excellence Fund ~ IIA 43,73,604 28.80% - 0.00% - 0.00%
Eshan J Hemrajani jointly with Dikshita Achanna 18,61,495 12.26% 20,01,495 13.36% 20,01,495 13.36%
Hemrajani #
Mr. Kamlesh A. Choudhari - 0.00% 22,11,099 14.76% 22,11,099 14.76%
Mr. Jawahar H. Hemrajani 62,89,464 41.42% 80,52,275 53.74% 80,52,275 53.74%

Class B Equity shares of ¥ 10/- each fully paid '

Vistra ITCL (India) Limited* (Trustee of Business - - 6,47,941 14.55% 6,47,941 14.55%
Excellence Trust II - India Business Excellence Fund

Iy

*Formerly known as IL&FS Trust Company Ltd

India Business Excellenice Fund - I[IA - - 38,06,654 85.45% 38,06,654 85.45%
# Out of total shares, 971,912 jointl held with Ms. Dikshita Achanna Hemrajani

As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/ members and other declarations received from shareholders regarding beneficial interest,
the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares.

Proposed dividend:

31 March 2025 31 March 2024 1 April 2023
? in Million {in Million ¥ in Million

The board proposed dividend on class B equity shares after the balance sheet date
Proposed dividend on Class B equity shares for the year ended on 31 March 2025: Z Nil per share (31 - - 11.00
March 2024: ¥ Nil, 1 April 2023: 2 2 per share)

- - 11.00

Details of shares held by promoters

No. of shares 9% change

at the Change during  No. of shares at % of Total dm in tie
beginning of the year the end of the year Shares ur egr
the year y

As at 31 March 2025
Equity shares of ¥ 10/- each fully paid
Ms. Vinne J. Hemrajani 73,871 - 73,871 0.49% 0.11%
Mr.Amit J. Hemrajani 10,25,046 (1,40,000) 8,85,046 5.83% 0.56%
Mr.Eshan J. Hemrajani # 20,01,495 (1,40,000) 18,61,495 12.26% 1.96%
Mr. Kamlesh A. Choudhari 22,11,099 (22,11,099) - 0.00% -11.37%
Mr. Jawahar H. Hemrajani 80,52,275 (17,62,811) 62,89,464 41.42% 0.00%

Note:
# Out of total shares, 971,912 jointly held with Ms. Dikshita Achanna Hemrajani

No. of shares % change

at the Change during No. of shares at % of Total during the
beginning of the year the end of the year Shares year
the year

As at 31 March 2024
Equity shares of ¥ 10/- each fully paid
Ms. Vinne J. Hemrajani 73,871 - 73,871 0.38% 0.00%
Mr.Amit J. Hemrajani 10,25,046 - 10,25,046 5.27% 0.00%
Mr.Eshan J. Hemrajani # 20,01,495 - 20,01,495 10.30% 0.00%
Mr. Kamlesh A. Choudhari 22,11,099 - 22,11,099 11.37% 0.00%

Jawahar H. Hemrajani 80,52,275 41.42% 0.00%

tal shares, 971,912 jointly held with Ms. Dikshita Achanna Hemrajani
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No. of shares

at the Change during  No. of shares at % of Total dn/‘::::x:ii
beginning of the year the end of the year Shares
the year year

As at 1 April 2023 o

Equity shares of T 10/- each fully paid

Ms. Sunita K. Choudhari 1,84,676 (1,84,676) - 0.00% -0.95%
Ms. Vinne J. Hemrajani 73,871 - 73,871 0.38% 0.00%
Mr.Amit J. Hemrajani 53,134 9,71,912 10,25,046 5.27% 5.00%
Mr.Eshan J. Hemrajani # 10,29,583 9,71,912 20,01,495 10.30% 5.00%
Mr. Kamlesh A. Choudhari 55,25,305 (33,14,206) 22,11,099 11.37% -17.05%
Mr. Jawahar H. Hemrajani 64,97,217 15,55,058 80,52,275 41.42% 8.00%

Note:
# Out of total shares, 971,912 jointly held with Ms. Dikshita Achanna Hemrajani

f) The Company has not allotted any equity shares pursuant to contract without payment being received in cash, bonus shares, nor have any shares been bought
back during a period of five years immediately preceding the balance sheet date. During the year, the Board of Directors approved the proposal for buy-back of
42,53,910 fully paid up equity shares.

17 Other equity

31 March 2025 31 March 2024 1 April 2023

¥ in Million % in Million X in Million

Securities premium
At the beginning of the year 505.45 505.45 505.45
At the end of the year 505.45 505.45 505.45
Capital redemption reserve
At the beginning of the year - - -
Transfer from retained earnings on account of buyback of equity shares 42.54 - -
At the end of the year 42.54 - -
Retained earnings
At the beginning of the year 435.00 315.47 154.36
Profit for the year 438.09 119.53 161.11
Less: Total appropriations
Transfer to capital redemption reserve on account of buyback of equity shares (42.54) - -
At the end of the year 830.55 435.00 315.47
Other compreh i
At the beginning of the year 5.59 6.59 1.55
Remeasurements on defined benefit plans (net of tax) {0.97) {1.00) 5.04
At the end of the year 4.62 5.59 6.59

1,383.16 846.04 827.51

Nature and purpose of reserves

(i) Securities Premium
Securities Premiuum is used to record the premium received on issue of shares. It is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

{ii} Capital redemption reserve

Capital Redemption Reserve is created in accordance with the provisions of Section 69 of the Companies Act, 2013, upon the buyback of equity shares out of free
reserves or securities premium.The reserve can be utilised only for the purpose of issuing fully paid bonus shares to the shareholders in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. ’

(iii) Retained earnings:
Retained earnings are the profits that the Company has earned till date, less any transfers to general reserve, dividends or other distributions paid to
shareholders.

{(iv} Items of other preh
Any changes in the liabilities over the vear due to changes in actuarial assumptions or experience adjustments are recognised in other comprehensive income and

are adjusted to retained earnings.
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Borrowings
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 1 April 2023
? in Million % in Million ¥ in Million
Non-current
Secured:
Term loan from financial institutions (Includes interest accrued but not due  0.48 Million (31 March 84.57 100.32 111.25
2024: 2 0.51 Million, 1 April 2023: Z 0.78 Million)) {Refer note (i} below)
Less: current maturities of non-current borrowings (17.28) {15.76) (10.62)
67.29 84.56 100.63
Current
Secured:
Cash credit from Banks (Includes interest accrued but not due 2 Nil (31 March 2024: 2 0.11 Million, 1 - 85.14 360.07
April 2023: ¥ 0.46 Million)) (Refer note (iii to v) below)
Overdraft from Banks {Includes interest accrued but not due 2 0.07 (31 March 2024: Z Nil, 1 April 2023: 0.07 - -
Z Nil)) {Refer note (ii) below}
Current maturities of non-current borrowings 17.28 15.76 10.62
17.35 100.90 370.6%9
Note:

{i) The Company has taken Housing Loan of 2 110.47 Million from PNB Housing Finance Limited at MCLR plus margin (currently rate of interest is 9.50% p.a.) to
finance the purchase of investment properties of which Z 84.09 Million (31 March 2024: Z 99.81 Million, 1 April 2023: ¥ 110.47 Million) is outstanding .The loan is
repayable in 84 equal monthly instalments starting from May 2023. This loan is secured by first and exclusive charge on property offered as collateral security
which shall have clear, marketable and unencumbered title on the investment properties purchased. During the previous year ended 31 March 2024, insolvency
petition was filed against the developer of the proposed investment property which has been admitted by NCLT in February 2024. This event has not changed the
terms arrangement of payment with financial institutions.

Further, Management has fully provided advance given for such property (Refer Note 9) and disclosed under exceptional Items in the Statement of Profit and Loss
for the previous year ended 31 March 2024.

{i) During the vear, the Company availed an overdraft facilitv from Bank of India, secured against fixed deposits with a margin of 15% over and above the
sanctioned overdraft limit. The facility carries an interest rate of 1% above the applicable fixed deposit rate. The overdraft facility is intended to finance working
capital requirements and is repayable on demand.

(iii} Up to 31 March 2024, The Company has availed cash credit facility from Bank of India at Marginal Cost of Lending Rate ("MCLR") plus margin {currently rate
of interest is Nil). The cash credit facility is for financing the working capital requirement and is repayable on demand. As at 31 March 2025, the Company has
utilised 2 Nil (31 March 2024: ¥ 11.98 Million, 1 April 2023: Z 51.22 Million) under this facility. The facility has been surrendered during the year.

{iv) Up to 31 March 2024, The Company has availed cash credit facility from TJSB Sahakari Bank Limited at an interest rate of 3.75% below Prime Lending Rate
(PLR) (currently rate of interest is Nil). The cash credit facility is for financing the working capital requirement and is repayable on demand. As at 31 March 2025,
the Company has utilised Z Nil (31 March 2024:  73.05 Million, 1 April 2023: Z 278.71 Million) under this facility. The facilitv has been surrendered during the
year.

(v} Up to 31 March 2024, The Company has availed cash credit facility from Indusind Bank at MCLR rate plus margin (currently rate of interest is Nil). The cash
credit facility is for financing the working capital requirement and is repayable on demand. As at 31 March 2025, the Company has utilised Z Nil (31 March 2024:2
Nil, 1 April 2023: 229.68 Million) under this facility. The facility has been surrendered during the year.

Up to 31 March 2024, all the facilities in note (iii) to (v} above, are secured against inventory, book debts and has first pari passu charge on the immovable and
movable assets of the Company. Further, these facilities are also secured by way of corporate guarantee of GWS Engineers and Fabricators Private Limited & GWS
Fabricators Private Limited and personal guarantee of Mr. Jawahar Hemrajani, Mr. Kamlesh Choudhari and Mrs. Sunita Choudhari.The faciliies have been
surrendered during the year, and all associated charges have been released. As at 31 March 2025, there are no charges on any of the Company’s assets, nor any
personal or corporate guarantees in place.

{vi) The Company has filed quarterly returns or statements with the banks according to the sanctioned working capital facilities which are in agreement with
books of accounts other than those mentioned below:

For the year 01-April-2024 to 31-March-2025

Amount as per Amount as per

Quarter - : . books of quarterly returns/ Amount of Reason for
Name of the bank Ended Pasticulars of security provided accounts statements difference variance
? in Million ¥ in Million
30-Jun-2024 Trade receivables (including 911.14 911.65 (0.51} Refer Note 1
retention)
30-Jun-2024 Trade Payvables (LC Creditors) 246.51 262.27 {15.76) Refer Note 2
Consortium Finances# 30-Jun-2024 Inventory 343.84 337.46 6.38 Refer Note 3
30-Sep-2024 Trade receivables (including 780.23 781.73 (1.50) Refer Note 1
retention)
30-Sep-2024 Inventory 253.70 246.90 6.80  Refer Note 3

# Consortium facility has been surrendered during the year.
Note 1 - Variance in Trade receivables is due to TDS receivable & Retention entries which was posted after submission of Drawing Power Statement. TDS entries
were reconciled subsequently.

Note 2 - Variance in Trade payables on account of book closure entries.
Note 3 - Variance in Inventory is due to Stock in transit / Quality hold posted after submission of Drawing Power Statement.
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For the year 01-April-2023 to 31-March-2024

Amount as per Amocunt as per

Quarter books of gquarterly returns/ Amount of Reason for

Name of the bank Particulars of security provided

Ended accounts statements difference variance
¥ in Million 7 in Million
30-Jun-2023 Trade receivables {including 778.83 779.36 {0.53) Refer Note 1
retention)
30-Jun-2023 Mobilisation advance 680.85 681.80 {0.95) Refer Note 5
30-Jun-2023 Inventory 279.22 272.88 6.34 Refer Note 8
30-Sep-2023 Trade receivables (including 719.57 720.53 {0.96) Refer Note 2
retention)
30-Sep-2023 Mobilisation advance 584.31 590.18 {5.87) Refer Note 6
30-Sep-2023 Inventory 430.00 42462 5.38 Refer Note 8
Consortium Finance# . . .
31-Dec-2023 Trade receivables (including 808.86 825.38 (16.52) Refer Note 3
retention)
31-Dec-2023 Inventory 321.54 340.71 {19.17} Refer Note 9
31-Dec-2023 Uncertified work in progress 205.46 213.87 {8.41}) Refer Note 10
31-Mar-2024 Trade receivables (including 872.01 8§72.38 {0.37) Refer Note 4
retention)
31-Mar-2024 Mobilisation advance 455.47 435.52 19.95 Refer Note 7
31-Mar-2024 Inventory 291.82 289.87 1.95 Refer Note 8
31-Mar-2024 Uncertified work in progress 137.46 107.00 30.46 Refer Note 10

# Consortium finance includes Bank of India (Lead Bank), TJSB Sahakari Bank Limited, Standard Chartered Bank and Indusind Bank

Note 1 - Variance in Trade receivables is due to TDS receivable & Retention entries which was posted after submission of Drawing Power Statement. TDS entries
were reconciled subsequently.

Note 2 - Variance in Trade receivables is due to Retention entries which was posted after submission of Drawing Power Statement.

Note 3 - Variance in Trade receivables is due to TDS receivable & exchange difference on foreign receivables entries which was posted after submission of Drawing
Power Statement. TDS entries were reconciled subsequently.

Note 4 - Variance in Trade reccivables is due to Retention and debit note entries which was posted after submission of Drawing Power Statement.

Note 5 - Variance in Mobilisation Advance is due to Debtors due More than 150 Days have excluded for computing Drawing Power.

Note 6 - Variance in Mobilisation Advance is due to Debtors due More than 150 Days have excluded for computing Drawing Power and rectification entries.

Note 7 - Variance in Mobilisation Advance is due to exchange difference on foreign receivables entries which was posted after submission of Drawing Power
Statement.

Note 8 - Variance in Inventory is due to Stock in transit / Quality hold posted after submission of Drawing Power Statement.

Note 9 - Variance in Inventory is due to Stock in transit / Quality hold considered in Drawing Power Statement.

Note 10 - Variance in Uncertified Work In Progress is due to projects which are not moving, Contract Value reduced to milestone certified by Client.

For the year 01-April-2022 to 31-March-2023

Amount as per

ot quarterly Amount as per Reason for
Name of the bank Quartex Particulars of security provided returns/ books of accounts Variance .
Ended . P variance
statements 7 in Million
¥ in Million
30-Jun-2022 Trade receivables {including 668.41 666.84 1.57 Refer Note 1
retention)
30-Jun-2022 Mobilisation advance 483.58 483.45 0.13  Refer Note 2
30-Jun-2022 Inventory 342.33 342.85 (0.52) Refer Note 4
30-Jun-2022 Trade payvables (LC creditors) 279.75 284.26 {4.51) Refer Note 5
30-Sep-2022 Trade receivables (including 783.35 797.84 (14.49) Refer Note 1
retention)
30-Sep-2022 Mobilisation advance 509.95 513.71 (3.76) Refer Note 2
Consortium Finance# 30-Sep-2022 Inventory 282.05 281.89 0.16  Refer Note 3
31-Dec-2022 Trade receivables (including 664.93 664.59 0.34 Refer Note 1
retention}
31-Dec-2022 Mobilisation advance 474.24 473.15 1.09  Refer Note 2
31-Dec-2022 Inventory 286.45 286.07 0.38  Refer Note 3
31-Dec-2022 Trade pavables (LC creditors) 116.36 117.14 (0.78) Refer Note 5
31-Mar-2023 Trade receivables {including 888.90 887.96 0.94 Refer Note 1
retention)
31-Mar-2023 Uncertified work in progress 362.62 304.77 57.85 Refer Note 6

&
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Note 1 - Variance in Trade receivables is due to TDS receivable & Retention entries which was posted after submission of Drawing Power Statement. TDS entries

were reconciled subsequently.

Note 2 - Variance in Mobilisation Advance is due to Debtors due More than 150 Days have excluded for computing Drawing Power.
Note 3 - Variance in Inventory is due to Stock in transit / Quality hold posted after submission of Drawing Power Statement.
Note 4 - Variance in Inventory is due to Stock in transit / Quality hold considered in Drawing Power Statement.

Note 5 - Variance in Trade payables on account of book closure entries.
Note 6 - Variance in Uncertified Work In Progress is due to projects which are not moving, Contract Value reduced to milestone certified by Client.

Trade Payables

31 March 2025
T in Million

31 March 2024
X in Million

1 April 2023
¥ in Million

Current
Trade payable (refer note below)

total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (refer note 33)
total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises

The average credit period on purchases ranging between 0 to 90 days.
Refer note (33} for information regarding micro, small and medium enterprises
Trade payable to related parties has been disclosed in note (39)

Trade payables ageing

As at 31 March 2025

98.63
273.27

94.07
284.14

37.47
451.85

371.90

378.21

489.32

Unbilled

Not due

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payinent#

Less than 1
year

1-2 years

2-3 years

More than 3
years

Total

Total outstanding dues of micro
enterprises and small enterprises
Total outstanding dues of creditors
other than micro enterprises and
smuall enterprises

Disputed dues of micro enterprises
and small enterprises

Disputed dues of creditors other than
micro enterprises and small
enterprises

Unbilled

14.09

24,52

24.07

106.26

57.06

122.67

1.19

9.78

2.22

6.92

3.12

98.63

248.75

24.52

38.61

130.33

179.73

10.97

9.14

3.12

371.90

# where due date of payment is not available, date of transaction has been considered

As at 31 March 2024

Unbilled

Not due

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment#

Less than 1
year

1-2 years

2-3 years

More than 3
years

Total

Total outstanding dues of micro
enterprises and small enterprises

Total outstanding dues of creditors
other than micro enterprises and
small enterprises

Disputed dues of micro enterprises
and small enterprises

Disputed dues of creditors other than
micro enterprises and small
enterprises

Unbilled

15.01

20.57

109.90

68.46

129.66

21.74

5.99

1.84

94.07

269.13

15.01

18.51

130.47

198.12

23.28

5.99

1.84

378.21

# where due date of payment is not available, date of transaction has been considered
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As at 1 April 2023

Unbilled Not due

QOutstanding for following periods from due date of payment#

Total

Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3
yf:ﬂr years

Total outstanding dues of micro - - 37.47 37.47
enterprises and small enterprises
Total outstanding dues of creditors - 3.31 358.47 23.98 14.39 23.50 425.65
other than micro enterprises and
small enterprises
Disputed dues of micro enterprises - - - - - - -
and small enterprises
Disputed dues of creditors other than - - - - - 3.46 5.46
micro enterprises and small
enterprises
Unbilled 20.74 - - - - - 20.74

20.74 3.31 395.94 23.98 14.39 30.96 489.32

# where due date of pavment is not available, date of transaction has been considered

Other financial liabilities
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 1 April 2023
{ in Million {in Million % in Million
Non-current
Security deposits payable 1.14 0.57 -
Dividend liability on compound financial instrument - - 12.97
1.14 0.57 12.97
Current
Employee dues payable 19.19 3.02 24.73
Dividend liability on compound financial instrument - 12.97 9.56
Liabilities for capital creditors 15.63 0.10 -
Security deposits pavable - - 59.06
34.82 16.09 93.35
Provisions
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 1 April 2023
% in Million { in Million { in Million
Non-current
Provision for ployee benefits
Provision for gratuity {refer note 40) 34.65 27.72 24.85
34.65 27.72 24.85
Current
Provi for employee benefits
Provision for gratuity {refer note 40) 5.19 8.31 7.07
Provision for leave benefits (refer note 40) 4.59 3.78 2.35
Provision for defect liability period (refer note (i) below) 23.95 27.75 23.90
33.73 39.84 33.32
Note:
(i) Disclosures pursuant to Ind AS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets”
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 1 April 2023
>>>>> ¥ in Million X in Million % in Million
Balance as at 1 April 27.75 23.90 25.29
Additional provision during the vear (net) - 3.85 -
Provision used during the year (net) (3.80) - (1.39)
Balance as at 31 March 23.95 27.75 23.90
Other liabilities
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 1 April 2023
? in Million X in Million 2 in Million
Current
Contract liabilities
- Billing in excess of contract revenue 285.80 295.16 196.22
- Advance received from customers 486.15 467.51 670.71
Advance against sale of flats 0.30 1.10 -
Deferred rental income 0.35 0.11 -
Statutory dues payable 13.12 30.65 21.51
785.72 794.53 888.44

&
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

Current tax liabilities (net)

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

1 April 2023

T in Million T in Million % in Million
Provision for income tax (net of advance tax) 14.13 056 3.83
14.13 0.56 3.83
Revenue from operations
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
¥ in Million ¥ in Million
Contract revenue
Construction contracts (refer note 37) 2,394.57 2,775.38
Other operating revenue
Scrap sales 17.20 31.16
Duty drawback and rebates received 21.42 15.17
Job work service 0.67 -
Governunent grant accrued* 13.75 -
2,447.61 2,821.71

* The Company is entitled to benefits under the 'Package Scheme of Incentives 2019° ("PSI Scheme") introduced by the Government of Maharashtra to promote
industrial development in specified regions. During the year, the grant under the PSI Scheme was sanctioned and has been accounted for in accordance with the

Company’s accounting policy for government grants, as detailed in Note 2(v).

Other income
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
% in Million ¥ in Million

Interest income on
-Fixed deposits 32.83 16.28
-Income tax refund/others - 1.76
Liabilities no longer required written back - 5.52
Bad debts earlier written off now written back 13.89 0.10
Profit on sale of property, plant & equipment 0.33 -
Profit on sale of investment property/assets held for sale 10.90 26.57
Rental income (refer note 42) 3.01 1.43
Exchange difference (net) 8.34 6.68
Dividend from non-current investment 0.08 0.14

69.38 58.48

Cost of raw materials and components consumed

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

% in Million % in Million
Inventory at the beginning of the year 274.32 213.22
Add: Purchases 1,289.62 1,531.04
Less: Inventory at the end of the vear (382.73) {274.32)
1,181.21 1,469.94

Employee benefits expense

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

T in Million % in Million
Salaries, wages and bonus 233.52 227.92
Contribution to provident and other funds (refer note 40) 7.50 7.41
Gratuity expense {refer note 40) 6.45 6.19
Staff welfare expenses 12.22 12.43
259.69 253.95
Finance costs
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
X in Million R in Million
Interest
-Cash credit 2.32 48 10
-Term loan 8.67 11.97
-Others 11.29 11.86
Unwinding interest
- Dividend liability 0.23 1.44
- Lease liability 0.08 0.04
Bank and other financial charges 4.88 7.90
i 2.74 2.74
30.21 84.05
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Depreciation and amortisation expense

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

% in Million {in Million
Depreciation on
-Property, plant and equipment (refer note 3(a)) 27.74 25.42
-Right-of-use asset (refer note 42(b)) 1.08 1.08
-Investment properties {refer note 4) 0.85 1.60
Amortisation of intangible assets {refer note 3(b)) 1.07 2.07
30.74 30.17

Other expenses

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

{ in Million { in Million

Sub contracting charges 247.37 376.38
Legal and professional fees 30.36 31.84
Freight & forwarding charges 47.21 63.01
Rent (refer note 42) 2.15 2.60
Scaffolding and other hire charges 23.26 34.08
Rates and taxes 7.29 14.71
Travelling and convevance expenses 18.33 14.98
Payment to Auditor (refer note (i} below) 4.09 4.27

Repairs and maintenance expenses

Plant and machinerv 2.38 9.56
Buildings 6.23 5.03
Others 10.42 6.95
Selling and distribution expenses 1.02 1.80
Power and fuel 13.43 14.53
Communication cost 1.28 1.48
Printing & stationery 2.19 2.34
Insurance 2.46 3.97
Loss on discard of property, plant & equipment - 0.08
Allowance/ (reversal of allowance) for expected credit loss 8.99 67.26
{Reversal of allowance) for unbilled revenue (0.03) {7.22)
Impairment for doubtful receivables - 8.81
(Reversal of provision)/provision for defect liability period (3.80) 3.85
Bad debts written off - 3.68
Miscellaneous expenses 1.22 1.98
425.85 665.97

Note:
(i) Payment to auditor (excluding goods and service tax)

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

R in Million ¥ in Million

As auditor:
Statutory audit fees 4.00 2.57
Limited review fees - 1.55
In other capacity
- Certification fees - 0.10
Reimbursement of expenses 0.09 0.05

4.09 4.27
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Earning per share (EPS)
Basic and diluted Earning per share (EPS) computed in accordance with Ind AS 33 "Earning per Share"

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

¥ in Million ¥ in Million

Net profit after taxation { ¥ in Million) 438.09 119.53
Profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders 392.80 83.66
Profit attributable to class B equity shareholders# 45.29 35.87
Equity Shares (ordinary)

Weighted average number of equity shares for computing EPS 7,55,27,419 7,49,18,200
Nominal value of shares (In 3)* 2.00 2.00
Basic earning per share (In ) 5.20 1.12
Diluted earning per share (In ¥) 5.20 1.12
Equity Shares (Class B)

Weighted average number of Class B equity shares for computing EPS# M 61,63,207 2,22,72,975
Nominal value of shares (In 3* 2.00 2.00
Basic earning per share (In ) 7.35 1.61
Diluted earning per share (In ) 7.35 1.61

# Not annualised, EPS on Class B equity shares are calculated up to the date of its conversion in to Equity shares {ordinary) i.e. 11 July 2024.

*Pursuant to resolutions passed by the Board of Directors and the Shareholders in their respective meeting held on 30 April 2025, the face value of the equity
shares of the Company was sub-divided from 210/- each into five equity shares of 22/~ each. In compliance with IND AS - 33, Earnings Per Share, the disclosure
of basic and diluted earnings per share for all the period / years presented has been arrived at after giving effect to the above sub-division. Also refer note 16 and
45 to the Financial Statements.

Contingent liabilities

31 March 2025 31 March 2024 1 April 2023

¥ in Million ¥ in Million T in Million

Claim against the Company not acknowledge as debts
- Maharashtra VAT demand (refer note (i) below} 312.13 312.13 312.13
- Other VAT and CST matters (refer note (i) below) 19.93 19.93 19.93
- Income tax matters {refer note (ii} below} 2.01 2.01 2.01
- GST matters (refer note (iii) below} 1.00 - -

Above amounts also include interest and penalty as mentioned in respective year wise demand orders.

Note:

{i) The Joint Commissioner {Appeals) adjudicated the Maharashtra VAT (MVAT) assessment for the financial years 2005-06 to 2017-18 and Central Sales Tax
(CST) assessment for the financial vears 2014-15 and 2015-16 against which the Company has filed appeals with the Maharashtra Sales Tax Tribunal (MSTT).
Subsequent to the year-end, MSTT passed an order dated 9 July 2025 quashing the demand and asked relevant authorities to recompute demand based on its
order. The Company is awaiting further communication from authorities in this regard.

(ii) The total outstanding demand of ¥2.01 Million pertains to the assessment year 2018-19 and was raised by the Assessing Officer through an order dated 21
September 2021. An appeal against this order has been filed with the Commissioner of Income Tax ("CIT"). Based on interpretations of the relevant provisions of
the Income Tax Act, 1961, the Company has received legal advice indicating that the demand is likely to be either deleted or substantially reduced. Accordingly,
no provision has been considered necessary.

(iii) On 31 August 2024, the Company received a demand order amounting to 21.00 Million under Section 73(9) of the UPGST Act, 2017 for financial year 2019-
20. The Company has filed an appeal against the said demand with the Joint Commissioner of State Tax (Appeals), Uttar Pradesh. Based on legal advice received,
the management believes that the demand is likely to be either set aside or substantially reduced. Accordingly, no provision has been considered necessary.

Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

T in Million ¥ in Million
The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining
unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each accounting year
Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises 84.54 90.57
Interest due on above 14.09 3.50

98.63 94.07

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act, - -
2006 along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the
appointed day during each accounting year.
The amount of interest due and pavable for the period of delay in making payment 9.31 -
{which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without
adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act, 2006.
The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each 4.78 3.50

accounting year.

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding - -

vears, until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the

all enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under
23 of the MSMED Act, 2006.
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34 Corporate social responsibility

31 March 2025
R in Million

31 March 2024
% in Million

(a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the yvear
{b) Amount approved by the Board to be spent during the year

(c) Amount spent during the vear ended on 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024:

25.00

31 March 2025
In Cash
% in Million

31 March 2024
In Cash
{ in Million

(i) construction/acquisition of any asset
(ii) on purpose other than (i) above

(d) Details related to CSR expenditure:

25.00

31 March 2025
% in Million

31 March 2024
% in Million

Health care

{e) Details for unspent amount and amount to be carried for excess spent as per 135(5):
(i) There is no unspent amount of CSR activities as on 31 March 2025 as per section 135(5)
{ii}) Details of excess amount spent

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

% in Million % in Million
135(S) Excess amount spent
Opening Balance 0.04 0.04
Amount required to be spent during the year - -
Amount spent during the year 25.00 -
Carry forward balance lapse during the year (0.04)
Closing balance 25.00 0.04

As per provision of Section 135(5) of Companies Act, 2013 Company is allowed to carry forward any amount spent in relation to CSR activities if it exceeds the
minimum expenditure as required by Section 135(5) of the Companies Act, 2013.The Company has decided to carry forward excess spent amount in the FY 2024-
25 to the subsequent years. Excess spent at the year end is recognised as asset in the balance sheet.

35 Capital and other itments
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 1 April 2023
% in Million R in Million % in Million
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account (net of advances) on:
Investment property 52.25 52.25 11.36
Property, plant & equipment 63.89 - 0.26
116.14 52.25 11.62

36 Segment information
Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 108 "Operating segment”
In accordance with Ind AS 108 "Operating segment” - The Company presents the segment information identified on the basis of internal report used by the
Company to allocate resources to the segment and assess their performance. The Board of Directors of the Company is collectively the Chief Operating Decision
Maker (CODM) of the Company. The Company has only one reportable business segment of 'Construction Activities". Therefore, there is no other significant
classes of operating segment.

The CODM monitors the operating results of its geographical segment separately for the purpose of making decisions about resources allocation and performance
assessment. Segment performance is evaluated on the basis on profit and loss.

{(a) Summary of the "Geographical Information" as follows:

31 March 2025

Overseas Indian operations Total
operations
¥ in Million ¥ in Million % in Million
Segment revenue
Revenue from operations 1,147.06 1,300.55 2,447.61

Non-current operating assets
All-non current assets of the Company are located in India.

31 March 2024

Overseas Indian operations Total
operations
¥ in Million % in Million % in Million

Segment revenue
Revenue from operations
” C,Nsn-éﬁneht operating assets
e:"/ ‘Kﬂimfun&\t assets of the Company are located in India.

‘ N
2

1,320.28 1,501.43 2,821.71

b

-~
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1 April 2023
Overseas Indian operations
operations

¥ in Million

Total

¥ in Million { in Million

Non-current operating assets
All-non current assets of the Company are located in India.

(b} Information about major customers

Revenue from 2 external customer {31 March 2024: 2 external customer) amount to 10 per cent or more of an entity’s revenues as on 31 March 2025 2 1301.40
Million (31 March 2024: ¥ 1808.91 Million).

Construction Contracts

Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 115 "“Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

{a) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers:

(i) The Company has only one reportable business segment of 'Construction Activities". Therefore, there is no other significant classes of operating segment.
Information aboout disaggregation of revenue into geographical areas are given below.

31 March 2025

Overseas Indian operations Total
operations
% in Million X in Million % in Million
Segment revenue
Revenue from operations 1,147.06 1,300.55 2,447.61
31 March 2024
Overseas Indian operations Total
operations
¥ in Million T in Million % in Million
Segment revenue
Revenue from operations 1,320.28 1,501.43 2,821.71

(i) Disaggregation of the Company’s revenue from contracts with customers and reconciliation of amount of revenue recognised in the statement of profit and loss
with the contracted price is as given below.

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

¥ in Million ¥ in Million

A. Revenue from contracts with customers 2,447.61 2,821.71
2,447.61 2,821.71

B. Reconciliation of contracted price with (A) above
Revenue from contract with customers
- Revenue at contracted price 2,467.72 3,078.86
- Unbilled on account of work under certification (82.51) (204.54)
- Unearned revenue 9.36 (98.94)
Revenue from contract with customers (a) 2,394.57 2,775.38
Other operating income
- Scrap sales 17.20 31.16
- Duty drawback and rebates received 21.42 15.17
- Job work service 0.67 -
- Government grant accrued 13.75 -
Other operating income (b} 53.04 46.33
Revenue from operations (a+b) 2,447.61 2,821.71

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

T in Million % in Million
Timing of revenue recognition
Over a period of time 2,394.57 2,775.38
At a point in time 53.04 46.33
Revenue from operations 2,447.61 2,821.71
(b} Reconciliation of contract assets and liabilities:
Contract Contract Net contract
A’set‘* Liabilities** bal
% in Million X in Million % in Million
Balance as at 1 April 2023 622.57 866.92 (244.35)
Net increase/ {(decrease) (111.62) (104.25) {7.37)
Balance as at 31 March 2024 510.95 762.67 (251.72)
Net increase/{decrease) (152.21) 9.27 (161.48)
Balance as at 31 March 2025 358.74 771.94 (413.20)

={ MUMBAI
o\ 400013

4
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*The contract assets primarily relates to the "Unbilled revenue” where Company's rights to consideration for performance obligation satisfied but not billed at the
reporting date and the amount of "Retention money” held by the customers pending completion of performance milestone. The contract assets are transferred to
receivables when the rights become unconditional. Invoices are raised on the customers based on the agreed contractual terms and are collected as per agreed
payment terms. Retention money is reclassified as trade receivables when it becomes due for payment.

*“*The contract liability primarily relates to the "Advances from customer” towards on-going projects and "Billing in Excess of Contract Revenue” where progress
billing exceeds the aggregate of contract costs incurred to-date plus recognised profits {or minus recognised losses, as the case may be). Revenue is recognised
from the contract liability as and when such performance obligations are satisfied.

(i) Decrease in net contract balances is primarily due to higher progress bills raised as compared revenue recognition in both the years.
{ii} Revenue recognised from opening balance of contract liabilities amounts to ¥ 500.85 Million (31 March 2024: T 597.86 Million)

{iii) Revenue recognised from the performance obligation satisfied (or partially satisfied) upto 31 March 2024 (arising out of contract modifications} amounts to ¥
Nil (31 March 2024: T Nil)

(¢} Performance obligation
The Company undertakes facade engineering contracts which includes turnkey architectural facade solutions. The type of work in these contracts involve design
and engineering services , supply of unitised and fabricated panels and installation including exterior glazing, cladding and other associated works.

The Company evaluates whether each contract consists of a single performance obligation or multiple performance obligations. Contracts where the Company
provides a significant integration service to the customer by combining all the goods and services are concluded to have a single performance obligations.
Contracts with no significant integration service, and where the customer can benefit from each unit on its own, are concluded to have multiple performance
obligations. In such cases consideration is allocated to each performance obligation, based on standalone selling prices. Where the Company enters into multiple
contracts with the same customer, the Company evaluates whether the contract is to be combined or not by evaluating factors such as commercial objective of
the contract, consideration negotiated with the customer and whether the individual contracts have single performance obligations or not.

The Company recognises contract revenue over time as the underlying assets have no alternative use to the Company and the Company has an enforceable right
to pavment for performance completed to date, either explicitly through contract terms or implicitly based on legal precedents. Revenue is recognised using the
cost-based input method, wherein the stage of completion is determined by comparing the costs incurred to date with the estimated total contract costs. This
method reflects the Company’s performance in transferring control of goods or services to the customer.

Any costs incurred that do not contribute to satisfying performance obligations are excluded from the Company's input methods of revenue recognition as the
amounts are not reflective of our transferring control of the system to the customer. Significant judgement is required to evaluate assumptions related to the
amount of net contract revenues, including the impact of any performance incentives, liqguidated damages, and other forms of variable consideration.

If estimated incremental costs on any contract, are greater than the net contract revenues, the Company recognises the entire estimated loss in the year the loss
becomes known. Variations in contract work, claims, incentive payments are included in contract revenue to the extent that may have been agreed with the
customer and are capable of being reliably measured.

(d) Cost to obtain the contract:
{i) Amortisation in Statement of Profit and Loss: Z Nil (31 March 2024)
{ii) Recognised as contract assets: Z Nil {31 March 2024: ¥ Nil, 1 April 2023: Z Nil}

(e} Revenue recognition for future related to performance obligations that are unsatisfied (or partially satisfied):

Unsatisfied {or partiallv satisfied) performance obligations are subject to variability due to several factors such as terminations, changes in scope of contracts,
periodic revalidations of the estimates, economic factors (changes in tax laws etc). The aggregate value of transaction price allocated to unsatisfied {or partially
satisfied) performance obligations is 22,892.23 Million (31 March 2024: ¥ 1,684.72 Million) is expected to be recognised as revenue in the next one to two years.
No consideration from contracts with customers is excluded from the amount mentioned above.

{f) Practical expedients:

Applying the practical expedient in paragraph 63 of Ind AS 115, the Company does not adjust the promised amount of consideration for the effects of a
significant financing component if at contract inception it is expected that the period between when the entity transfers a promised good or service to a customer
and when the customer pays for that good or service will be one year or less.

Statement of cash flows disclosures
Disclosure with regard to changes in liabilities arising from financing activities as required by Ind AS 7 “Statement of Cash Flows”:

Non-current Current Current Total

borrowings (note borrowings (note maturities of non-
18) 18) current
borrowings (note
18}

T in Million % in Million % in Million % in Million
Balance as at 1 April 2023 100.63 360.07 10.62 471.32
Changes from financing cash flows (net) (0.04) {274.58) (10.62) {285.24)
Transfer within categories (15.76) - 15.76 -
Interest accrued but not due {0.27) (0.35) - (0.62)
Balance as at 31 March 2024 84.56 85.14 15.76 185.46
Changes from financing cash flows (net) 0.04 (85.03) (15.76) (100.75)
Transfer within categories (17.28) - 17.28 -
Interest accrued but not due (0.03) {0.04) (0.07)
Balance as at 31 March 2025 67.29 0.07 17.28 84.64

Amount reported in statement of cash flows under financing activities

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

% in Million T in Million
{Repayment) of non-current borrowings {15.72) (10.66)
(Repavment) of current borrowings (85.03) {274.58)
Total changes from fi ing cash flows (refer note above} (100.75) (285.24)

= [ MUMBAI

o\ 400013
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39 Related party disclosures

Disclosure of related parties/related party transactions pursuant to Ind AS 24 "Related Party disclosures”
Names of related parties and related party relationship

Related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year:

i} Entities having significant influence in the Company

India Business Excellence Fund - [IA

if) Joint Venture

i

iv}

Indus Fagade Private Limited (The entity has been strike off during the previous year ended 31 March 2024)

Key Management Personnel

. Jawahar H. Hemrajani (Director) (Chairman and Whole Time Director w.e.f. 21 May 2025)
. Kamlesh A. Choudhari (Director) (till 11 July 2024)

. Eshan J. Hemrajani (Director) (Managing Director w.e.f. 21 May 2025) and {Chief Executive Officer w.e.f. 22 July 2025)
. Sanjay Sawant (Chief Financial Officer) (till 16 April 2024 and w.e.f. 21 Mav 2025)

. Vivek Baid (Chief Financial Officer) (w.e.f. 11 July 2024 till 21 Mav 2025

. Rajeshree Chougule (Company Secretary} (till 11 July 2024}

. Shruti Waghela (Company Secretary) {(w.e.f. 11 July 2024 till 2 April 2025)

. Shweta Singh (Company Secretary) (w.e.f. 3 April 2025)

. Sunaina Primlani Gera {Additional Independent Director) (w.e.f. 21 May 2025)

. Siddharth Nandkishore Bafna (Additional Independent Director} {w.e.f. 21 May 2025)

. Nandita Khurana (Additional Independent Director) (w.e.f. 22 July 2025)

Enterpri in which Key M
M.J. Coaters Private Limited
GWS Engineers & Fabricators Private limited
Yes Systems Private Limited

t P 1 or their relatives are interested or have control

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

% in Million” % in Million
A} Transactions during the year:
Purchases of Materials
M.J.Coaters Private Limited 0.12 -
GWS Engineers & Fabricators Private limited - 0.53
Job Work/Sub-contract Services/Other Services Received
M.J.Coaters Private Limited 119.04 171.81
GWS Engineers & Fabricators Private limited 6.37 6.11
Revenue from Construction Contracts
GWS Engineers & Fabricators Private limited - 0.04
Sale of Duty drawback
Yes Systems Private Limited 2.42 -
Dividend paid
India Business Excellence Fund - [1A 11.28 9.40
Reimt t of exp Paid / (Received)
M.J.Coaters Private Limited 0.54
Advance against salary given
Mr. Kamlesh A. Choudhari 0.38
Advance against salary received back
Mr. Kamlesh A. Choudhari - 0.38
Managerial Remuneration (Refer Note 2 below)
Mr. Jawahar H. Hemrajani 13.83 10.80
Mr. Kamlesh A. Choudhari 3.02 10.80
Mr. Eshan J. Hemrajani 12.48 6.00
Mr. Sanjay Sawant 0.27 3.92
Mr. Vivek Baid 3.98 -
Ms. Rajeshree Chougule 0.95 0.82
Ms. Shruti Waghela 0.52 -
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31 March 2025 31 March 2024 1 April 2023
% in Million R in Million { in Million
B} Balance Outstanding at the end of year:
Investment in Joint Ventures
Indus Facade Private Limited - - 0.05
Trade Payables
GWS Engineers & Fabricators Private Limited - - 0.25
M.J.Coaters Private Limited 2.44 55.96 52.72
Employee dues payable
Mr. Jawahar H. Hemrajani 0.85 - 0.60
Mr. Kamlesh A. Choudhari - - 0.60
Mr. Eshan J. Hemrajani 0.85 - 0.35
Mr. Sanjay Sawant - - 0.18
Mr. Vivek Baid 0.34 -
Ms. Rajeshree Chougule - 0.06
Ms. Shruti Waghela 0.04 -
Other Receivables
GWS Engineers & Fabricators Private Limited 0.14 0.20 -
Yes Systems Private Limited - - 0.22
31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024
% in Million % in Million
C) Compensation to key g t p
Short term employee benefits 35.05 32.34

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties:

(i) Sales to related parties

Sales are made to related parties on the same terms as applicable to third parties in an arm’s length transaction and in the ordinary course of business. The
Company mutually negotiates and agrees sales price, discount and payment terms with the related parties by benchmarking the same to transactions with non-
related parties, who purchase goods and services of the Company in similar quantities.

(ii) Other Receivables

Other receivables outstanding balances are unsecured, interest free and require settlement in cash. No guarantee or other security has been received against
these receivables.

(iii) Purchases of goods

Purchases are made from related parties on the same terms as applicable to third parties in an arm’s length transaction and in the ordinary course of business.
The company mutually negotiates and agrees purchase price and payment terms with the related parties by benchmarking the same to sale transactions with
non-related parties entered into by the counter-party and similar purchase transactions entered into by the company with the other non-related parties.

(iv) Job Work/Sub-contract Services/Other Services Received

The Company availed job work services for coating on aluminium and other profiles from related parties on terms similar to those offered to third parties, in an
arm’s length transaction and in the ordinary course of business. The pricing and payment terms were mutually negotiated and agreed upon, with reference to
comparable transactions entered into by the counterparty with unrelated parties.

(v) Trade Payables

Trade payables outstanding balances are unsecured, interest free and require settlement in cash. No guarantee or other security has been given against these
payables.

(vi) Compensation to KMP

The amounts disclosed in the table above are the amounts recognised as an expense during the financial year related to KMP. The amounts do not include
expense, if any, recognised toward post-employment benefits and other long-term benefits of key managerial personnel. Such expenses are measured based on an
actuarial valuation done for the Company as a whole. Hence, amounts attributable to KMPs are not separately determinable.

Note:
Note 1: Up to 31 March 2024, Cash Credit from banks is guaranteed by Personal Guarantee of Mr. Jawahar H. Hemrajani and Mr. Kamlesh A. Choudhari &

Corporate Guarantee of GWS Engineers & Fabricators Private Limited and GWS Fabricators Private limited. The facility has been surrendered during the year
(refer Note 18).

Note 2: The Company has not granted loan to its promoter, director, key managerial personal and the other related parties (as defined under the Companies
Act,2013) which are repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment or any other loans or advance in the nature of loans.

Employee benefit obligations
Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 19 "Employee Benefits"

a) Defined Contribution Plan:

The following amount recognised as an expense in statement of profit and loss on account of provident fund and other funds. There are no other obligations other
than the contribution payable to the respective authorities.

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

X in Million T in Million
Contribution to provident fund 6.89 6.68
Contribution to employee state insurance scheme 0.30 0.44
Contribution to labour welfare fund 0.03 0.02
inistrative charges 0.28 0.27
7.50 7.41

Y
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b} Defined Benefit Plan:
The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan as given below:

Every employee who has completed five vears or more of service is eligible for gratuity on departure @ 15 days Basic salary for each completed year of service. The
scheme is unfunded.

Defined Benefit Plans as per Actuarial valuation

I) Expenses recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

% in Million ¥ in Million
Current service cost 3.87 3.86
Past Service Cost - -
Interest cost 2.57 2.34
Expected return on plan assets -
Net Actuarial (gain}/loss - -
Net Benefit Expense 6.44 6.20

II) Amount recorded in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

¥ in Million R in Million
Actuarial loss / (gain) arising from change in financial assumptions 1.40 0.30
Actuarial loss / (gain} arising from change in demographical assumptions (0.16} -
Actuarial loss / (gain) arising on account of experience changes 0.04 1.04
Components of defined b fit costs recognised in other preh ive i 1.28 1.34

ITI) Amount recognised in Balance Sheet

31 March 2025 31 March 2024 1 April 2023

¥ in Million ¥ in Million ¥ in Million
Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation 39.84 30.03 31.92
Fair value of Plan Assets - - -
Plan Asset/(Liability} 39.84 36.03 31.92

IV) Present value of Defined Benefit Obligation

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

% in Million % in Million
Opening Defined Beneiit Obligation 36.03 31.92
Interest cost 2.57 2.34
Past Service Cost - -
Current service cost 3.88 3.86
Re-measurement (loss)/g in arising from
- change in demographic assumptions 0.16} -
- change in financial assumptions 1.40 0.30
- experience variance (i.e. Actual experience vs assumptions 0.04 1.04
Benefits paid (3.92) (3.43)
Actuarial (gain)/loss - -
*Closing Defined Benefit Obligation 39.84 36.03
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 1 April 2023
¥ in Million T in Million T in Million
* Break up of Closing Defined Benefit Obligation
- Current 5.19 8.31 7.07
- Non-current 34.65 27.72 24.85
V) Actuarial assumptions
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 1 April 2023
% in Million X in Million X in Million
Discount rate 6.50% 7.15% 7.30%
Salary escalation 7.00% 7.00% 7.00%
Attrition Rate
-Senior Management & Middle Management 10.00% 10.00% 10.00%
-Junior Management & Workers 20.00% 20.00% 20.00%
Mortality Rate 100% as per 100% as per 100% as per
) Indian Assured Indian Assured Indian Assured
Lives Mortality Lives Mortality Lives Mortality
(2012-14) Ultimate {2012-14) Ultimate (2012-14)

Ultimate
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VIj A quantitative analysis for significant assumption is as shown below:

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

Decrease Increase Decrease Increase

Discount rate
Sensitivity Level (increase / {decrease) by 1% 42.54 37.44 38.15 34.12
Salary growth rate
Sensitivity Level (increase / (decrease) by 1% 37.80 41.96 34.39 37.75
Attrition rate
Sensitivity Level {(increase / {decrease) by 50% 39.75 39.78 35.71 36.13
Mortality rate
Sensitivity Level (increase / (decrease) by 10% 39.84 39.85 36.02 36.04
(VII) The following payments are expected contributions to the defined benefit plan in future years.

31 March 2025 31 March 2024 1 April 2023

¥ in Million ¥ in Million % in Million

1 year 5.19 8.31 7.07
1 to 5 years 20.79 16.09 15.26
5 to 10 years 15.44 14.93 13.19
More than 10 years 24.32 18.73 15.60

The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 6 years (31 March 2024 - 5 years, 1 April 2023 - 5 years)

VIII) The estimates of future salary increases considered in actuarial valuation takes into account inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors such

as supply and demand in the employment market.

Income tax
Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 12 "Income Taxes"

a) Major components of income tax expense/{income}:

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

% in Million % in Million
Profit or Loss section
Current Income tax (A) : 46.59 -
Adjustment of tax relating to earlier periods (B} : (0.47) (4.30)
Deferred tax (C): 105.08 98.99
Income tax expense reported in Profit or Loss (D=A+B+C} 151.20 94.69
Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) Section:
Item that will not be reclassified to statement of profit and loss in subsequent year: .
- On remeasurement (loss)/gain on defined benefit plans (0.32) (0.34)

{0.32) (0.34)

Income tax expense reported in the OCI section (E) (0.32) (0.34)
Total tax expense recognized in profit or loss and OCI (D+E) 150.88 94.35

b) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit muitiplied by domestic tax rate applicable in India:

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

X in Million % in Million
Profit before Tax (A) 589.29 214.22
Corporate tax rate as per Income Tax Act, 1961 (B) 25.17% 25.17%
Tax on Accounting profit (C)=(A)*(B} 148.31 53.91
Tax adjustments:
Tax effect on non-deductible expenses 3.42 44.76
Income exempt from income tax {0.14) (0.02)
Effect of tax rate difference {0.24) -
Effect of current tax related to earlier years {0.47) (4.30)
Total effect of tax adjustments (D) 2.57 40.44
Tax expense recognised during the year (E}j=(C}+(D) 150.88 94.35

c) Components of deferred tax assets and (liabilities) recognised in the Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss:

As at 31 March 2025

As at 31 March  Charge/(credit)

Charge/(credit) to

As at 31 March

2024 to Statement of Other 2025
Profit and Loss  Comprehensive
Income (OCI)
X in Million X in Million ¥ in Million T in Million
Employee benefits 10.24 0.81 0.32 11.37
MSME 43(b)(h) 13.23 3.05 - 16.28
Expected credit loss 20.01 2.26 - 22.27
ingss Loss and unabsorbed depreciation 107.46 (107.46) - -
Tapitilpss 8.73 (1.54) - 7.19
Properfy, blant & equipment {32.07) (1.67) - (33.74)
Net deferred) tax assets and (liabilities) 127.60 (104.55) 0.32 23.37

33

G
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As at 31 March 2024

As at 1 April Charge/{credit) Charge/(credit) to As at 31 March
2023 te Statement of Other 2024
Profit and Loss  Comprehensive
Income (OCI)
% in Million T in Million ¥ in Million ¥ in Million
Employee benefits 8.75 1.15 0.34 10.24
MSME 43(b}(h) - 13.23 - 13.23
Expected credit loss 4.90 15.11 - 20.01
Business Loss and unabsorbed depreciation 226.44 (118.98) - 107.46
Capital loss 14.95 (6.22) - 8.73
Property, plant & equipment (30.21) {1.86) - (32.07)
Net deferred tax assets and (liabilities) 224.83 {87.87) 0.34 127.60
d) Maturity details of unused tax losses :
As at 31 March 2025
Within 4 years 4 to 8 years Indefinite Total
% in Million % in Million % in Million {in Million
Business Loss - - - -
Unabsorbed depreciation - - - -
Capital loss
- Long term 2518 4.91 - 30.09
- Short term 1.21 - 1.21
As at 31 March 2024
Within 4 years 4 to 8 years Indefinite Total
{in Million % in Million % in Million % in Million
Business Loss - 336.28 - 336.28
Unabsorbed depreciation - - 90.76 90.76
Capital loss
- Long term - 36.84 - 36.84
- Short term - 121 - 1.21
As at 1 April 2023
Within 4 years 4 to 8 years Indefinite Total
% in Million % in Million % in Million % in Million
Business Loss - 814.67 - 814.67
Unabsorbed depreciation - - 85.06 85.06
Capital loss
- Long term - 36.84 - 36.84
- Short term - 2591 - 25.91
Lease

Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 116 "Leases"
{a) Where the Company is a lessor.

Operating leases: The Company has given premises under operating lease. The lease income received during the year ¥ 3.01 Million (31 March 2024: ¥ 1.43
Million). Leases are renewed only on mutual consent and at a prevalent market price and sub-lease is generally restricted.

Future Annual undiscounted lease payments receivable under operating leases are as follows:

31 March 2025 31 March 2024 1 April 2023
¥ in Million ¥ in Million ¥ in Million
Within one year 3.57 0.17
1-2 year 3.75 - -
2-3 vear 1.92 - -
3-4 year - - -
4-5 year - - -

More than 5 years

{b) Where the Company is a lessee.

The Company has taken various assets on lease such as land, buildings and office premises. Generally, leases are renewed only on mutual consent and at a

prevalent market price and sub-lease is generally restricted.




43

Glass Wall Systems (India} Limited

{Formerly known as Glass Wall Systems {India) Private Limited)

CIN: U7T4999MH2010PLC207187

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

Details with respect to right-of-use assets:
(X in Million}

Leasehold Total
land

Cost
At 1 April 2023 92.11 92.11
Additions - -
Disposals - -
At 31 March 2024 92.11 92.11
Additions - -
Disposals - -
At 31 March 2025 92.11 92.11
Depreciation
At 1 April 2023 - -
Charge for the year 1.08 1.08
Disposals - -
At 31 March 2024 1.08 1.08
Charge for the year 1.08 1.08
Disposals - -
At 31 March 2025 2.16 2.16
Net Block
At 1 April 2023 92.11 92.11
At 31 March 2024 91.03 91.03
At 31 March 2025 89.95 89.95

{i) The expense relating to payments not included in the measurement of lease liabilitv and recognised as expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss during the
year are as follows:

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
¥ in Million ¥ in Million

Short-term leases 2.15 2.60
Low value leases - -

{ii) Total cash out flow for leases amounts to Z 2.15 Million (31 March 2024: ¥ 2.60 Million) including cash outflow of short-term and low value leases.

Fi ial risk g t objectives and policies
Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 107 "Financial Instruments”: Market risk management

The risk management policies of the Company are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls,
and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the
Company’s activities.

The Management has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management framework.

In performing its operating, investing and financing activities, the Company is exposed to the Credit risk, Liquidity risk, Commodity risk and Market risk.

(a} Foreign exchange rate and interest rate risk:
The Company regularly reviews its foreign currency and interest rate related exposures. The Company monitors the potential risk arising out of the market
factors like exchange rates, interest rates, etc. on a regular basis. For on-balance Sheet exposures, the Company monitors the risks on net unhedged exposures.

(i) Foreign exchange rate risk:
The Company has commenced project execution in United States ("USA") and Australia. The Company has sales, purchases, and other transactions in foreign
currency. Consequently, the Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk.

The company evaluate exchange rate exposure arising from foreign currency transactions and decided not to hedge its foreign rate exposure during the year and
in previous year and at the year end and in previous year end since the unhedged exposure were not significant.

Particulars of unhedged foreign currency exposture (net) as at the reporting date are as follows:

31 March 2025 31 March 2024 1 April 2023
Amoux‘xt n Amount in Amoux.xt in Amount in Local Amount in Amount in Local
Foreign Local Foreign Currenc Forei Currenc Currenc
Currency Currency Currency rrency oreign 4 ¥
Currency % in Million ¥ in Million in Million
Trade receivables USD 16,16,201 138.32 32,20,267 268.49 46,540 3.83
AUD 6,37,232 34.26 - - - -
Trade payable USD (4,643.96) (0.40) - - - -
172.18 268.49 3.83

Foreign currency sensitivity
1 % increase or decrease in foreign exchange rates will have the following impact on profit before tax

31 March 2025 31 March 2024 1 April 2023
1 % increase 1 % decrease 1 % increase 1 % decrease 1 % increase 1 % decrease
% in Million ¥ in Million X in Million T in Million  in Million T in Million
Trade receivables 1.73 (1.73) 2.68 (2.68) 0.04 (0.04)
Trade payable* 0.00 (0.00) - - - -

00 indicates value less than % 0.01 Million
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(i) Interest rate risk:
“Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.
The Company’s exposure to changes in interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s outstanding floating rate borrowings. The interest rate are disclosed in

the respective notes to the financial statement of the Company. The following table analyse the breakdown of the financial assets and liahilities by type of interest
rate:

31 March 2025 31 March 2024 1 April 2023

{ in Million ¢ in Million ¥ in Million
Financial assets
Interest bearing
- Fixed interest rate
Bank balances other than Cash and cash equivalents 711.70 299.24 225.82
Other financial assets 11.60 - -
Non interest bearing
Investments 0.50 0.50 0.50
Trade receivables 473.37 617.81 729.71
Cash and cash equivalents 3.18 2.75 0.99
Loans 4.30 5.68 4.57
Other financial assets 49.15 32.68 6.71
Financial Liabilities
- Floating interest rate
Borrowings 84.64 185.46 471.32
Non interest bearing
Trade payables 371.90 378.21 489.32
Other financial liabilities 35.96 16.66 106.32

Interest rate sensitivity
A hypothetical 50 basis point shift in floating rate, holding all other variables constant, on the unhedged loans would result in a corresponding increase/decrease
in interest cost for the Company on a yearly basis as follows:

Impact on profit/{loss) after tax Impact on Equity
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 1 April
2025 2024 2025 2024 2023
¥ in Million ¥ in Million % in Million ¥ in Million ? in Million
Interest rates - increase by 50 basis point (0.42) {0.93) {0.42) {0.93) (2.36})
Interest rates - decrease by 50 basis point 0.42 0.93 0.42 0.93 2.36

(b) Liquidity risk management:

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able to meet its present and future cash and collateral obligations without incurring unacceptable losses.
The Company’s objective is to maintain optimum levels of liquidity at all times to meet its cash and collateral requirements. The Company closely monitors its
liquidity position and deploys a robust cash management system. It maintains adequate sources of financing including cash credit facility from banks at an
optimised cost.

The Company's maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the balance sheet at 31 March 2025, 31 March 2024 and 1 April 2023 is the carrving
amounts. The liquidity risk is managed on the basis of expected maturity dates of the financial liabilities. The average credit period taken to settle trade payables
is about 0 to 90 days. The carrying amounts are assumed to be a reasonable approximation of fair value. The following table analysis financial liabilities by
remaining contractual maturities:

Less than 3

2 tol2 months 1 to 5 years >5 years Total
months
¥ in Million ¥ in Million ¥ in Million ? in Million X in Million

As at 31 March 2025

Borrowings 4.72 13.11 66.81 - 84.64
Other financial liabilities 34.82 - 1.14 - 35.96
Trade payables 371.90 - - - 371.90
As at 31 March 2024

Borrowings 89.43 11.95 80.10 3.98 185.46
Other financial liabilities 16.09 - 0.57 - 16.66
Trade payables 378.21 - - - 378.21
As at 1 April 2023

Borrowings 362.50 9.01 72.87 26.94 471.32
Other financial labilities 58.31 34.60 13.41 - 106.32
Trade pavables 489.32 - - - 489.32

At present, the Company does expects to repay all liabilities at their contractual maturity. In order to meet such cash commitments, the operating activity is
expected to generate sufficient cash inflows.

{c) Credit risk management:
(i} Trade receivables and retention
The Compan} s customer proﬁle include large private corporates and reputed devclopers Accordmglv, the Company's customer crcd1 cisk is low The Company




Glass Wall Systems (India) Limited

{Formerly known as Glass Wall Systems {India) Private Limited)

CIN: U74999MH2010PLC207187

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

The Company is making provisions on trade receivables based on Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model. The reconciliation of ECL is as follows:

31 March 202§ 31 March 2024 1 April 2023

¥ in Million ¥ in Million % in Million
Balance as at 1 April 79.49 12.23 12.09
Changes in loss allowance for expected credit loss:
- Provision/(reversal) of allowance for expected credit loss 8.99 67.26 0.14
- Write off as bad debts - - -
Balance as at 31 March 88.48 79.49 12.23

The Company has used a practical expedient by computing the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables relating to its business, except for receivables
from government entities and where there are customer advances available, based on a provision matrix. The provision matrix takes into account the industry
factors, contractual agreements with customers, agreed collection pattern basis work completion, historical credit loss experience, if any and based on the ageing
of the days the receivables are due. Taking these factors into consideration, the rates derived are as given in the provision matrix:

- 6-10% provided for trade receivables outstanding less than 2 years
- 100% provided for trade receivables outstanding for more than 2 years

(i} Financial assets other than trade receivables

Financial assets other than trade receivables comprise of cash and cash equivalents, Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents, loan to emplovees,
investments and other financial assets. The Company monitors the credit exposure on these financial assets on a case-to-case basis. Based on the Company’s
historical experience, the credit risk on other financial assets is low.

(d) Commodity rate risk:

The Company undertakes facade engineering contracts which includes turnkey architectural facade solutions. These contracts entail procurement of aluminium
profiles which may have direct to commodity prices.. Accordingly, the Company is exposed to the price risk on aluminium profiles. To mitigate the risk of
aluminium prices, the company relies on contractual provisions like pass through of prices, price variation provisions with certain customers etc.

{e) Capital management:

Capital includes equity attributable to the equity holders to ensure that it maintains an efficient capital structure and healthy capital ratios in order to support its
business and maximise shareholder value. The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions
or its business requirements. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company mayv adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares.

The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. Net debt is calculated as loans and borrowings less
cash and cash equivalents.

31 March 2025 31 March 2024 1 April 2023

% in Million ¥ in Million ¥ in Million
Non-current borrowings (refer note 18) 67.29 84.56 100.63
current borrowings (refer note 18) 17.35 100.90 370.69
Borrowings 84.64 185.46 471.32
Less: Cash and cash equivalents {refer note 12} 3.18 69.11 1.00
Net debt (A} 81.46 116.35 470.32
Equity (refer note 16 & 17) 1,535.00 1,140.43 1,021.90
Total equity (B) 1,535.00 1,140.43 1,021.90
Capital and net debt (C=A+B) 1,616.46 1,256.78 1,492.22
Gearing ratio (%) (A/C) 5.04% 9.26% 31.52%

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company's capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to
the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the lenders to
immediately call loans and borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing borrowings in the current year.

During the year ended 31 March 2025, the Company surrendered its cash credit facility from the consortium of banks and availed a new overdraft facility
secured against fixed deposits to manage its working capital requirements more efficiently (refer note 18). Other than this change, there were no modifications in
the objectives, policies, or processes for managing capital during the vears ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024 and as at 1 April 2023.

Financial Instruments
Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 107 "Financial Instruments": Disclosures

The Company uses the following hierarchy for detremining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation technique.

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2: Inputs other than the quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and
Level 3: Inputs based on unobservable market data.

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy. It does
not include fair value information for financial assets and financial liabilities not measured at fair value if the carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of
fair value.
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As at 31 March 2025

Carrying amount Level of input used
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
% in Million T in Million ¥ in Million % in Million
Financial assets o T -
A. At amortised cost
Cash and cash equivalents 3.18 - - -
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 711.70 - - -
Trade receivables 473.37 - - -
Other financial assets 60.75 - - -
Loans 4.30 - - -
B. At fair value through profit and loss
Investments 0.50 0.50
1,253.80 - - 0.50
Financial Liabilities
A. At amortised cost
Borrowings * 84.64 - - -
Other financial liabilities 35.96 - - -
Trade payables 371.90 - - -
492.50 - - -
As at 31 March 2024
Carrying amount Level of input used
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
{ in Million T in Million 2 in Million ¥ in Million
Financial assets
A. At amortised cost
Cash and cash equivalents 69.11 - - -
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 232.88 - - -
Trade receivables 617.81 - - -
Other financial assets 32.68 - - -
Loans 5.68 - - -
B. At fair value through profit and loss
Investments 0.50 - - 0.50
958.66 - - 0.50
Financial Liabilities
A. At amortised cost
Borrowings * 185.46 - - -
Other financial liabilities 16.66 - - -
Trade payables 378.21 - - -
580.33 - - -
As at 1 April 2023
Carrying amount Level of input used
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
¥ in Million ¥ in Million ¥ in Million ¥ in Million
Financial assets
A. At amortised cost
Cash and cash equivalents 1.00 - - -
Bank balances other than cash and rash equivalents 225.82 - - -
Trade receivables 729.71 - - -
Other financial assets 6.71 - - -
Loans 4.57 - - -
B. At fair value through profit and loss
Investments 0.50 - - 0.50
968.31 - - 0.50
Financial Liabilities
A. At amortised cost
Borrowings * 471.32 - - -
Other financial liabilities 106.32 - - -
Trade pavables 489.32 - - -
1,066.96 - - -

*Includes current maturities of non-current borrowings

The fair value of assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties,
other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The management assessed that fair value of cash and cash equilvalents, trade payables and other current financial
assets and liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these instruments.

Note:
The fair value for Level 3 instruments is valued using inputs based on inforination about market participants assumptions and other data that are available.
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45 Events after the end of the reporting year
Subsequent to the year ended 31 March 2025, the Board of Directors, at its meeting held on 30 April 2025, approved the sub-division of each equity share of the
Company having a face value of 210/- each into five equity shares of 32/- each, subject to the approval of the shareholders pursuant to the provisions of Section
61 of the Companies Act, 2013. The shareholders approved the sub-division at the Extraordinary General Meeting held on 5 May 2025. The Company
subsequently filed the prescribed forms with the Registrar of Companies (ROC), which were approved on 14 May 2025. Accordingly, each equity share of 210/-
each has been sub-divided into five equity shares of 22/- each.

There are no events or transactions other than those disclosed in above para elsewhere in these financial statement which have occurred since the date of
Balance Sheet that could have a material effect on the financial statements and requires adjustment to the accounting estimates and disclosures made in the
financial statements at that date or for the year then ended.

46 Ratio Analysis

Reason for

Ratio Numerator Denominator 31 March 2025 31 March 2024 % Change A
variance
Current ratio Current Assets Current 1.61 1.24 30.08 Refer Note 1
Liabilities
Debt- Equity Ratio Total Debt Shareholder's 0.06 0.16 (66.09) Refer Note 2
Equity
Debt Service Coverage ratio Earnings Debt Service** 10.72 4.65 130.74 Refer Note 3
available for
Debt Service*
Return on Equity ratio Net Profits Average 0.33 0.11 196.21 Refer Note 4
after taxes Shareholder's
Equity
Inventory Turnover ratio Cost of goods  Average 3.60 6.03 (40.37) Refer Note 5
sold inventory
Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio Net credit Average Trade 4.49 4.19 7.12
Sales Receivable
Trade Payable Turnover Ratio Net Credit Average Trade 4.56 4.89 6.72)
Purchases***** Payable
Net Capital Turnover Ratio Net Sales Working 3.18 8.86 (64.13) Refer Note 6
Capital***
Net Profit ratio Net Profit Net Sales 0.18 0.04 322.52 Refer Note 7
Return on Capital Employed Earnings Capital 0.38 0.23 70.16 Refer Note 8
before interest Employed****
and taxes
Return on Investment Income Time Weighted 0.07 0.06 4.12

generated from Average
Investments Investments

* Earnings available for Debt Service = Net profit after taxes + Non cash operating expenses like depreciation and amortizations + Interest + loss on sale of fixed
assets

**Debt Service = Interest + Principal repayments

*** Working capital = Current assets - Current liabilities

**++ Capital Employed = Tangible net worth + Total debt + Deferred liability - Intangible assets

Net Credit Purchases***** = Purchase of goods and services and other expense-provision for doubtful advance - provision for doubtful debts and written off

Note 1 - Current ratio increased owing to improved working capital performance

Note 2 - Debt-Equity ratio decreased owing to less utilisation of cash credit facility and increase in profit.
Note 3 - Debt Service Coverage ratio increased owing to increase in EBITDA

Note 4 - Return on Equity ratio ratio increased owing to increase in profit

Note 5 - Inventory Turnover ratio decreased owing to decrease in the cost of material consumed

Note 6 - Net Capital Turnover Ratio decreased owing to less utilisation of cash credit facility

Note 7 - Net profit ratio increased owing to increase in profit during the year

Note 8 - Return on Capital Employed ratio increased due to better earning

47 Other Statutory Information
(i) The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property
under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.
(ii) The Company does not have any transactions with companies which has been struck off by ROC under section 248 of the companies Act, 2013 other than the

following :-
(% in Million)
Name of struck off Company l Balance outstanding
Nat ; ] Relationship
¢ e uriiz s with the Struck
ransaction
ff if
with struck-off| 31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024 | 1 April 2023 | ° a:’ymf::’;’
s
Company disclosed
———————
’/& Advance to
G}m«% Wes Put. Ltd. Vendor - - 0.07 | None
"

has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other persons or entiti entities (Intermediaries) with the
the Intermediary shall:

ectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever

mpany {Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
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{b) Provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(iv) The Company has not received any fund from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in
writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

{a} Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or

(b) Provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Benzficiaries.

(v) The Company does not have any transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year
in the tax assessments under the Income-tax Act, 1961.

(vi) The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is vet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

(vii) The Company has not entered into any Cryptocurrency or Virtual currency transactions during the financial year.

{viii) The Company has not entered in scheme of arrangements approved by the competent authority in terms of sections 232 to 237 of the Companies Act,2013.
{ix} The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institutions or other lender.

{(x} During the current and previous financial years, the Company has not granted loan, investment made or guarantee given or security provided as specified
under section 186(4} of the Companies Act,2013. Accordingly, the disclosure requirement under section 186(4) of the Companies Act,2013 is not applicable to the
Company.

The Company has used accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail {edit log)} facility and the same has
operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software, except that audit trail feature is not enabled for direct changes to data for
users with certain privileged / administrative access rights to the accounting software or the underlving database.

Additionally, company has preserved audit trail but has not maintained log of such preservation. The Company is evaluating appropriate steps to maintain
necessary data.

First time adoption of Indian A ing Standards

Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 101 "First time adoption of Indian Accounting Standards”

As stated in Note 2(a), the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 are the first annual financial statements prepared in accordance with Ind AS.
These financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 are prepared in compliance with Ind AS. The adoption was carried out in accordance with Ind AS
101 using Balance Sheet as at 1 April 2023 as the transition date. The transition was carried out from Indian GAAP, which was considered as the previous GAAP.

All applicable Ind AS have been applied consistently and retrospectively, wherever required.

Accordingly, the Company has prepared financial statements which comply with Ind AS applicable for periods ending on 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024, as
described in the summary of material accounting policies.
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(a) Effect of Ind AS adoption on Balance sheet as at 1 April 2023

Notes Previous GAAP Ind AS Ind AS
Adjustments
% in Million % in Million {in Million

Assets:
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment A 458.68 (92.11) 366.57
Investment properties 140.56 - 140.56
Intangible assets 2.91 - 291
Right-of-use asset A - 92.11 92.11
Financial assets
i) Investments 0.50 - 0.50
ii) Trade receivables C 147.05 (147.05) -
iii) Other financial assets 3.71 - 3.71
Deferred tax assets (net) G 85.80 139.03 224.83
Income tax assets (net) G 53.37 3.83 57.20
Other non-current assets C 162.23 147.05 309.28
Total non-current assets 1,054.81 142.86 1,197.67
Current assets
Inventories 213.22 - 213.22
Financial assets
i) Trade receivables C&E 862.08 (132.37) 729.71
ii) Cash and cash equivalents . 1.00 - 1.00
iii) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents J 225.73 0.09 225.82
iv) Loans 4.57 - 4.57
v) Other financial assets J 3.09 (0.09) 3.00
Other current assets C&E 551.44 112.87 664.31
Total current assets 1,861.13 {19.50) 1,841.63
TOTAL ASSETS 2,915.94 123.36 3,039.30
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 194.39 - 194.39
Other equity 746.92 80.59 827.51
Total equity 941.31 80.59 1,021.90
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial labilities
i) Borrowings J 99.85 0.78 100.63
ii) Other financial liabilities I - 12.97 12.97
Provisions 24.85 - 24.85
Total Non-current liabilities 124.70 13.75 138.45
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
i) Borrowings J 370.23 0.46 370.69
ii) Trade payables

- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 37.47 - 37.47

enterprises
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro H 459.35 (7.50) 451.85
enterprises

iii} Other financial liabilities 1&J 85.02 8.33 93.35
Other current liabilities 888.44 - 888.44
Provisions H 9.42 23.90 33.32
Current tax liabilities (net) G - 3.83 3.83
Total Current liabilities 1,849.93 29.02 1,878.95
Total liabilities 1,974.63 42.77 2,017.40
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 2,915.94 123.36 3,039.30
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(b} Statement of reconciliation of equity under Ind AS and equity reported under previous GAAP as at 1 April 2023

Notes 1 April 2023
% in Million
Equity as per previous GAAP 941.31
Impact of expected credit loss E (19.51)
Impact of defect liability period H (16.40)
Deferred tax recognised based on reasonable certainty G 139.02
Impact of compound financial instrument 1 (22.52)
Equity as per Ind AS 1,021.90
(c) Effect of Ind AS adoption on Balance sheet as at 31 March 2024
Notes Previous GAAP Ind AS Ind AS
Adjustments
¥ in Million ¥ in Million % in Million
Assets:
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment A 450.38 {91.03) 359.35
Investment properties B 40.76 (8.24) 32.52
Intangible assets 1.48 - 1.48
Right-of-use asset A - 91.03 91.03
Financial assets
i} Investinents 0.50 - 0.50
ii) Trade receivables C 254.87 {254.87) -
iii) Other financial assets 4.18 - 4.18
Deferred tax assets (net) G 85.81 41.79 127.60
Income tax assets (net} G 44.23 0.56 44.79
Other non-current assets C 10.33 254.87 265.20
Total non-current assets 892.54 34.11 926.65
Current assets
Inventories 274.32 - 274.32
Financial assets
i) Trade receivables C&E 724.96 (107.15) 617.81
ii) Cash and cash equivalents 68.75 0.36 69.11
iii} Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents J 232.89 {0.01) 232.88
iv) Loans 5.68 - 5.68
v) Other financial assets J 28.65 {0.16) 28.49
Other current assets C&E 322.23 97.98 420.21
Total current assets 1,657.48 (8.98) 1,648.50
Assets held for sale B - 8.26 8.26
TOTAL ASSETS 2,550.02 33.39 2,583.41
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 194.39 - 194.39
Other equity 935.61 10.43 946.04
Total equity 1,130.00 10.43 1,140.43
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
i) Borrowings J 84.05 0.51 84.56
ii) Other financial liabilities D 0.49 0.08 0.57
Provisions 27.72 - 27.72
Total Non-current liabilities 112.26 0.59 112.85
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
i) Borrowings J 100.78 0.12 100.90
ii) Trade payables -
- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 94.07 - 94.07
enterprises
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro H 291.64 (7.50) 284.14
enterprises
iif) Other financial liabilities 1&J 14.75 1.34 16.09
Other current liabilities D 794.43 0.10 794.53
Provisions H 12.09 27.75 39.84
Current tax liabilities (net) G - 0.56 0.56
Total Current liabilities 1,307.76 22.37 1,330.13
Total liabilities 1,420.02 22.96 1,442.98
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 2,550.02 33.39 2,583.41
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(d) Statement of reconciliation of equity under Ind AS and equity reported under previous GAAP as at 31 March 2024

Notes 31 March 2024
¥ in Million
Equity as per previous GAAP 1,130.00
Impact of expected credit loss E (9.19)
Impact of classification of investment properties to Asset held for sale B 0.03
Impact of defect liability period H (20.25)
Impact of compound financial instrument [ (1.97)
Deferred tax recognised based on reasonable certainty G 41.80
Fair value of security deposit D 0.01
Equity as per Ind AS 1,140.43
(¢} Effect of Ind AS adoption on the Statement of Profit and Loss for the period ended 31 March 2024
Notes Previous GAAP Ind AS Ind AS
Adjustments

¥ in Million T in Million ¥ in Million
Income
Revenue from operations J 2,775.38 46.33 2,821.71
Other income B,D&J 105.09 {46.61) 58.48
Total income 2,880.47 (0.28) 2,880.19
Expenses
Cost of raw materials and components consumed 1,469.94 - 1,469.94
Employee benefits expense F 255.30 {1.35) 253.95
Finance costs D &I 82.57 1.48 84.05
Depreciation and amortisation expense A&B 30.52 {0.35) 30.17
Other expenses E&H 672.44 (6.47) 665.97
Total expenses 2,510.77 (6.69) 2,504.08
Profit before exceptional items and Tax 369.70 6.41 376.11
Exceptional items (refer note 9) 161.89 - 161.89
Profit before tax 207.81 6.41 214.22
Tax expenses:
(i) Cwrrent tax - - -
{ii) Adjustment of tax relating to earlier periods G {2.87) {1.43) {4.30)
{iii) Deferred tax G - 98.99 98.99
Total tax expense {2.87) 97.56 94.69
Profit for the year 210.68 (91.15) 119.53
Other preh ive i / (Loss), net of tax
Item that will not be reclassified to statement of profit and loss:
(a) Re-measurement (loss)/gain on defined benefit plans F (134 (1.34)
{b) Income tax effect on the above G - 0.34 0.34
Other comprehensive loss for the year, net of tax - (1.00) {1.00)
Total preh ive i for the year, net of tax 210.68 {92.15) 118.53
(f) Statement of total comprehensive income for the vear ended 31 March 2024

Notes Previous GAAP Ind AS Ind AS
Adjustments

T in Million % in Million ¥ in Million
Net profit after tax as per previous GAAP 210.68
Impact of expected credit loss E 10.32
Impact of classification of investment properties to Asset held for sale B 0.03
Impact of defect liability period H (3.85)
Deferred tax recognised based on reasonable certainty G (97.56)
Impact of compound financial instrument f {1.44)
Fair value of security deposit D 0.01
Reclassification to OCI E 1.34
Net profit after tax as per Ind AS - 119.53
Other comprehensive income F
Re-measurcment (loss)/gain on defined bLenefit plans (1.34}
Income tax effect on the above 0.34

Total comprehensive income as per Ind AS
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(g) Effect of Ind AS adoption on the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2024

Notes Previous GAAP Ind AS Ind AS
Adjustments
¥ in Million X in Million % in Million
Net cash flows from operating activities 339.49 1.79 341.28
Net cash flows from investing activities 107.68 (1.39) 106.29
Net cash flows from financing activities (379.42) (0.04) {379.46)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 6.78 61.33 68.11
Cash and cash equivalents as at 1 April 2023 1.00 - 1.00
Cash and cash equivalents as at 31 March 2024 68.75 0.36 69.11

Notes:

(A) Right-of-use asset

Pursuant to Ind AS requirements, lease hold land is presented separately under Right-of-use. Under previous GAAP the same was presented as part of tangible
assets. Tangible assets have been now divided into two categories under Ind AS viz. Property, plant and equipment and Right-of-use.

(B} Assets held for sale

In accordance with Ind AS 105 assets held for sale is presented separately. Under previous GAAP there was no such requirement and properties which were
acquired for immediate sale was presented as part of Investments. Investment properties (part of investments under previous GAAP) have been now divided into
two categories under Ind AS viz. Investment properties and Assets held for sale.

{C) Contract assets

In accordance with Ind AS 115, retention money which is not due on the balance sheet date is presented as part of contract assets. Under previous GAAP the
same was presented as part of Trade receivables.

{D) Fair value of security deposit
Under Ind AS financial assets and liabilities are measured at fair value at the inception and subsequently at amortised cost or at fair value based on their
classification. Under previous GAAP the financial assets and liabilities were measured at cost.

(E) Expected credit loss

The provision is made against trade receivables and contract assets based on “expected credit loss” model as per Ind AS 109. Under previous GAAP the provision
was made when the receivable and retention money turned doubtful based on the assessment on case to case basis.

{F) Actuarial gains and losses

Actuarial gains and losses pertaining to defined benefit obligations and re-measurement are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income in accordance with Ind
AS 19 and are not reclassified to profit or loss.

{G) Deferred tax and income tax

Deferred tax under Ind AS has been recognised for temporary differences between tax base and the book base of the relevant assets and liabilities. Under
previous GAAP the deferred tax was accounted based on timing differences impacting the Statement of Profit and Loss for the period. Further, under previous
GAAP, Deferred tax assets on carry forward tax losses and unabsorbed depreciation were recognised to the extent that there is a virtual certainty supported by
convincing evidence that sufficient future taxable profit will be available to utilised such deferred tax assets. Under Ind AS, deferred tax assets are recognised to
the extent of reasonable certainty of availability of future taxable profit to utilise such deferred tax asset. Deferred tax and income tax has been reclass/regrouped
to align with presentation as per Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements.

(H) Provision for defect liabilities

Provisions have been made for the defect liability period in accordance with Ind AS 115.

{I} Compound financial insts ts

The Class B equity shareholders are entitled to a special non-discretionary dividend at the rate of 2% per annum on the subscription amount. In accordance with
the requirements of Ind AS 109 - Financial Instruments, this dividend obligation meets the definition of a financial liability. Accordingly, the Company has
reclassified the present value of future dividend payments from equity to financial liability at the time of transition to Ind AS. Under the previous GAAP, the
annual dividend was accounted for as a distribution directly from other equity.

(J) Presentation and disclosures

{i) Under Ind AS, interest accrued on financial assets and liabilities have been clubbed with the respective financial assets and liabilities to reflect their amortized
cost in accordance with Ind AS 109 - Financial Instruments. Under the previous GAAP, such interest accruals were presented separately under relevant heads
under ‘other current assets’ and ‘other current liabilities'.

{ii) Certain line items that were previously presented under “other income" have been reclassified as "other operating income" under revenue from operations, to
more accurately reflect the nature of the transactions and in accordance with the presentation requirements of Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements.
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